va
EREaELEARLA
SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (% [ 2 #E & 7 i 5k 7 2 4 BR 2 7))
(Stock code B3 fR5%: 08123)

2024

ANNUAL REPORT
A Hit

g et




CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group’) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
THHERERS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$99.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2024, compared with the loss of
approximately HK$15.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2023, that loss increased by approximately HK$83.2 million.
As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 20 March
2025, the loss for the year ended 31 December 2024 was mainly
attributable to (i) the significant drop of revenue and (ii) the record
of an impairment loss on deposits paid for acquisition of motor
vehicles for resale. The recognition of impairment loss is mainly
related to the advance payments made in late 2023 by a subsidiary
of the Company to the vehicle suppliers amounted to approximately
RMB70.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$75.8 million) (the
“Advance Payments”) under the purchase contracts for purchasing
the motor vehicles for resale (the “Purchase Contracts”). During the
year under review for those Purchase Contracts, the due dates for
the purchases has passed and the purchase of the motor vehicles
has not been completed. Having conducted a crucial review
on those Purchase Contracts, the Group is of the view that the
recoverability of the Advance Payments cannot be assured with
reasonable uncertainty, and accordingly made the impairment on the
Advance Payments resulting to the loss of approximately RMB70.2
million (2023: Nil) charged to profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2024.

The Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 recorded total
revenue of approximately HK$32.3 million, which was a decrease of
approximately HK$117.7 million compared with the last year. It was
due to a record of revenue of trading of motor vehicles, provision of
agency services and accessories sourcing segment approximately
HK$32.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2024, compared
with approximately HK$149.7 million for the previous year,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$117.6 million.

Since 2020, the customers’ purchase desire has been diminishing
following the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the preventive
measures and the lockdown of cities in PRC, the on-going Sino-
US trade war and the weakening of the PRC economy. Following
the end of COVID-19 pandemic, the Group had expected the PRC
economy to pick up growth in 2024, however, the domestic demand
continued to be weak and customers were cautious in consumption
as the global and PRC domestic economies have been affected by
ongoing conflicts and geopolitical and trade tensions.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

Further than that, the “price war” among automakers in the PRC
starting from early 2023 has shown no signs of abating and
continued throughout 2024, particularly in the new-energy vehicle
(“NEV”) sector, almost both local and foreign automakers keep
cutting prices or launching limited-time promotions. With more
and more automakers in the PRC domestic market making the
competition intense and fierce. Manufacturers of NEV continue to
introduce a large number of new cars leading to a repositioning of
new car prices and prompting a more aggressive price reduction.
Top automakers in the PRC were leveraging price war to squeeze
out smaller firms with limited innovation and funding. The Group as
an independent small scale parallel import reseller of fuel vehicles
and NEV found it difficult to survive in the PRC motor vehicles
market as it had been caught in the middle of the price war with
limited room and ability to downwardly adjust its price to meet with
the challenges posed by the price war.

While the price war persists throughout 2024, it is expected that
the scale of car price reductions will continue to increase in the
coming year. As the imported motor vehicles have to go through
lengthy custom declaration and certification process, the price for
the Group’s imported motor vehicles will be more difficult to compete
with the newly launching models with discount or the old model with
a more deeper discount.

The impairment loss amount on deposit paid for purchase of trading
motor vehicles for the year ended 31 December 2024 is mainly
the deposit paid in 2023 and 2024. Pursuant to those purchase
contracts (“Purchase Contracts”) executed between the Group and
the suppliers for purchasing the parallel motor vehicles, the Group is
required to pay 10% to 45% of the purchase price as the deposit for
ordering the motor vehicles. For those Purchase Contracts of which
the due dates had expired, the Group had considered whether to
complete them, however, in doing so the Group inevitably would on
the one hand have to incur interest on third party financing to fund
the completion and on the other hand would be fully exposed to the
risk of any further down turn of the parallel imported vehicle market
as well as any further drop in price of the motor vehicles in light of
the ongoing price war put up by the automakers in the PRC. The
Group, after assessing the potential risks and financial impacts on
the Group considered that it was reasonable not to complete those
Purchase Contracts and decided that it was reasonable to recognise
the deposits paid for the Purchase Contracts as impairment loss.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
THHERERS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded the
revenue of trading of motor vehicles where the Group acts as
principal approximately HK$30.8 million and agency and service
fees income from accessories sourcing approximately HK$1.3
million. Approximately HK$148.3 million and approximately HK$1.4
million were recorded respectively for the revenue of trading of
motor vehicles where the Group acts as principal and agency and
service fees income from accessories sourcing for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Given that the performances of the businesses of Sinofortune
Securities Limited, Sinofortune Financial Capital Limited and
Sinofortune Asset Management Limited have not been satisfactory
and have been continuously operating at a loss. The Company
and four purchasers, Xiang Ying, Lan Shili, Shan Chuanlong and Li
Chao entered into a sale and purchase agreement in respect of the
disposal of 100% equity interest in Sinofortune Financial Holdings
(BVI) Limited on 9 July 2024 in the consideration of HK$4.0 million
plus the net asset value of the disposed companies of no less than
HK$8.25 million at 5 July 2024,

In 2019, the Group invested in the new medicine development
market in the PRC, the limited partnership of the Group co-operates
with its business partner in the joint development of four new
medicines in the treatment of lymphoma, cell tumors, colorectal
cancer and multidrug-resistant tuberculosis. As at 31 December
2024, one of the new medicines has entered into the phase Il of
clinical trial and the others are still in the researching stage.

For trading of listed securities, the Group recorded a realised loss
of approximately HK$62,000 for the year ended 31 December 2024
and an unrealised gain of approximately HK$60,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of the Group

The Group recorded total revenue of approximately HK$32.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2024 as compared to total revenue
of approximately HK$150.0 million for the previous year, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$117.7 million or approximately
78.5%. The sharp decrease of revenue was primarily due to the
decrease in trading of motor vehicles business in the PRC.

The Group recorded a loss for the year amounted to approximately
HK$99.0 million, compared with a loss of approximately HK$15.8
million for the previous year, representing an increase of loss of
approximately 5.3 times. The loss was largely the result of (i) the
significant drop of revenue; (i) the record of an impairment loss
on advance payments for purchase of trading motor vehicles of
approximately HK$75.8 million; and (iii) an impairment loss on
advance payment for acquisition of property of approximately
HK$1.5 million.

The loss included the fair value losses arising from the Group’s
interest in the limited partnership engaged in the business of
investing in new medicine development projects at the fair value
through its profit or loss of approximately HK$111,000 for the year
under review, compared with fair value losses of approximately
HK$3.7 million of that project for the previous year.

The loss also encompassed the loss on settlement of advance
payments for purchase of trading motor vehicles of approximately
HK$2.1 million for the year under review, no loss on settlement of
advance payments for purchase of trading motor vehicles for the last
year.

The loss also took the impairment loss recognised on trade
receivables of approximately HK$0.4 million for the year under
review, compared with the impairment loss recognised on trade
receivables of approximately HK$0.4 million for the previous year.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
THREZERS

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s current assets as at 31 December 2024 amounted
to approximately HK$50.3 million compared with approximately
HK$220.3 million as at 31 December 2023 and the liquidity of
the Group, as demonstrated by the current ratio (current assets
over current liabilities) was 0.5 times, compared with 1.8 times
for previous year. Among them, the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss were HK$Nil (2023: approximately HK$0.8
million) which invested in the equity securities listed in Hong Kong
and were disposed during the year. As at 31 December 2024, the
Group’s bank balances and cash were approximately HK$13.5
million (2023: approximately HK$24.8 million) of which HK$Nil (2023:
approximately HK$5.3 million) were held on behalf of clients in trust
and segregated accounts.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s total borrowings amounted
to HK$28 million (2023: HK$30 million) was repayable within one
year. That borrowings were secured by charges over the Group’s
leasehold land and buildings as well as corporate guarantee issued
by the Company. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December
2024 (calculated by the total liabilities of approximately HK$103.0
million over equity attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$14.9 million) is 692.6% (2023: 106.8%).

The equity attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$14.9 million as at 31 December 2024,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$103.2 million, or
87.4% from that of 31 December 2023. The decrease was mainly
due to loss for the year attributable to the owners of the Company.

The Group manages the foreign exchange exposure arising from
its normal course of business activities and investments in foreign
operations by funding its local operations and investments through
cash flow generated from business transaction locally. As at the end
of the year, the Group did not have any material un-hedged foreign
exchange exposure of interest rate mismatch. Foreign currency
exposure did not pose a significant risk for the Group. However, we
will continue to stay vigilant and closely monitor our exposure to
movements of relevant currency.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

Capital structure
As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s issued share capital was
7,748,958,120 shares of HK$0.01 each.

Trading of motor vehicles and provision of agency services

It recorded approximately HK$32.1 million of revenue for the year
under review compared with the revenue of approximately HK$149.7
million for the last year, representing a decrease of revenue of
approximately 78.6%. It is principally engaged in motor vehicles
business in the PRC, in particular, trading of motor vehicles and
motor vehicles parts. The global economy has been influenced by
ongoing conflicts, geopolitical tensions and potential worldwide
trade restriction, the weak economic growth has been weakening
consumers’ purchase desire and consumption pattern in particular
most countries are now adopting new energy as a strategic
development direction and encouraging the green transformation
of the automotive industry. The Group estimated that the demand
for petrol vehicles is expected to shrink further, and competition in
models and pricing will intensify resulting in more intense market
competition than expected in 2024. This segment incurred a loss
of approximately HK$82.4 million for the year which is arrived at
after taking into (i) impairment loss recognised on trade receivables
amounted to approximately HK$0.4 million (2023: approximately
HK$0.4 million); (ii) loss on settlement of advance payments for
purchase of trading motor vehicles amounted to approximately
HK$2.1 million (2023: HK$NIl); and (i) impairment loss on advance
payments for purchase of trading motor vehicles amounted to
approximately HK$75.8 million (2023: HK$NIil).
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
THREZERS

Trading of listed securities

The securities trading recorded realised loss amounted to
approximately HK$62,000 for the year ended 31 December
2024, compared with recorded an unrealised fair value gains of
approximately HK$60,000 for the previous year. This segment
showed an operating loss of approximately HK$0.3 million for the
year 31 December 2024 and it recorded a loss of approximately
HK$0.5 million last year. In November 2024, all listed securities have
been sold through the Hong Kong stock market.

Brokerage and securities margin financing service

The revenue of this segment recorded approximately HK$0.2
million for the year under review compared with the revenue of
approximately HK$0.4 million for the last year. This segment’s profit
of approximately HK$2.3 million while loss of approximately HK$3.7
million for the last year. In July 2024, the Group disposed of its
segment and thereby by discontinued this segment of the Group and
recorded a gain on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$4.0 million.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

Leasehold land and buildings of the Group with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$17.9 million (2023: approximately HK$19.5 million)
were pledged for credit facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any contingent

liabilities (2023: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES/FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS

Disposal of Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited
(“Sinofortune BVI”), Sinofortune Securities Limited,
Sinofortune Financial Capital Limited and Sinofortune Asset
Management Limited

On 27 February 2024, an memorandum of understanding has been
entered into between the Company and the proposed purchasers.
But the Company was informed by the solicitors of the proposed
purchasers that they have not received payment of the deposit
from the proposed purchasers by the deadline on 5 March 2024.
Pursuant to the memorandum of understanding, the time for
payment of the deposit is legally binding amongst the parties of the
memorandum of understanding. For more details, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 27 February 2024 and 6
March 2024.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

On 9 July 2024, The Company and four purchasers, Xiang Ying,
Lan Shili, Shan Chuanlong and Li Chao, entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement in respect of the disposal of 100%
equity interest in Sinofortune BVI in the consideration of HK$4.0
million plus net asset value of Sinofortune BVI and its subsidiaries.
Sinofortune BVI has three wholly-owned subsidiaries of namely
Sinofortune Securities Limited, Sinofortune Financial Capital Limited
and Sinofortune Asset Management Limited. For more details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 9 July 2024.

Save as disclosed, there was no other material acquisition/disposal
which would have been required to be disclosed under the GEM
Listing Rules for the year under review and the Group has no
concrete plans for other material investments.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a workforce of 38
employees (2023: 46). The total staff costs, including Directors’
emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$12.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: approximately HK$13.7
million). The Group’s remuneration policies are reviewed on an
annual basis and commensurate with the industry pay level. The
remuneration package includes basic salary, mandatory provident
fund, medical benefits and discretionary bonus.

OUTLOOK

As at 31 December 2024, the revenue of the Group came from the
segment of trading of motor vehicles, provision of agency services
and accessories sourcing in the PRC.

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 19 March 2018,
the motor vehicles business has a risk of reliance on a small number
of customers. As at 31 December 2024, EE XA hEZEREZE
fE/A 7] (transliterated as Chongging Sheng Yu Hong Jia International
Trading Company Limited) (“Sheng Yu Hong Jia”) has improved its
number of customers and increased to 126 customers and with 44
customers in the progress of negotiation. Sheng Yu Hong Jia will
strive to increase more customers to reduce the level of reliance in
the future.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
THHERERS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 7 March
2022, due to the change of government policy in the PRC on the
China 6 Standard imported motor vehicles, the PRC government
requires the parallel importers of motor vehicles to obtain certification
administered by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the
PRC (“EE Certificate”) for China 6 Standard imported motor vehicles
before offering the same for trade in the PRC. As at 31 December
2024, the Group obtained EE Certificate for six types of China 6
Standard imported motor vehicles, and the others are still in the
certification process. The Group has been closely monitoring the
certification process for their China 6 Standard imported motor
vehicles. To improve the business performance under the segment
of trading of motor vehicles, the Company is planning, by taking
advantage from the globally green transition and technological
advancement in automotive industry, to introduce more new energy
vehicles and to promote the trading of petrol vehicles and new
energy vehicles to the customers. The Group will provide more
resources on marketing and sales in order to boost the performance
of this business segment.

The PRC has been reforming the regulatory landscape in the
pharmaceutical industry leading it has a steady growth in the past
few years, especially for major new medicines development like the
promotion of more lifesaving and safe medicines to be listed and
included in medical insurance. Therefore, the Company will continue
to pay attention to the new medicine development market in the PRC
in order to diversify the business of the Group.

The Group will continue to develop other businesses and seek
opportunities to expand its revenue sources to enhance the Group’s
revenue.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders, Board
of Directors, our staffs and business partners for their continuous
support and commitment.

By order of the Board
Wang Jiawei

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EEMREREEBAERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jiawei (Former name: Wang Xufeng), aged 38, has
been an executive Director, a member of nomination committee
of the Company since May 2013. Mr. Wang was also appointed
as the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company and a
member of remuneration committee of the Company with effect from
22 September 2015. He is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics
at Imperial College London in the United Kingdom in 2009 and a
Master of Science in Finance at City University London in the United
Kingdom in 2010.

Ms. Lai Yuk Mui, aged 55, has been an executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2015 and she was appointed as a member
of remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 22
September 2015. She is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group. Ms. Lai received her Bachelor of Arts Degree in Financial
Services from Edinburgh Napier University in Scotland. Ms. Lai
joined the Company on 14 July 2008 as the executive secretary and
has been promoted to the Head of Personnel and Administration
Department of the Company since 13 February 2009.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

ESEhREREEAERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Liu Runtong, aged 51, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 2 February 2010. Mr. Liu obtained
Bachelor Degree from Department of Chinese of Nankai University
in 1996. He also holds qualifications of economist, registered
securities investment consulting analyst and registered insurance
broker issued by various professional organizations in China. For
the past 26 years, Mr. Liu has held different positions in various
financial media institutions and financial services institutions
in Mainland China. During his tenure from 1998 to 2002 as a
responsible person for marketing the newspaper “Securities
Times”, he participated in establishing the “Panorama Network”
(www.pb5w.net), a well-known securities website in China and acted
as its major responsible person. In 2000, he acted as consultant in
establishing and operating the program “Securities Times” produced
by “China Central Television”. From 2002 to 2007, he served as
Program Supervisor” in “Shenzhen Stock Exchange Shenzhen
Securities Information Co., Ltd”, where he participated in setting up
and managing “Trading Day”, the 24-hour PRC program regarding
securities. Because of his outstanding performance, he was elected
as one of the “Ten Best Staff” of the “Shenzhen Stock Exchange”
in 2004. From 2013 to July 2015, Mr. Liu served Convoy China
Financial Services Holding Ltd as a Vice President. He was the
executive director of Shenzhen Qianhai CONVOY Asset Management
Co., Ltd. from 2013 to July 2015. Mr. Liu has found Shenzhen
Qianhai Yinyan Asset Management Co., Ltd. since 2014 and serves
as the executive director.

EMITES

FIEMEE A+ NR_E—TF
TR HEZFEAARARBIERNTESE -
EER—NAAAREEEXERNBRAZES
X5 BREETEU - FREAFEHZSE
XERBELNKEM MBS RER
O ZAMERBECLCASTERL - B
AT+ REFE O BRESCEFTREAES R
FRBSEBRSHBRBEEBETR N
—NMANEE_EE_FIH(EHF
RY)MEBEHXEEABRE FE2HAHEH
WA ZLEFRIL T2 281 (www.p5w.net)
THEFTBEEA - ZESEEEERATHH
FREFEEIMEEZ(ESERFE)BE HT
B B_EE_FEXE_ZTZTLEFNTRE
NZZEFINESEENERAT HE TR
ERARES ) > 2B MW E R A — Y/ NF
2REBFRATE(ZZH) c HREVS
HESE TR _ZTTEEHREL RGBS
R +EETI I Z2—-BH_E—=ZFF
TE-RFEtR B RERELRATEENR
BERBRABDEIREH FH_T—=
EE"E-RFtANFIF EREEEE
EEBRATIEEHITER -ZLEET
—ERRFYIFGREEEEEER AR
EERITES-

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2024



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EEMREREEBAERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Zhang Benzheng, aged 85, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since 30 September 2008
and he was appointed as a chairman of nomination committee and
a member of audit committee of the Company in 2008. He was also
appointed as a member and chairman of remuneration committee
of the Company in 2008 and 2011 respectively. Professor Zhang
graduated with a Bachelor Degree from the Faculty of Engineering
Physics of the Tsinghua University in 1965. He was a visiting
scholar in the Brookhaven National Laboratory of USA and the
Stuttgart University of Germany. He was the vice director of the
Tsinghua University R&D department and the general manager of
Tsinghua University Science and Technology Corporation. During
the period from 1999 to 2002, he held various senior positions in
two companies listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, namely
Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited and Tsinghua Unisplendour Guhan
Group Corporation. He was the chairman and legal representative
of Tsinghua Unisplendour Guhan Group Corporation and president
of Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited before he left these companies in
2002. He then joined Tsinghua Unisplendour (Group) Corporation
in 2002 and was its president until 2004. Professor Zhang was
the general vice president and secretary of the Beijing Non-
Governmental Science & Technology Entrepreneurs Association.
With his remarkable business leadership as well as exploratory
initiatives, Professor Zhang had made tremendous contribution to
the companies he worked for. He has not only gained compliments
from the society at large, but has also won a series of honors.
In 1997, Professor Zhang received the national prize of “The
Third Term Science and Technology Light Award for Outstanding
Scientific and Technological Entrepreneur”. In 2000, he won
the“"Hong Kong Bauhinia Cup Outstanding Entrepreneur Award”
and the “Entrepreneurial Talent” award issued by the Beijing Non-
Governmental Science and Technology Entrepreneurs Association.
In 2002, he was selected as the first lot of “Zhongguan Village
Outstanding Entrepreneurs”. Professor Zhang is currently the Chief
Consultant of REEFRK JER) Ry EXEZER AR AT (transliterated
as Ronghui Future (Beijing) Technology Development Co., Ltd.).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EEREREEBAERE

Mr. Li Jianxing, aged 67, has been an independent non-executive
Director, a member of audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company since 28 March 2011. He
was also appointed as chairman of audit committee of the Company
with effect from 22 September 2015. Mr. Li graduated from Shanghai
Maritime University with a Bachelor Degree in accounting. He also
received a Master Degree in Business Administration from Canisius
College of Buffalo. Mr. Li has over 30-year experience working in
the field of accounting and corporate finance and has substantial
experience in management in various listed companies, investment
business, investor relations and project management. He was the
senior manager of both the investment department and finance
department of China Everbright Holdings Co., Ltd from April 1998
to June 2000. He served as the Chief Finance Officer for Intermost
Corporation from June 2000 to 2003. From April 2003 to May 2004,
he was a General Manager of Investor Relations in China Resources
Power Holdings Co., Ltd. He was a director of Concord Investment
Holdings Limited from 2004 to 2012. Mr. Li was an independent
non-executive director of Farnova Group Holdings Limited (Hong
Kong Stock Exchange Stock Code: 08153) from March 2021 to
September 2022.
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Professor Chen Shu Wen, aged 70, has been an independent
non-executive Director, a member of audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company since
23 September 2011. Professor Chen graduated from L84
# KB (Dongbei University of Finance and Economics) with a
Bachelor Degree in Economics and obtained a Master Degree and
a PhD in Economics from ZFH#AKZ (Jilin University). He was a
practising solicitor at FEERXGEEMEFT (Liaoning Tianhe Law
Firm). Professor Chen has substantial management and leadership
experience serving in the PRC government. He commenced his
career as the deputy county chief of the Benxi Manchu Autonomous
County, Liaoning Province, PRC, in 1992 and became the vice
director general (BIEfE)of R EMKERFNELZE T (Benxi
City Commission for Restructuring the Economic Systems) from
1995. He was the director (E1E) of ZEMHINSEEZ S1EER
B2 (Benxi Foreign Trade & Economic Cooperation Committee)
from 1998 until 2001. From 2001 to 2009, Professor Chen was the
professor and the tutor for doctorate students at KEBIBET KEBE
B2 PR (Faculty of Management and Economics of Dalian University
of Technology). From 2010 to 2014, he was the dean at K#EIE T
KENHEIBEEEER (School of Public Administration and Law
of Dalian University of Technology). From 2010 to 2020, Professor
Chen was the professor and the tutor for doctorate students at A7
BT ARBANHEEEZBERT (School of Public Administration and
Law of Dalian University of Technology). Professor Chen is currently
an independent non-executive director of Weigiao Textile Company
Limited (delisted on Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 19 March 2024
with stock code: 02698).
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EEREREEBAERE

Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan, aged 62, has been an independent non-
executive Director and a member of remuneration committee of the
Company since 8 May 2023. Mr. Lee is veteran in the insurance
industry of Hong Kong. Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree
in the University of Hong Kong in 1986 and Master of Business
Administration degree in Lingnan University in 2003. Mr. Lee had
been appointed, from 2005 to 2006, as the President of the General
Agents and Managers Association of Hong Kong Limited, from 2007
to 2011, as the member of Insurance Training Board of Vocational
Training Council, from 2011 to 2014, as the Founder and First
Convener for the Insurance and Financial Practitioners Alliance, from
2012 to 2016, as the member for the Insurance Advisory Committee
in the Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau of the Hong
Kong Government, and from 2014 to 2020, as the Vice President
of The Life Underwriters Association of Hong Kong Limited. Mr.
Lee is also the Committee Member of Insurance Management
Committee of The Hong Kong Management Association since 2007,
the President of the International Asset Planner Association since
2011, the Vice President of Asset Management Committee, CEPA
Business Opportunities Development Alliance since September
2014, and the Deputy Convener in the Insurance Industry Regulatory
& Development Concern Group since August 2019. Mr. Lee was
appointed as the President of The Life Underwriters Association of
Hong Kong Limited in 2021. He was appointed as the Chairman for
the Greater Bay Area committee in The Life Underwriters Association
of Hong Kong Limited in 2022. In 2023, he was appointed as the
Convener in the Insurance Industry Regulatory & Development
Concern Group under The Life Underwriters Association of Hong
Kong Limited and the General Agents and Managers Association
of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lee is an independent non-executive
director, the chairman of the remuneration committee and member
of the audit committee of Bonjour Holdings Limited (Hong Kong
Stock Exchange Stock Code: 00653) since August 2020. Mr. Lee
was appointed as the member of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Appeal Board for a term of two years from 1 November
2024 to 31 October 2026.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company was incorporated on 24 May 2001 as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Company Law of Cayman Islands.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set
out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 106 to 107. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a dividend nor transfer of any amount to
reserves for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution as dividends
to its shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum
and Articles of Association and a statutory solvency test. In
accordance with Article 134 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits of
the Company or from any reserves set aside from profits which the
Directors determine to be no longer needed. With the sanction of
an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared or paid out
of share premium account. Accordingly, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution was HK$Nil as at 31 December 2024.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Wang Jiawei (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Lai Yuk Mui

Non-executive Directors
Liu Runtong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Zhang Benzheng

Li Jianxing

Chen Shu Wen

Lee Kwun Kwan

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Directors retiring by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting are Ms. Lai Yuk Mui and Mr. Li Jianxing. Both
Directors are being eligible for re-election and will offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
remaining Directors shall continue to hold office.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2024, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

(@) Long positions in shares of the Company

DirRecTorRs’ REPORT
EETHRS

SERERITHERMR T AT RGN - HEAR
PREFZEDRKE
RIE-MOF+"/A=+—H > EERER
AITHEREARBDIETAEEREZE (E
ZRBFRPEEG (5 RIPEEG) 5
XVER) Z 815~ BRI MBS R IRE
EERHGEEMEXVEHBETRIDFENE
KRB Rz ERIRE (BERESE
FRBEEABERXEERS(FNEEHE
BzREmEKE)  HIREFE S RS EA
FIS2MR BN ZIE B MR Z#Enm
KA WIBEGEM EHRAE5.46E5.67
BEMEAABD KRB ZERERAEW
T

(@) MRE2XFRMBZEE

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Directors Capacity shares held shareholding
E5H 1 FhisRg i 8B el o= adn
Wang Jiawei Beneficial owner 2,123,395,935 27.40%
FEE BET#EEA
Lai Yuk Mui Beneficial owner 2,780,127 0.04%
K1 BaHEAA
Liu Runtong Beneficial owner 2,646,000 0.03%
2R BmEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none
of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company
had an interest or short position in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions in which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
(@) Long positions in shares of the Company
As at 31 December 2024, the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company are not aware of any person (not being a
Director or a chief executive of the Company) who had an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had not been notified
of any person (other than the Directors whose interests
are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above) who had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company and was required
to be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO and/or was directly or indirectly interested in
5% or more of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of any other members of
the Group.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities (including debentures) of, the Company or any other body
corporate and neither the Directors, nor the chief executive, nor any
of their respective spouses or children under the age of 18, had
any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
There was no transactions, arrangements or contract of significance,
save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

LITIGATION

Arbitration Application Filed by R EEH TR EZAEIRAE
(Transliterated as Shenzhen Sinofortune Education Investment
Consultancy Co., Ltd) (“Sinofortune Education”) Concerning
the Repayment of Refundable Earnest Money

As reported in the 2018, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023 annual
reports of the Company, the parties of this arbitration case,
Sinofortune Education and the five defendants of the arbitration case
(collectively, “Five Defendants”), including Yang Shunhong, Liu Zulin,
Yang Rui, Zhai Qingguo and RE1E2 F#E/RE RAF] (transliterated
as Mingin Quantum New Energy Co. Ltd.) (“Mingin Quantum”)
entered into an arbitration settlement agreement in September
2020 (“Arbitration Settlement Agreement”) and applied to Shenzhen
Court of International Arbitration (also known as South China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission) (“SCIA”)
for adjudication according to Arbitration Settlement Agreement. On
30 December 2020, SCIA made an adjudicated judgement in favour
of Sinofortune Education in terms of the Arbitration Settlement
Agreement (“Judgement”).

The PRC legal advisor of the Company formed an opinion that
the Arbitration Settlement Agreement is legal and valid and the
Judgement is legally binding with all parties with effect from the date
of issuance.

As a result of Mingin Quantum’s failure to repay the refundable
earnest money of RMB20,000,000 to Sinofortune Education on or
before 31 December 2020 as adjudicated under the Judgement,
Sinofortune Education applied to Intermediate People’s Court of
Wuwei City, Gansu Province, China (“Wuwei Court”) in January 2021
for compulsory execution against the Five Defendants for not fulfilling
the obligations of the Judgement.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Wuwei Court had frozen the 100%
equity interest of Mingin Quantum as well as the equity shares of
Yang Shunhong, Yang Rui and Zhai Qingguo in other companies.
During the execution process, the properties, machine and
photovoltaic power generation equipment in the factory and bank
accounts which under the name of Mingin Quantum were waiting
to be seized in accordance with the law, therefore they cannot be
handled due to the seizure.

Sinofortune Education has applied to the Wuwei Court for an inquiry
and evaluation of auction procedures for the 100% equity interest
of Mingin Quantum. Yang Shunhong had requested for more time
to look for a purchaser for the equity interest of Mingin Quantum
in order to pay off the outstanding amounts owe to Sinofortune
Education, however, he was unable to find purchaser with firm and
clear intention.

In February 2022, the PRC legal advisor of the Company has
received an execution objection application from the Wuwei Court
stating that Mingin Quantum, Yang Shunhong and Yang Rui have
jointly proposed an enforcement objection and have requested to
withdraw or terminate the execution, but was then rejected by the
Wuwei Court.

Yang Shunhong had communicated with Sinofortune Education and
the PRC legal advisor many times to request for an extension of time
to look for a purchaser for the equity interest of Mingin Quantum
in order to pay off the outstanding amounts owe to Sinofortune
Education. The PRC legal advisor had suspended the application to
Higher People’s Court of Gansu, China several times for execution
supervision, however, he was unable to find purchaser with firm and
clear intention.

In December 2022, RENFEAMAAREEBRAT (transliterated as
Mingin Jusheng Photovoltaic Industry Company Limited) which is
wholly owned by Yang Rui had actively transferred RMB1,000,000 to
Sinofortune Education for repayment of Mingin Quantum’s liability on
its behalf.

Sinofortune Education received payments of RMB400,000 and
RMB600,000 in May and June 2023 respectively from the Wuwui
Court recouped through execution.

In 2023, the PRC legal advisor has applied to the Wuwui Court for
continuously frozen the 100% equity interest of Mingin Quantum as
well as the equity shares of Yang Shunhong, Liu Zulin, Yang Rui and
Zhai Qingguo actually entitled for 3 years until August 2026.
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Yang Shunhong had communicated with Sinofortune Education and
the PRC legal advisor many times to request for an extension of time
to look for a purchaser for the equity interest of Mingin Quantum
in order to pay off the outstanding amounts owe to Sinofortune
Education. In addition, Yang Shunhong has told that the other
previous enforcements of Mingin Quantum were nearing completion
and subsequent income after deducting operating costs could be
used to repay to Sinofortune Education.

Apart from failing to repay the refundable earnest money of
RMB20,000,000 to Sinofortune Education on or before 31
December 2020 as mentioned above, Mingin Quantum has also
failed to pay penalty and other compensation fee, arbitration
fee and interest on behalf of the Five Defendants to Sinofortune
Education before 31 December 2024 in the approximate sum
of RMB55,670,000 (after deducting a total of RMB2,000,000
repayment mentioned above) as adjudicated under the Judgement.

The PRC legal advisor of the Company formed an opinion that
since the Five Defendants did not fulfil the obligations under the
Judgement, Sinofortune Education has the right to apply to the
People’s Court for compulsory execution for the sale of 100% equity
interest of Mingin Quantum and has priority to be compensated from
the sale proceed generated therefrom.

Sinofortune Education is still in the process of taking steps to
execute the Judgement against the Five Defendants.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchase and sales for the attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 48.46%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 97.84%
Sales

- the largest customer 26.29%
— five largest customers in aggregate 59.89%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
company’s share capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or
customers.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Directors were
not aware of any business or interest of each Director, controlling
shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) and the respective
associates of each that competes or may compete with the business
of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any such
person has or may have with the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 5.48 TO 5.67 OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company’s Directors have complied with such
code of conduct and the required standard of dealings.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and a detailed corporate governance report is
set out on pages 29 to 42 of this annual report.

Ms. Woo Man Yi is the company secretary of the Company. She is
an associate member of both The Chartered Governance Institution
in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly corporation
and minimising our impact on the environment. Discussion on the
environmental policies and performance is set out in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages
43 to 94 in this annual report. The discussion therein forms part of
the Directors’ Report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to date of this report, there was
or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit
of the Directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or any of its subsidiaries (if made by the Company).
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2024 have been audited by CCTH CPA
Limited. CCTH CPA Limited will retire at the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer itself
for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for reappointment of CCTH CPA Limited as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jiawei
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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CoRPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group, including providing and setting the Group’s
directions and strategies in the interests of the Group. It believes in
good corporate governance and corporate governance practices
that promote investor confidence, development of the Group, and
transparency while having the long-term interest of the Group and
enhancement of shareholders’ value as the ultimate objectives.
[t has adopted the code provision numbering as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix C1 of the GEM
Listing Rules (the “Corporate Governance Code”). The Company
has complied with the applicable code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code, except for the following deviation:

CODE PROVISION C.2.1

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set
out in writing.

Mr. Wang Jiawei is the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company. In view of Mr. Wang has extensive experience in project
management and securities investments and is responsible for the
overall corporate strategies, planning and business development
of the Company. Under the supervision by the Board which is
comprised of four independent non-executive Directors and a non-
executive Director, which represent more than half of the Board, the
interests of the shareholders of the Company will be adequately and
fairly represented.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

In respect of the standard of dealings required of Directors, the
Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquires of all Directors, they
confirmed that they have complied with the Company’s code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions during the year.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Comprising of two executive and five non-executive Directors
(including four independent non-executive Directors), the present
board has an appropriate composition of Directors. The Company
has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and is in the opinion that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent. The present board is
composed of more than one-third of independent non-executive
Directors.

The present board of Directors consists of:

Wang Jiawei (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Lai Yuk Mui (Executive Director)

Liu Runtong (Non-executive Director)

Zhang Benzheng (Independent Non-executive Director)
Li Jianxing (Independent Non-executive Director)

Chen Shu Wen (Independent Non-executive Director)
Lee Kwun Kwan (Independent Non-executive Director)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 13 to
18 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” to this annual report, the Directors have
no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships with one another.

The Board is mandated to determine and review strategic objectives,
appoint and supervise senior management, approve interim and
annual reports, and review the principal risks of the Group’s business
to ensure that these risks are within manageable limits. It is also
mandated to approve any substantial investment, acquisition
or disposal by the Company. Major corporate matters that are
delegated to the management include the execution of business
strategies and initiatives approved by the Board and the preparation
of interim and annual reports for the Board’s approval.
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Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the
board and management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All
Directors should take decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

There were four board meetings during the year. The attendance of
Directors at the board meetings were as follows:
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Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HEGERE
Members 54} ERRITEERHY
Wang Jiawei TEE 4/4
Lai Yuk Mui REIE 4/4
Liu Runtong EpER 4/4
Zhang Benzheng SRAIE 4/4
Li Jianxing ERAT 4/4
Chen Shu Wen ek At >C 4/4
Lee Kwun Kwan =y 4/4
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There was one general meeting during the year. The attendance of
Directors at the general meeting was as follows:

FARBT - RARRRG -EFIREAE
ZHBERINT

Attendance number
of meeting attended/
Number of meeting
during term of service

HESERE
Members 541 EREITEERY
Wang Jiawei TEE 1/1
Lai Yuk Mui BEiE 11
Liu Runtong 2 1/1
Zhang Benzheng SRAIE 1/1
Li Jianxing =T 1/1
Chen Shu Wen e 1 T 1/1
Lee Kwun Kwan Sy picd 1/1

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.

During the year, all Directors have attended training courses
conducted by professional parties. The attended Directors have
provided the Company with their respective training records pursuant
to the Corporate Governance Code. All Directors were provided with
reading materials on relevant rules and regulatory updates.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of reference.
The present Remuneration Committee consists of a majority of
independent non-executive Directors.

ERENIREERRE

BECEELAT 2REFR2UAFER
R BRI EMANB R LER
HitBTAmE2EENRYEGMBZERT
MEFZIFHER/M-

FR 2REFSMTEXEREMME
RE-FM2ENEZEREEXEARTNR

FRBREEFIZHR EREFEER
BAERIAR R R BB R S ERIB B AR o

ESM=

REBDMERBBILIFATES

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2024



CoRPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

As at year end date, the present Remuneration Committee
consisted of six Directors, Professor Zhang Benzheng, Mr. Wang
Jiawei, Ms. Lai Yuk Mui, Mr. Li Jianxing, Professor Chen Shu
Wen and Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan. Four out of the six Directors are
independent non-executive Directors. Professor Zhang Benzheng,
being an independent non-executive Director, is the chairman of
the committee. The Remuneration Committee’s role and function
includes making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of formal and transparent
procedures for developing policy on such remuneration. It also has
the delegated responsibility to determine the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management.

The Company’s remuneration policies are determined on the basis
of the contributions of staff and Directors. Long-term incentive
schemes for staff and Directors include cash bonuses.

The amounts paid to each Director for the year ended 31 December
2024 are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management (other than the Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2024 by band is set out as follows:
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Remuneration band (in HK$) B (B) AE
Nil to 1,000,000 £ 1,000,000 0
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year and
the attendance of its members was as follows:
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Attendance number
of meeting attended/
Number of meeting
during term of service

HESERE
Members 541 EFRRITEERY
Zhang Benzheng RAIE 11
Wang Jiawei FTEE 1/1
Lai Yuk Mui RN 1/1
Li Jianxing ERAT 11
Chen Shu Wen ek £t 1/1
Lee Kwun Kwan =g 1/1

During the year, the Remuneration Committee’s work includes
conducting a review over the Company’s policy and structure for
remuneration. There was no Director’s service contract requiring
approval during the year.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) with specific written terms of reference. As at year
end date, Nomination Committee consisted of four Directors,
Professor Zhang Benzheng, Mr. Wang Jiawei, Mr. Li Jianxing and
Professor Chen Shu Wen. Three out of the four Directors are
independent non-executive Directors. Professor Zhang Benzheng,
being an independent non-executive Director, is the chairman
of the committee. Thus, the present Committee consists of a
majority of independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee’s role and function includes, but is not limited to,
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
but not limited to skills, knowledge and experience, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, or professional experience)
of the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes; draw up, review and update, as appropriate,
the diversity policy for the Board’s approval having due regard to
the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules, review and update the
objectives that the Board has set for implementing such policy, and
monitor the progress made; identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members and select or making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships based on the board diversity policy; and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year and
the attendance of its members was as follows:

EXERRS
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Attendance number
of meeting attended/
Number of meeting
during term of service

HESERE
Members 541 EREITEERY
Zhang Benzheng RAIE 11
Wang Jiawei FTEE 11
Li Jianxing FREAT 1/1
Chen Shu Wen ek At 11

On the nomination process, the Nomination Committee reviews
the suggested candidates for directorship having regard to the
candidates’ reputation and the specific skills or expertise that
these candidates can contribute to the Company in the light of the
structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited
to skills, knowledge and experience, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience) of the board
of Directors. Only candidates who have integrity and can provide
specific contributions to the Company thereby enhancing the value
of the Company are considered for nomination to the board of
Directors by the Nomination Committee.

During the year, the Nomination Committee’s work includes
reviewing the structure, size, independence, composition and
diversity (including but not limited to skills, knowledge and
experience, gender, age, cultural and educational background, or
professional experience) of the Board and made recommendations
thereon. Drawing up, reviewing and updating, as appropriate, the
diversity policy for the Board’s approval having due regard to the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules, reviewing and updating the
objectives that the Board has set for implementing such policy, and
monitor the progress made.
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Board diversity

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy setting out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board with the aims of
enhancing Board effectiveness and corporate governance as well as
achieving sustainable and balanced development.

Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service and any other factors that the Board may consider
relevant and applicable from time to time.

Selection of candidates will be based on the Company’s nomination
policy and will take into account the board diversity policy. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. Having due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board and also the needs of the Board
without focusing on a single diversity aspect.

The Nomination Committee will monitor and review the
implementation of the board diversity policy, as appropriate,
to ensure the effectiveness of the board diversity policy. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions to the board
diversity policy that may be required and make recommendation to
the Board for approval.

A copy of the board diversity policy has been published on the
Company’s website for public information. Currently, the Board
comprises seven members and the Board composition and diversity
are as follows:

Capacity: Executive Directors, non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors

Gender: Male and female

Age: 38 to 85

Nationality: Chinese and American

Length of service:
Board expertise:

10 to 16 years

Finance, law, accounting, investment,
engineering, economic, insurance, investment
consulting analysis
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) with specific written terms of reference. As at
31 December 2024, the Audit Committee consisted of three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Li Jianxing, Professor
Zhang Benzheng and Professor Chen Shu Wen. Mr. Li Jianxing,
being an independent non-executive Director, is the chairman of
the Committee. The Audit Committee’s role and function includes
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor;
review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards; develop and implement policy on the
engagement of an external auditor to supply non-audit services;
monitor the integrity of financial statements, annual report, half-yearly
report and accounts of the Company, and review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them; review the Company’s
financial controls, internal control and risk management systems;
and review the Group’s financial and accounting policies, procedures
and practices.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024
pursuant to the relevant provisions contained in the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 of the GEM Listing
Rules and was of the opinion that such statements had complied
with applicable accounting standards and that adequate disclosures
had been made in respect thereof.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year and the
attendance of its members was as follows:
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Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HEGERE
Members & ERIRRITESEREY
Li Jianxing AT 2/2
Zhang Benzheng SRAIE 2/2
Chen Shu Wen R 4 3¢ 2/2
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The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the accounts and the
reporting responsibilities of the auditors are set out on pages 95 to
105.

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2024 were
audited by CCTH CPA Limited whose term of office will expire at
the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
CCTH CPA Limited be reappointed as the auditors of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1. The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the GEM Listing Rules,
and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the remuneration paid to
the auditors, CCTH CPA Limited in respect of audit services and
non-audit services amounted to HK$590,000 and HK$40,000
respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Board requires management to establish and maintain sound and
effective system of internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets. The Board should conduct a
review of risk management and internal control system of the Group
at least annually, covering the material financial, operational and
compliance controls as well as environmental, social and climate-
related risks.
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Risk management

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management approach to
identify, assess and manage different types of risks. At the first line
of defense, business units are responsible for identifying, assessing
and monitoring risk associated with each business or transaction.
The management, as the second line of defense, defines rule sets
and models, provides technical support, develops new system
and oversees portfolio management. It ensures risks are within
acceptable range and that the first line of defense is effective. As
the final line of defense, the internal audit function (either in-house
or outsourced) assists the Audit Committee to review the first and
second lines of defenses. With the assistance of the independent
internal control consultants, a risk register with risk rating and
risk owners were compiled by taking into account for continuous
risk assessment purpose. Risk owners are required to take
mitigating actions to address the identified risks and such actions
are integrated in the day-to-day activities and their effectiveness
is closely monitored. During the year, the risk register has been
circulated for discussion and assessed the ratings by key personnel
and management, by considering the likelihood and impact of each
identified risk. A written risks assessment report with the identified
key risks, evaluation of related risks and relevant mitigating actions
have been reported to the Audit Committee and reviewed by the
Board. The written report facilitates the Board in considering the
changes in the nature and extent of significant risks (including ESG
risks), the Group’s ability in responding to changes in its business
and the external environment, as well as management’s ongoing
monitoring of risks (including ESG risks) and of the internal control
system.
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Internal controls

The Group emphasises the importance of a sound internal control
system which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group’s key
risk exposures. The Group’s system of internal control is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure
in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.
The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by
the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and shareholders’ interests. For any identified internal control
weaknesses or defects, the Group is committed to enhance control
measures to rectify such control weaknesses or defects. The
Group has implemented an effective control system which includes
a defined management structure with limits of authority, a sound
management system and periodic review of the Group’s performance
by the Audit Committee and the Board.

Review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2024 by
considering written reports prepared by the independent internal
control consultants, covering the material financial, operational and
compliance controls, which are considered effective and adequate.
Audit Committee has annually reviewed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training and budget of the
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions as well as
those relating to its ESG performance and reporting.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and
significant event that may impact the price of the shares of the
Company or their trading volume and decides whether the relevant
information is considered inside information and needs to be
disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules
17.10 and 17.11 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Inside Information
Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO. Executive Directors have
responsibility for approving certain announcements and/or circulars
to be issued by the Company under powers delegated by the Board
from time to time.
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The Company has put in place on handling and dissemination of
inside information in a timely manner in such a way so as not to
place any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time
for the market to price the listed securities of the Company with the
latest available information. The Company has appropriate internal
control and reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside
information. Dissemination of inside information of the Company
shall be conducted by publishing the relevant information on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, according to the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Ms. Woo Man Yi. The
Company Secretary assists the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that Board policy and procedures
are followed. She has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional trainings to update her skills and knowledge in 2024.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the
Company gives priority to distributing dividend in cash and shares
its profits with its shareholders. The dividend payout ratio shall be
determined or recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its
absolute discretion after taking into account the Company’s financial
results, future prospects and other factors, and subject to:

the Articles of Association of the Company;

S the applicable restrictions and requirements under the laws of
the Cayman Islands;

- any banking or other funding covenants by which the Company
is bound from time to time;

= the investment and operating requirements of the Company;
and

- any other factors that have material impact on the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles and Associations of the
Company, any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the voting rights,
on a one vote per share basis, in the capital of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
or resolution specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders may put forward proposals at general meeting of the
Company by sending the same to the Company at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong ten days before general
meeting.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office. For the avoidance of doubt,
shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed written
requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be)
to the Company’s head office and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company adheres to high standards with respect to the
disclosure all necessary information to the shareholders in
compliance with GEM Listing Rules. The Company strengthens
its communications with shareholders through various channels
including publication of interim and annual reports, press release
and announcements of the latest development of the Company in its
corporate website in a timely manner.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT
During the year ended 31 December 2024, there is no significant
change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of association.
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ABOUT US

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group” or “we”), are the integrated
financial service and parallel-imported motor vehicles supplier in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (“PRC” or “China”).
We are dedicated to creating a comprehensive financial services
platform which integrates services of financing, brokerage and
financial information.

The Group is principally engaged in the: (i) trading of motor vehicles,
provision of agency services and accessories sourcing in the PRC,
excluding Hong Kong, (ii) trading of listed securities in Hong Kong,
and (i) provision of securities and futures contracts trading services
in Hong Kong.

ABOUT THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (‘ESG Report”)
summarises the environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
initiatives, plans and performances of the Group and demonstrates
its commitment to sustainable development.

Reporting Period

Unless otherwise stated, the ESG Report covers the activities,
challenges and measures with respect to ESG aspects of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Reporting Period” or
“2024”).

Reporting Scope

The reporting scope is consistent with the annual report and is
determined based on the materiality and revenue contribution of the
business segments under the Group’s direct operational control.
The ESG Report covers the overall performance, risks, strategies,
measures and commitment in five areas, namely, corporate
governance, environmental protection, employment practice,
operating practice and community investment of the Group’s
major subsidiaries in the PRC and the office in Hong Kong. ESG
key performance indicators (“KPIs”) data are obtained from these
operations. We will continue to expand the scope of disclosure in the
future when the data collection system of the Group is more refined
and the sustainable development work is enhanced.
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Reporting Framework

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Information relating to the Group’s corporate governance practices
can be found in the Corporate Governance Report of the annual
report.

During the preparation for this ESG Report, the Group has applied
the reporting principles in the ESG Reporting Guide as follow:

Materiality: A materiality assessment was conducted to identify
material issues during the Reporting Period, thereby adopting the
confirmed material issues as the focus for the preparation of the ESG
Report. The materiality of issues was reviewed and confirmed by the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the ESG Working Group (the
“Working Group”). For further details, please refer to the sections
headed “STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT” and “MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT”.

Quantitative: The standards, methodologies and applicable
assumptions used in the calculation of KPIs data were supplemented
by explanatory notes.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the preparation approach
of this ESG Report is consistent with the fiscal year ended 31
December 2023 (“2023”) for comparison. If there are any changes
in the scope of disclosure and calculation methodologies that
may affect comparison with previous reports, explanations will be
provided to the corresponding data.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
Dear Valued Stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the ESG Report
of the Group, which demonstrates our growing commitment to
improving our ESG performance in five aspects, including corporate
governance, environmental protection, employment practice,
operating practices and community investment.

In order to achieve sustainable development, the PRC government
implemented the “Limits and Measurement Methods for Emissions
from Light-Duty Vehicles” (China Phase 6) (GB 18352.6-2016)
(“China 6 Standard”) in July 2020, suggesting more stringent
emission requirements on motor vehicles in the PRC. In view of
uncertain factors such as policy change, the business segment of
trading of motor vehicles of the Group has been affected. The Group
will closely monitor the changes in the business environment and
policy, and capitalise on the opportunities brought by the expansion
of the demand for motor vehicles in time of China’s economic
recovery, so as to stimulate the sales and clear the stocks of motor
vehicles. With the aim of pursuing a sustainable business model,
the Group will also adjust and formulate appropriate business
strategies, strive to complete the process of obtaining certification
administered by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC
(“EE Certificate”) for the trading of China 6 Standard motor vehicles.
As at 31 December 2024, the Group obtained EE Certificate for six
types of China 6 Standard imported motor vehicles, and the rest are
going through the certification process. The Group has been closely
monitoring the certification procedures of imported China 6 Standard
vehicles. To mitigate risks, the Group will also engage other capital
parties as procurement agents and invest in and develop other
businesses to achieve the diversification of the Group’s business.

The Group believes that sustainable development is vital to the earth
and contributes to the long-term prosperity and development of
the Group’s business. Therefore, the Group continues to improve
its governance structure to effectively manage ESG matters
related to the Group. The Board must assess the potential impact
of ESG issues on the overall strategy of the Group, set out ESG
management approach and strategy, and supervise the Group’s ESG
issues. Information about the Group’s ESG governance structure is
stated in the section headed “ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE”.
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To identify and prioritise major ESG issues that have a significant
impact on our operations and stakeholders, we continuously
communicate with internal and external stakeholders. The Board
has delegated the Working Group and hired an independent
third party to conduct materiality assessments. Information
about the stakeholder engagement channels and the materiality
assessment conducted by the Group is stated in the section
headed “STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT” and “MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT” respectively. In order to have a deeper
understanding of stakeholders’ expectations of the Group’s
sustainable development, the Group will further strengthen its
communication with stakeholders and formulate relevant policies
and measures based on their opinions to improve the Group’s ESG
performance.

As an enterprise that upholds corporate social responsibility, the
Group acknowledges the importance of reducing its impact on
the environment. To fulfil the Group’s commitment to corporate
social responsibility and allow the Group’s stakeholders to better
understand the Group’s progress in improving ESG performance,
the Group has set quantifiable environmental targets. These targets
cover aspects of energy conservation, emission reduction and waste
management, with the aim to align with the national vision of carbon
neutrality and enhance corporate reputation. To achieve these
targets, the Group actively implements the principles of sustainable
development and adopts relevant measures at operational levels. To
ensure the effective implementation of these measures, the Board
has delegated the Working Group to collect relevant ESG data, track
and review our performance, and evaluate the Group’s progress
towards the targets. The relevant progress is summarised in the
section headed “Environmental Targets”.

In closing, on behalf of the Board and the management team of the
Group, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our valued
stakeholders for the persistent support, while also expressing my
appreciation to our employees for their valuable contribution to the
development of the Group. Looking forward, the Group will continue
to deepen the integration of ESG concepts into its business strategy
and management system, and operate its business in a more
responsible and sustainable manner in order to create sustainable
value for shareholders and pursue a sustainable future.

Wang Jiawei
Chairman

AT HBMNEBREERHRMNEENRNE
BERAZENEKRESGHE  RATEER
BB FREBB - EFEERRIFEN
HRBHEEILR =S ETEEMN G -BH
RPESHERENAEEEETHNER M
HHENEOREN RHESRINTEE
M BB - RERAMTEENEHE
EEFFEERNBZE ~EBRE—DM
RERFMHENER U2EHERGIEAERE
BUERR 81 > R Ft AN SR B BIESGHR IR ©

FRA—RBRTEEHLEEENEE  ~EH
FABODHEEBHREZENEZR -RE
THREERTELESERAGE WELE
ERFNEBEM T MAEBHEESGRIRE S
ERNFENE ~EBECH TR EENIRIE
BR-BREEHERERERYEERS
HUEBEXKPHNZER BACESR
Z-RBERER AEENBEEEERE
AR EEERA KRBT - SRR
BERENENEN EFTZIRIIFE/N
U ERRIESGEE  RERBHRMNE
BoUFEAERETERERTENER-
HERERBENIREERI—H-

RE ANERRFIEREFTTREEE
o BBRMAEENFDENTMIT UL
FANETIRAERZERFHNESERE
MROBIRE - BEARK > & Bl &S
ESGESRMAEBRENEERR  UE&
BEERAFENSANCERT ARRAE
Bl EREE  BRAIFERR

E=R
S

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2024



ENVIRONMENTAL, SociaL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group has developed an ESG governance structure to ensure
ESG governance aligns with its business strategy focusing on
sustainable development and to integrate ESG management into its
business operations and decision-making process.

The Board holds the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
issues and sets out ESG management approach, strategy, priorities
and objectives. The Board is diverse in its composition and the
members are equipped with the appropriate technical capabilities,
experience, knowledge and perspectives required to supervise the
ESG matters of the Group. In order to better manage the Group’s
ESG performance, related issues and potential risks, the Board
discusses ESG issues collectively, evaluates and determines ESG
related risks and opportunities of the Group, reviews the materiality
of ESG issues, as well as reviews its performance against ESG-
related targets at least once a year. The Board is also responsible
for ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and approving disclosures in the ESG
Report.

To develop systematic management of ESG issues under the
Board’s delegations, the Group has established the Working Group.
The Working Group is composed of core members from various
departments who have relevant expertise in various aspects of ESG
to facilitate the Board’s oversight of ESG matters. The Working
Group has the responsibility for collecting and analysing ESG data,
monitoring and evaluating the Group’s ESG performance, keeping
track of and reviewing the progress made against the Group’s ESG
related targets, and ensuring compliance with ESG-related laws and
regulations. The Working Group collaborates with an independent
third party to assist in conducting materiality assessment and
preparing ESG reports. The Working Group also needs to assist
in assessing and identifying ESG risks and opportunities of the
Group, and ensure the implementation and effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems. The Working Group
arranges meetings at least once a year to evaluate the effectiveness
of current policies and procedures, and formulates appropriate
solutions to improve the overall performance of ESG policies. The
Working Group reports to the Board at least once a year about its
findings, decisions and suggestions.

During the Reporting Period, the Group confirms that it has
established appropriate and effective management policies
and monitoring systems on ESG issues, and confirms that the
disclosures meet the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

As a responsible enterprise, the Group attaches great importance to
communication with stakeholders and their feedback regarding our
business operation and ESG affairs, while proactively developing our
business and improving profitability, to balance the interests of all
parties and foster sustainable development. Therefore, stakeholder
engagement plays an indispensable role in the Group’s continuous
improvement in sustainable development performance. To fully
understand, respond, and address the core concerns of various
stakeholders, we have been maintaining close communication
with key stakeholders, including but not limited to investors and
shareholders, clients, business partners and suppliers, employees,
community, non-governmental organisations (“NGOs”) and media.
We are dedicated to working with our stakeholders to improve
the Group’s ESG performance and create higher value for a larger
community.

By using the diversified cooperation methods and communication
channels shown in the table below, we bring the expectation of our
stakeholders into our operation and ESG strategies.

Stakeholders Communication channels
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Expectations

FinE BEEE HAE

Investors and shareholders ° Annual general meetings and ° Disclosing the latest information in

KREEMKE other general meetings due course
REBFRGREMBKRKRE & RE Ak ERMEN

° Annual reports and interim
reports
FREPEARE

° Announcements and circulars

RNERIBK

° Email
B

° Company website
A B Mk

° Focusing on financial growth,
improving operation efficiency and
creating stable returns
EIEERER - EAKCERERE
Szl

° Reinforcing corporate governance
and risk control
hns& ik 2 B8 K R kg 1

° Complying with relevant laws and
regulations

BTHEBARRIER
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Stakeholders Communication channels Expectations
Fin& BEEE HAEE
Clients ° Customer service hotline and ° Identifying client needs and
E9= emall improving product and service
HRIRB AR B quality
THRERREE-FENSERMER
° Respecting clients’ privacy and
protecting their interests
EERRIMRERERERZ R
Business partners and suppliers ° Supplier meetings and events ° Forging partnership to grow
BIEBH KRR HEE & &G together
. Business cooperation ByUEERGR EERE
72 75 78 B¢
Employees ° Regular management ° Providing safe workplace
=] communications and REZ2ITFIRE
performance review ° Respecting all employees and
TR EIE@EAAN TERRTZ ensuring fair treatment
e Email SEMBEIRERA TR
B . Supporting career growth and
providing internal training
TRETHEZEERRIEHAEIE
sl
Community, NGOs and media ° ESG reports ° Giving back to society and

HEF PRSI B R R e
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promoting self-reliance
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° Fulfilling environmental protection
responsibility
BITIRERESE

o Raising awareness of
environmental protection and
helping the needy, nurturing virtue
and values
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In hope of understanding the views and expectations of stakeholders
on the Group’s ESG performance effectively, we adopt a systematic
approach in conducting the annual materiality assessment. With
reference to the Group’s business development strategy and industry
practices, the Group identified and determined a list of material
ESG issues, which covers five major areas: corporate governance,
environmental protection, employment practice, operating practice
and community investment. The Group prepared a questionnaire
based on the list and invited relevant stakeholders to rate the
potential material issues according to the level of importance of the
ESG issues and their impacts on the economy, environment and
society. The results of the survey were analysed and a materiality
matrix was developed. The materiality matrix and the identified
material topics were reviewed and confirmed by the Board and the
Task Force and disclosed in the ESG Report. During the Reporting
Period, the Group’s materiality matrix is shown below:
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INFLUENCE ON STAKEHOLDERS
ASSESSMENTS AND DECISIONS
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The Group’s Materiality Matrix during the Reporting Period
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o Emissions Control and Climate Change Adaptation 6 Improving Safety Awareness

BEREE I R B R R AR RAZZEH BEFEBR bilie7s:4
9 Waste Management e Training Management @ Customer Privacy Protection @ Community Investment
BEEYER BIlEE BB RE HERKE

@ Use of Resources @ Prevention of Child and Forced Labour @) Advertising and Labeling
HRHRE PrILET REHIET SRR

@ Enmployment Practice © Supply Chain Management @ Anti-corruption and Anti-fraud
IR HrEsEn RESRRAE

SIGNIFICANCE OF ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS High
R R SRS TR =

9 Customer Communication @ Prevention of Money Laundering
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CONTACT US

The Group welcomes opinions and suggestions from stakeholders.
You can provide your valuable advice on the ESG report or the
Group’s performance on sustainable development via:

Address: 16/F, CMA Building, 64-66 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong
Phone: (852) 2297 9900
Fax: (852) 2865 3888
Email: info@sinofortune.hk
A. ENVIRONMENTAL A.
Environmental Targets

B3PIk 4%

S
=]
BE:

B :

To ensure that we are able to effectively implement a
sustainable business model, the Group established a number
of environmental targets in line with its direction and strategic
approach, and will closely monitor and regularly review its
progress against these targets. Relevant data and year-on-year
comparisons are presented in the subsequent sections. The
Group plans to achieve the following targets:

Subject Area
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Target
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Progress

ER

Exhaust Gas Emissions

B R

Gradually reducing the total exhaust
gas emissions intensity by the year
ending 31 December 2026 (“2026"),
using the year ended 31 December
2021 (“2021") as the base year.

The Group has set an additional short-
term target: reducing the total
exhaust gas emissions intensity by
2% in the year ended 31 December
2024 (“2024”), using 2021 as the
base year.
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The Group has achieved the short-term
target in 2024.
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Subject Area
Ji=fi]

8w S

RIE-HERE?

Target
B1E

Progress

ER

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”)
Emissions

Hazardous Wastes
Management

Non-hazardous Wastes
Management

Gradually reducing the total GHG
emissions intensity by 2026, using
2021 as the base year.

The Group has set an additional short-
term target: reducing the total GHG
emission intensity by 2% in 2024,
using 2021 as the base year.

WZE_—FFEEF RNBE_ZT
RESHZAZ S RELBRERSE
HHEERE-

FEBERILETEHER  UZF
T—EREES R TNERE

BERBHMBERE2%-

Due to the business nature, the Group
has not yet set quantifiable targets,
but in order to raise awareness of
waste reduction among employees,
the Group will conduct annual
seminar and other activities related
to waste reduction starting from
2025.

BEREBME AEERFIETE18
BoEBARSEINRERH &%
BN _E_AFESTFHBHRE
LR EEEREE

Gradually reducing the total non-
hazardous wastes intensity by 2026,
using 2021 as the base year.

The Group has set an additional short-
term target: reducing the total non-
hazardous wastes intensity by 2% in
2024, using 2021 as the base year.

WUoE T R R E N
HZAB T RBEREEEYBE -

AEBERILETREHRER  UZE
TFERES RIS THFRRE
EBEEREYVFIEERE2%-

The Group has achieved the short-term
target in 2024.

KAEBDEMR _ S _NERPHIZE -

In the future, the Group will dedicate
more effort in raising awareness
by conducting annual seminar or
participating in activities when the
situation allows.

REEBRFA T AEERGRBE
LERASFRERENSRTEFHU

ReEH-

The Group has achieved the short-term
target in 2024.

REBEER _T _NERPFHZE
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=

Target
B1E

B -HERELBRS

Progress

ER

Energy Management

Gradually reducing the total energy
consumption intensity by 2026,
using 2021 as the base year.

The Group has set an additional short-
term target: reducing the total
energy consumption intensity by 2%
in 2024, using 2021 as the base
year.

Conduct annual seminar and other
activities to raise awareness
of energy conservation among
employees.

NWZBZ—FFEEF RNTTR
HZAIBED BB EEREFERE

FEBERILETEHER  UZF
T—EREES R TNERE
BEERHFEERE2%

SEMBRESEE LUREE T
B

=z b
= A
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The Group has achieved the short-term
target in 2024.

In the future, the Group will dedicate
more effort in raising awareness
by conducting annual seminar or
participating in activities when the
situation allows.

NEBEBEN S NFEEHEERZE.

REEBRFA T AEERGRBE
ZERESFHREBENS AT

== -
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RE-HERE

Subject Area
Ji=fi]

AW E

Target
B1E

Progress

ER

Water Management

Due to limitations in data collection,
the Group has not set quantifiable
targets. The Group will conduct
seminar or participate in activities
such as World Water Day annually
to raise awareness of water
conservation among employees.

In the future, the Group will dedicate
more effort in raising awareness
by conducting annual seminar or
participating in activities when the
situation allows.

RREBRAFA T AEBRERNE
ZERESFRREBEENSREFHU

ReE#H-

KIEEIER EREBERERS KEBEG TS
EER-AEEEBFHESEERS
B FRKEETE LUIESETITHE
HRKE®H -

A1. Emissions

The Group realises that the public and investors are
paying more attention to environmental protection and
corporate social responsibility. Therefore, we always
attach great importance to sound environmental
management and strive to protect the environment to fulfil
the Group’s social responsibility. To minimise pollution and
environmental damage arising from our daily business
operations, we have established the Environmental Policy
and strive to improve the environmental management in
our business process through a series of measures and
comply with the applicable environmental regulations and
standards.

The Group has established environmental management
system and procedures for the business operations in
Hong Kong and the PRC to regulate the exhaust gas,
GHG and non-hazardous wastes generated during
the operation in order to contribute to environmental
protection and to pursue the goal of sustainable
development.

A1,

HER

AEBEHILDRURKREEY
BRMNCEHSEETABER
HEHM-—EERREFNIREE
BERBHREZBRE UBTEE
HEARENTESE - RMHEH
SRRBR - ROHEB—RIE
IEAEXEFBETNRREERE
I8 <7 IR 1T 8 A IR R R A B
MZZE EERKMBEEXEHE
FEEMSARBRKIERESR

o

FEBHBUNEBRTPEAM
WEEXEEFNETHBEREE
BHEMRE HEEEDELE
ZEBERH R EREBIRANE
TEEME  ARBERENFLSR
B EBRERAFBERNER-
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To comply with relevant local laws and regulations and
implement environmental policies, the Group keeps
track of the latest national and regional environmental
protection laws and regulations regularly, and uses
them as a basis to strengthen our environmental
protection measures. The Group strictly abides by the
regulations including the “Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control
of Water Pollution”, “Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste” in the PRC and “Air Pollution
Control Ordinance”, “Waste Disposal Ordinance”, “Water
Pollution Control Ordinance”, “Product Eco-responsibility
Ordinance” in Hong Kong and other legislations regarding

environmental protection in the PRC and Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, there was no incident of
non-compliance with the relevant local environmental
laws and regulations relating to exhaust gas and GHG
emissions, discharges of pollutants into water and land
and generation of hazardous or non-hazardous wastes
that have a significant impact on the Group.

Exhaust Gas Emissions

The Group’s exhaust gas emissions are mainly generated
from the consumption of petrol by vehicles. To mitigate
emissions, the Group actively executes the following
exhaust gas emission reduction measures:

° Regularly maintain and repair vehicles to prevent
them from generating excess exhaust gas emissions
from broken parts and other reasons; and

° Phase out unqualified trucks in accordance with the
local emission regulations.

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR

B -HERELBRS
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Due to the decrease in the number and usage of
vehicles in the Hong Kong branch in 2024, the emission
intensities' of nitrogen oxides (“NOx”), sulphur oxides
(“SOx”), and particulate matter (“PM”) have reduced from
approximately 159.57 g/employee, 4.78 g/employee,
and 11.74 g/employee in 2023 to approximately 127.63
g/employee, 3.95 g/employee, and 9.47 g/employee
in 2024. The performance of exhaust gas emissions is
summarised below:

HR_ZE_NEEBHZNA
BHEMNERBENA L  KNE
Eaat (TNOx ) ~FaEitiy
(TsOx.) Kg@hiy (TPM 1) HEm
FEDRIH_E - =%F4159.57
% BE 478/ BER11.747
/REEETHRE_S_NEY
127.63% / BE 3.95%/EE X
Q.47TR/BE - NEBMEE RHEMN
FRIBHAMAMT -

Type of exhaust gas®*® Unit 2024 2023

B RELE° B (i —E-NE —ER =

NOx kg 4.85 7.34
AR

SOx kg 0.15 0.22
N

PM kg 0.36 0.54
AR

Notes: B

1. As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the total 1. HE_Z_WNE+-B=+—HX

number of employees of the Group was 38 and 46, respectively.
This data is also used to calculate other intensity data.

2. The calculation method of exhaust gas emissions refers to “How
to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.

3. The 20283 figures have been restated following an internal database
review.

TR =F+ZA=+—H K&
ENREREZAESD B H38A K46
AN WHEITERESFEEMEE
ik o

2. BE R BF MBSt B 7505 2 R Ek 3T P 8
(P ERRE - HERELBR
ST RIBEARENIERE
]IESI) -

3. TR CENRBEANBERES
ERETTER

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2024



ENVIRONMENTAL, SociaL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

GHG Emissions

The major sources of GHG emissions of the Group are
direct GHG emissions from the consumption of petrol by
vehicles (Scope 1), energy indirect GHG emissions from
purchased electricity (Scope 2) and other indirect GHG
emissions from employees’ business trips (Scope 3). In
line with the nation’s strategic development of overall
GHG emissions reduction to achieve the sustainable
development goal of energy-saving and carbon reduction,
the Group has been actively reducing GHG emissions
by reducing energy consumption, thereby enhancing
the Group’s reputation. With respect to the emission
sources mentioned above, we actively adopt the following
emission reduction measures:

° Actively adopt emission reduction measures on
vehicles, which is explained in the section “Exhaust
Gas Emissions” in this Aspect;

° Actively adopt environmental protection and energy-
saving measures, which is explained in the section
“Energy Management” in Aspect A2;

° Reduce the frequency of business trips through
electronic communication channels, such as
conference calls and WeChat conferences; and

o Post notices and posters with green messages at
prominent locations in the office to promote the best
practice of environmental management and raise
employees’ awareness of environment protection.

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR

B -HERELBRS
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HREBDXHNEHERELN
REBEENMERTERMLD

As a result of the decrease in vehicle usage by the Hong
Kong branch and the Group’s air travel volume, the total

GHG emissions intensity of the Group has decreased HMZETZ=FMELE AEEHR

by approximately 2.28% compared to 2023. The EREENEETETRTH

performance of GHG emissions is summarised below: 2.28% c AEBNARZE B I
FIBWFMIWT -

Indicator* Unit 2024 2023

it B (i —E-NE —ET_=

Scope 1 — Direct GHG emissions

HE——BRRERBIWK

e Fuel consumption by vehicles tCO2e 27.63 39.51
o EBHEIMEHFE MR CREE

Scope 2 — Energy indirect GHG emissions

#HE - -fEREBRERBIIN

e Purchased electricity tCO2e 36.47 35.33
o SMEEEES WA —|ACHE
Scope 3 — Other indirect GHG emissions
HE=—HMEERERBEW

il

58

e Business travel tCO2e 17.12 26.11

o FRARB LI R W—EERE =

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1, 2 and 3)  tCO2e 81.22 100.95
BERBHREEZ (@EE— k=) m—EkE2

Total GHG emissions intensity tCO2e/employee 2.14 2.19
AERBHMRETE BoEtREE, B

Notes: et .

4. GHG emission data are presented in terms of carbon dioxide 4. BAERBHERERDZ_SRE

equivalent and are based on, including but not limited to,
“The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources Institute
and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development, the
“Announcement on the Release of Electricity Carbon Footprint
Factors for the Year 2023” issued by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the PRC, the global warming potential values from
the “Sixth Assessment Report” issued by Intergovernmental Panel
on Climate Change, “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix
2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock
Exchange and the “Sustainability Report 2023” released by Hong
Kong Electric.

B2 U2REBFEFRIER
BRMEARERTFERRLE
EERTENCREERBRERT
T hEGHERERE) PEE
BIRBHEMNGINER -T2 =

BARETAFHENAE)
FERBNBREREEEMAINE
FIZ 8 &P 3 M AY (B R RET AR
=) WBIRIKFR T AE (B ~ B 3P 8
R (N A EFHIRE T EREBR
HoMER T IRBEARENIERE
RIS RBEBNREARAF
HEN(CE_=FrARFEEER

e

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2024



ENVIRONMENTAL, SociaL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Sewage Discharge

Given the nature of the Group’s business, it does not
generate any industrial wastewater in the course of
operation, but only domestic sewage. Water supply and
discharge are solely controlled by the office building
management, of which it is not feasible for the Group to
obtain water consumption and discharge data or sub-
metering from the relevant management office. Therefore,
the Group cannot provide statistical data on water
consumption and discharge. However, we believe that
the domestic sewage discharge amount of the Group is
normal and reasonable.

Waste Management

The Group adheres to the principles of waste
management and is dedicated to the reasonable
management and disposal of wastes generated from our
business activities. The Group maintains a high standard
in reducing wastes, educates employees the importance
of sustainable development and provides them with
relevant supports to improve their skills and knowledge in
sustainable development.

Hazardous Wastes

Due to its business nature, the Group does not generate
any significant amount of hazardous wastes during daily
operation, and therefore no relevant targets have been
set. Nevertheless, we are devoted to waste reduction.
If any hazardous waste is generated, the Group must
appoint a qualified chemical waste collector to handle
such waste to comply with relevant environmental laws
and regulations. Besides, we will conduct annual seminar
and other activities to raise awareness of waste reduction
among employees, and reduce the generation of e-waste
by various methods such as donating used electronic
gadgets to charitable organisations.

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR
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Non-hazardous Wastes

The major non-hazardous wastes generated during
our operation is paper. In addition to requiring our
employees to properly dispose of such office wastes
and encouraging them to sort them before disposal, we
arrange for staff to handle them centrally. With regard to
paper consumption in the office, we have implemented

the following measures:

° Use more electronic documents and establish

electronic work processes;

. Recycle used paper;

° Try to avoid printing and copying documents; and

° Try to print or copy on both sides.

With effective control of paper consumption, the Group’s
non-hazardous wastes intensity has remained at similar
level compared to 2023. The performance of non-
hazardous wastes generation is summarised below:

EZERY
RMPEEBRETELENTIEES
BRYAMR HFKRTEKXRE
ITZERERBBETIERER
DEREN  TRPFAER—E
B HHMAEEAMK HMAE
=ik il

e ZMABEFRE BEUBFI
B

o RIREAMEK ;

¥

s RBEBRINENREEXM

B

X

REMCBEEIENSFTH -

BRABNIEGRERAE AEE
BEEEREYEETERAR_E
TEFERTERAOKE - AEH
HNEESEENHRRREHRLR D
S G

Types of wastes Unit 2024 2023

B W EE R B (i —E-NE .

Total non-hazardous wastes

BEEEYVES

e Paper tonnes 0.27 0.39
R i

Total non-hazardous wastes intensity tonnes/employee 0.01 0.01

BEBEEYEERE mEBE
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Use of Resources

The Group strictly complies with relevant local laws and
regulations on environmental protection. It formulated the
Environmental Policy and cooperated with the rules of the
buildings where its offices are located, in order to achieve
energy-saving and consumption reduction, thus minimise
the negative environmental impact of our business
operation.

With the aim of achieving greater energy efficiency and
reducing unnecessary consumption of resources we
reviewed the business operation process regularly, carry
out improvement measures for effective use of water,
electricity and other resources, reduce or even stop the
use of wasteful or environmentally polluting products.

Energy Management

The Group’s major energy consumption is electricity
consumed in office and petrol consumed by vehicles. To
uphold the Group’s commitment to energy conservation,
aside from energy-saving measures for vehicles described
in section “Exhaust Gas Emissions” under Aspect A1, the
Group has established system to promote the green office
culture to achieve the objective of electricity-saving and
efficient use of electricity. Relevant measures are listed
below:

° Use lighting system with low energy consumption
feature, such as LED lamps;

° Limit the use of air-conditioning to lower electricity
consumption;

° Encourage employees to turn off their computers
when they are away for long periods and put them
on hibernating or sleeping mode when they are out
for lunch breaks;

° Enhance the maintenance and repairment of air
conditioners and computers to ensure the best
condition of all electronic devices and the efficient
use of electricity; and

° Post power saving tips at office power switches to
remind employees to turn off unnecessary power.

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR
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The Group will review the effectiveness of these measures
from time to time and make adjustments according to the
operation condition to improve the efficiency of the use
of resources. With these energy-saving measures, the
employees’ awareness of energy conservation has been
increased.

Due to the reduced usage of vehicles of the Hong Kong
branch, petrol consumption of the Group has decreased
compared to 2023. The total energy consumption
intensity of the Group has reduced by approximately
3.96% compared to 2023. The energy consumption
performance is summarised below:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SocIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B -HHERELBHRS

7 & B R A B AR 5 b 23 i RS
PR RS > I (A FE I B R T A PR
BOLEERABREAYEXN
B -ZBZEHOMRIENR B
ITHHNERNERRURES

HMREBDXEWERENRE
Do REBNTURBEEERR
T FRD - AEEBERE
EREER-ZZE_=ZFTEY
3.96% > A EEBYAERHFERIR
B

Types of energy Unit 2024 2023

AEiRTELE i —T-ME —ET_=

Direct energy consumption?®

B RHFES

e Petrol MWh 100.36 143.97
YU JE BB

Indirect energy consumption

25RO FE

e Purchased electricity MWh 56.05 53.15
SNEBEE S JK R B

Total energy consumption MWHh 156.41 197.12

BERAEFER JK LB

Total energy consumption intensity MWh/employee 4.12 4.29

EREEERE KEF B2

Notes: e

5. The unit conversion method of energy consumption data is (& AR HRESBNEMRE S ETVR

formulated according to the “Energy Statistics Manual” released by
International Energy Agency.

BERIERBFT M2 (BERBEF
18 ) PR T
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Water Management

The Group’s water consumption is mainly for domestic
use in the office area. Due to the geographical location
of the Group’s operations, the Group does not have any
issues in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

As most of the offices of the Group are solely controlled
by the building management in terms of water supply and
discharge, it is not feasible for such management office
to provide water consumption and discharge data or sub-
metering for an individual unit, and the Group believes
that only providing data for the individual office of the
Group does not reflect the actual water consumption.
Therefore, total water consumption data is not disclosed
in this ESG Report. To reduce water consumption, the
Group has put up posters or promotional materials in
prominent locations in the offices to promote water
conservation.

Use of Packaging Materials
Due to business nature, the Group does not sell any
physical product involve the use of packaging materials.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Despite that the Group’s major operations do not have
a significant impact on the environment and natural
resources, we, as a responsible corporate, are committed
to minimising the negative impact of our business
to the environment by assessing the environmental
risks of our operations and formulating an appropriate
Environmental Policy in the hope of contributing to
environment protection. In addition to abiding by relevant
environmental laws and regulations and the international
standards, we strive to achieve environmental
sustainability goals by incorporating the concept of
environmental and natural resource protection into our
internal management and daily operation activities.
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Raising Environmental Awareness

We are convinced that in addition to strictly requiring
employees to implement the environmental protection
measures formulated by the Group, we need to
proactively promote environmental awareness among
our employees to effectively enhance our environmental
protection standards. Therefore, the Group reviews
its Code of Conduct, issues environmental guidelines
and notices to its employees and shares relevant
environmental information such as green office from
time to time. We will also consider participating in more
feasible and appropriate activities to help our employees
increase their awareness of the environment and natural
resources.

Indoor Air Quality

The Group is dedicated to providing our employees
with a comfortable and green working environment by
constantly monitoring and measuring the indoor air quality
of the workplace. We have equipped the office with
air purification equipment, cleaned the air-conditioning
system, including air filters and air duct, and selected
products low or zero in volatile organic compounds, etc.
These measures can help avoid the blockage of vents
and exhaust pipes by filtering out pollutants and dust,
thereby maintain satisfactory indoor ventilation, indoor air
quality, and proper system operation.
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A4. Climate Change

Climate change poses escalating risks and challenges to
the global economy, and such risks may negatively impact
the Group’s financial and motor vehicles business. As a
result, the Group is aware of the importance of identifying
and mitigating any major impacts caused by climate
change. Pursuant to the International Recommendations
from Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures
(“TCFD”) established by the Financial Stability Board, the
management of the Group has evaluated and recognised
the impact of climate-related risks on the Group’s
business and corresponding opportunities. Based upon
the evaluation, the Group has integrated climate risks
into its enterprise risk management process to manage
and review climate-related risks and seize relevant
opportunities. With reference to the risk categorisation
by TCFD, the identified climate-related risks of the Group
and corresponding actions taken to manage them are as
follows:

Physical Risks

The increasing frequency and severity of extreme weather
events such as extreme cold or extreme heat, storms,
rainstorms and typhoons, could lead to an increased
risk of power shortages, interrupt the supply chain and
damage the Group’s assets, disrupting the operation of
the Group’s offices and resulting in reduced revenue,
as well as increasing the cost of repairing or restoring
damaged assets. These events could also disrupt the
work of employees and even cause casualties. As a
countermeasure, the Group has formulated Disaster
Recovery Plan for emergencies so that loss can be
reduced or avoided when extreme weather events affect
the Group’s operating sites. The Group will identify these
risks and prioritise those that may have a significant
impact to take precautionary measures in the first place.
At the same time, the Group will examine the possibility
of a change of business model to reduce or avoid these
serious effects on business operations.
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Transition Risks

To achieve sustainable development, governments
are enacting climate-related legislation or tightening
regulations to support the global vision of
decarbonisation. For example, the PRC government
has started to implement the China 6 Standard, which
imposes more stringent emission requirements on motor
vehicles in the PRC and has affected the business of
motor vehicles trading segment of the Group. The Group
will closely monitor the certification process of imported
China 6 Standard motor vehicles, and capitalise on the
opportunities brought by the expansion of the demand for
motor vehicles in a time of China’s economic recovery, to
stimulate the sales and clear the stocks of motor vehicles.
The Group is striving to complete the process of obtaining
EE Certificate for China 6 Standard motor vehicles. As at
31 December 2024, the Group obtained EE Certificate
for six types of China 6 Standard imported motor
vehicles, and the rest are still undergoing the certification
process. With the aim of pursuing a sustainable business
model, the Group will adjust and formulate appropriate
business strategies, to mitigate risks, the Group will also
engage other capital parties as procurement agents and
invest in and develop other businesses to achieve the
diversification of the Group’s business.

Besides, the Stock Exchange has required listed
companies to enhance climate-related disclosures in their
ESG reports, which may result in increased compliance
costs. Failure to meet the climate change compliance
requirements may expose the Group to risks of claims
and lawsuits. Corporate reputation may also decline.
The Group will regularly monitor existing and emerging
climate-related trends, policies and regulations to avoid
reputational risks due to delayed response. In addition, in
order to reduce the Group’s environmental impact and to
comply with the requirements of the Stock Exchange, the
Group has set targets to reduce energy consumption and
GHG emissions. The Group will continue to assess the
effectiveness of the Group’s actions to address climate
change and enhance its resilience against climate-related
issues.
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B. SOCIAL

B1.

Employment

The Group believes that human resources are the Group’s
most valuable asset and the core of its competitive
advantage, as well as the foundation for corporate
sustainable development. Therefore, we are dedicated
to improving our employment system in order to attract,
cultivate and retain talents. Besides, the Group adheres
to the people-oriented management approach and
has developed an Employee Manual to standardise
the employment policies and codes to ensure that
our employees clearly understand their rights and
responsibilities, and to respect and protect the legitimate
rights and interests of every employee. By creating a
harmonious and warm working atmosphere, the Group
makes every employee feel cared for and valued by the
Group.

The Group has complied with all laws and regulations
related to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare, including but not limited to the
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China” and the
“Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and the “Employment Ordinance” of Hong Kong, and
other existing laws and regulations. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was not aware of any incident of
non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to
employment that had a significant impact on the Group.
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As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 38 full-time BE_Z_ME+"A=+—
employees (as at 31 December 2023: 46 full-time H A&EEBEAHI8HE2HES
employees) and the composition is shown below: BE_ZE_=ZF+"B=+—
H:46%2BES) HEE o0
B
Number of employees Percentage
BEEA#Y BSL
2024 2023 2024 2023
Indicator it —ECNE —_T=4 ZBZNMFE —=T_=
By gender LU BIEI
Male B4 17 23 45.00% 50.00%
Female pegis 21 23 55.00% 50.00%
By age group MEER AR B2
<31 <31 6 6 16.00% 13.00%
31-39 31-39 7 11 18.00% 24.00%
40-49 40-49 10 10 27.00% 22.00%
50-59 50-59 7 8 18.00% 17.00%
>59 >59 8 11 21.00% 24.00%
By geographical location D& &
Chongging HE 10 10 26.00% 22.00%
Shenzhen 3l 19 20 50.00% 43.00%
Hong Kong &8 9 16 24.00% 35.00%
By employee category MEB%ERIE 5
Administrative staff THEEAS 18 19 47.00% 41.00%
Other staff HMET 20 27 53.00% 59.00%
Recruitment, Promotion, Remuneration and Dismissal HEFE ST F BN R E
We value talents and regard them as our most valuable EMERAL HEIARES
and core assets, uphold the principle of fairness, REZOHNEBEE BERBFUA
impartiality and openness employment in recruiting F-RE~AHNFEEREFERLD
talents to provide sufficient talent reserves for the Group’s HEEFSAT AXRERSER
various businesses and strengthen the competitiveness RERIM AT HE ERER
of our business. After employees’ appraisal, the Group BEN AEERRBRETHNIE
determines employees’ salaries, benefits and promotion HE-EETEXRBE-£E&T
opportunities based upon their job nature, experience, HIER RBE T ZEBE
work performance, results and market condition. The B BRI BT E o AEERE
Group guarantees fair treatment of employees and ETHINRAFENHEF mwEHIE
prevents discrimination based on gender, race, religion, SETRAMR Bk T8 F#5
age, marital and family status, disability or any other SR R R EAR R BEREAE
grounds. MR ATE R AR
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In accordance with related laws and regulations,
we clearly stated the remuneration packages of our
employees in our Employee Manual. Apart from basic
salary, the Group also offers employees with their benefits
and rights, which include but not limited to Mandatory
Provident Fund, social insurance, directors and officer’s
liability insurance and medical benefits, statutory and
additional annual leave, sick leave, parental leave,
allowance and severance pay. For employees in the PRC,
the Group pays “Five Social Insurance and One Housing
Fund” in accordance with the law, including endowment
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
employment injury insurance, maternity insurance and
housing provident fund to protect employees’ social
insurance entitlements. In addition, the Group complies
with the relevant employment ordinance and guidance.
If employees need to be dismissed, we will follow the
procedures and provide reasonable compensation to
the dismissed employees. The relevant provisions on
termination of the employment relationship have been set
out in the employment contract of every staff.

During the Reporting Period, the employee turnover
rate® of the Group was approximately 21.43% (2023:
approximately 6.25%) and the composition is shown as
follows:

B -HERELBRS

HZPRBERZERRER  EB
IFMPIREEEAFHFMET
Ao RERHM AEBEITARMH
ETHEMkER  SFEEARER
BEMEAEE - HERE-EF
REEEETRBRBEEH A
EREHNFER BB -BREB &
BEMKRENEST - HIPEA
BB T > A& B K% A PSR
THE—%)  BIRIRRE - BR
R~ REFRE-THERE LS
REUAREEATE  REET
EXHEFREBEFE UL AEE
BTHEBEREAIES R
BET - HMPAGERAERE
WHHERE B TFHEENE
18 o T AR B (2 18 B A BV AE BE 15 XX
BEHINEEINREESO -

RSB AEBNEERL
KM A/01.43% (ZE =% . 4
6.25%) » HE|DWT -

Employee turnover rate’

BERKE
2024 2023

Indicator 1515 —E_lF —E-=
By gender DU R & 3

Male B 30.00% 417%

Female pegis 13.64% 8.33%
By age group VS FENE 1 Ps)

<31 <31 - =

31-39 31-39 - =

40-49 40-49 18.18% 9.09%

50-59 50-59 12.50% -

>59 >59 60.00% 16.67%
By geographical location D& &

Chonggqing BB - -

Shenzhen ol 10.26% 9.52%

Hong Kong 58 56.00% 5.88%
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Notes:

6. The overall employee turnover rate is calculated by dividing the
total number of employees leaving employment during the year by
the average number of employees at the beginning and the end of
the year, then multiply by 100%.

7. The employee turnover rate for each category is calculated by
dividing the number of employees leaving employment in the
specified category during the year by the average number of
employees in the specified category at the beginning and end of
the year, then multiply by 100%.

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination

The Group understands the value of a diverse and
professional team of talents. We are dedicated to
developing and maintaining an inclusive and cooperate
workplace culture where all staff can thrive. The
Group is devoted to providing equal opportunity for all
employees in all aspects of employment and prevent
any discrimination, physical or verbal harassment in the
workplace based on gender, race, religion, age, marital
and family status, disability or any other grounds. To
ensure a fair and equal protection for all employees, the
Group has zero-tolerate to any form of workplace sexual
harassment or bullying.

Communication Channel

The Group attaches importance to employees’
communication. Therefore, we have established various
communication channels to encourage employees to express
their views and facilitate communication between management
and employees. We also improve business operation and
management policies to enhance operational efficiency. Also,
we organise group activities regularly such as staff dinner to
strengthen communication among employees and increase
their sense of belongings towards the Group.
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B2. Health and Safety

The Group’s operation does not involve any high-risk
activities. The Group highly values employees’ health and
safety and is devoted to protecting our employees’ safety
by providing a safe workplace. According to industry
practices and regulations, we formulate work safety
guidelines to ensure the cleanliness and tidiness of the
workplace, eliminate any potential health and safety risks,
and strictly implement relevant measures.

We strictly comply with the “Labour law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Treatment of Occupational
Diseases”, “Fire Control Law of the People’s Republic
of China” of the PRC, and the “Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance” of Hong Kong and other relevant
laws and regulations. In the past three years (including
the Reporting Period), there was no significant incident
of safety and work-related fatalities, and nor did it pay
any claims or compensation to its employees for these
reasons. During the Reporting Period, there was (i) no lost
working days due to work-related injuries were recorded
(2023: Nil); (i) the work-related fatality rate was 0%; and
(iii) the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
with health and safety laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group.

Improving Safety Awareness

The Group complies with related working safety
guidelines and constantly educates and reminds
employees of the importance of work health and safety.
The Group provides employees with relevant information
on crime prevention and emergency response through
training, promotions, drills and regular safety inspections.
We also coordinate with other organisations and property
management company of the office building, and
participate in regular fire drills to raise employees’ safety
and fire prevention awareness. In addition, our Employee
Manual clearly states the working safety guidelines
which are in accordance with the law and regulations.
If there are any violations of the guidelines, we will take
appropriate disciplinary actions or legal proceedings
against the staff to raise employees’ health and safety
awareness during work.
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B3.
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Physical and Mental Health

We care for our employees, especially for their mental
health. We encourage our employees to achieve work-life
balance and promote team cohesion, relieve stress and
create a harmonious working environment through social
activities. Meanwhile, we provide our employees with
information about health and safety, aiming to improve
their health consciousness.

Development and Training

The Group believes that employees can facilitate
the Group’s sustainable development and maintain
the Group’s core value and competitiveness. Hence,
the Group is committed to foster employees’ growth
and development, and has specified requirements
for continuous training in its Employee Manual. We
cater to the needs of employees at all levels through
diversified training models, including induction and
management training, in order to improve the quality
of service provided by employees. In addition, we offer
employees comprehensive and various on-the-job
training programmes and professional training to improve
their quality, qualifications and skills and stimulate their
potential. We also encourage our staff to discuss with
management and supervisors on their promotion and
career objective, and to attend business-related training.
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Training Management

The Group’s management is responsible to draw up
the training program annually and keep training records
in order to regulate training management and arrange
related professional training programs. The management
also conducts a regular review of the effectiveness of
different training programs to improve the efficiency
and quality of the Group’s training system and improve
employees’ working performances and efficiency.
The Group also provides subsidies and benefits to
encourage employees to participate in some external
training programs. In accordance with the annual training
program, the Group evaluates and monitors its training
programs and arrange suitable training courses for
different employees to help them reach their full potential.

Training Programmes

The Group arranges professional training and
development programs, including expertise of financial
service and information technology, training on customer
service and product knowledge, regulatory seminars
and guidance, professional training on anti-corruption
and other relevant training programmes. We also highly
encourage the Directors and senior management to
participate in the training on the Listing Rules on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange and corporate governance in
order to continuously enhance the Group’s internal control
and corporate governance level. We also encourage
accounting and secretarial staff to update their relevant
professional knowledge regularly.
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During the Reporting Period, the percentage of
employees trained® of the Group was approximately

50.0% (20283:

approximately 52.2%), and the

average training hours completed per employee® was
approximately 1.21 hours (2023: approximately 3.59
hours). The breakdown for employees trained and the
average training hours by gender and employee category

it

HHEE AEENZIEES

B A50.0% (CBE =4 :
H52.2%) BRHEBTHRZI
B EHERECAA1.21/NE (T
=5 #9859\ o IR K&
BEENBDNZIREPMAR
FHEZHRFHEBEANT

is as follows:
Breakdown for Average
employees trained™ training hours''
Sl SRR FEgZeFE
2024 2023 2024 2023
Indicator I51E —E@NE T4 ZEZNE —F--—F
By gender DUt BB
Male B4 36.84% 41.67% 1.14 SR
Female pegies 63.16% 58.33% 3.17 3.61
By employee category MEB%ERIE 5
Administrative staff THEEAE 47.37% 41.67% 1.78 3.84
Other staff HMBET 52.63% 58.33% 3.00 3.41
Notes: et -
8. The overall percentage of employees trained is calculated by 8. HZINEEBDEREFRESZI

10.

11.

74

dividing the total number of employees who took part in training
during the year by the total number of employees at the end of the
year, then multiply by 100%.

The average training hours completed per employee is calculated
by dividing the total number of training hours during the year by the
total number of employees at the end of the year.

The breakdown for employees trained by category is calculated
by dividing the number of employees in the specified category
who took part in training during the year by the total number of
employees who took part in training during the year, then multiply
by 100%.

The average training hours by category is calculated by dividing the
number of training hours for employees in the specified category
during the year by the number of employees in the specified
category at the end of year.

BEAMBUFRQEEAY B
T LL100% 5 o

SnEAZRBNOTHEHRR
£ PO T A B BB DL SRR AR R A
CHED
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Labour Standards

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group strictly complies with the “Regulation on
Labour Security Supervision”, the “Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China” and “Labour Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China” of the PRC, as well
as the “Employment Ordinance” of Hong Kong, and
has formulated internal guidelines and labour policies
with reference to international labour standards. During
the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any
significant non-compliance of laws and regulations related
to prevention of child and forced labour, and there were
no incidents of discrimination involving race, religion, age,
disability, etc.

The Group requires all new employees to provide true and
accurate personal identification information. All personal
information, including identity card and bank accounts,
will be strictly scrutinised by our recruiters. The Group has
established a refined recruitment process for checking
candidates’ background and formal reporting procedures
to handle any exceptional cases. The Group also
conducts self-audits and inspections on a regular basis to
prevent child labour and forced labour.

In addition, the Group’s employees work overtime on
a voluntary basis to avoid any violation of the labour
standards and protect employee’s legal rights and
interests. The Group also prohibits any punitive measures,
management practices and behaviours involving
verbal abuse, physical punishment, oppression, sexual
harassment (including inappropriate languages, postures
and physical contact), etc. against its employees for any
reason. The Group also avoids engaging suppliers with
known records of using child labour and forced labour in
their operations.

The recruitment and human resources procedures are
closely monitored under the Group’s human resources
management scheme to prevent any employment of
child labour, forced labour, or any discrimination by
race, religion, age or disability. The Group will conduct
investigations, punishment or dismissal of relevant
employees immediately when any non-compliance is
being discovered. If necessary, the Group will further
improve the labour mechanism against illegal behaviours.
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B5. Supply Chain Management B5. {HfESEEIE

As the Group is principally engaged in finance-related
businesses, it purchased stationery, paper, computers
and other office stationery but did not enter any long-
term or bulk purchase agreements with any suppliers
during the Reporting Period. It did not engage major
suppliers for the provision of products, raw materials and
services, nor did it take part in any negotiation between
its corporate or institutional clients and their suppliers.
Two of the Group’s subsidiaries purchased motherboards,
modules, display modules, batteries, cases and vehicles
from its suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has engaged a
total of 21 suppliers (2023: 18 suppliers). The number of
suppliers by geographic region is as follows.
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2024 2023
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Overseas &b 1 1

To manage potential environmental and social risks in its
supply chain, the Group has established a stringent and
standardised procurement system and supplier selection
process, and has implemented relevant practices relating
to engaging suppliers to all suppliers within the reporting
scope.

Procurement Mechanism

We promote fair and open competition and aim to
develop long-term relationships based on mutual trust,
and the Group’s subsidiaries have strictly complied with
the “Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and other related laws and regulations during the
procurement. Our suppliers are required to work in a
responsible manner, and comply all relevant regulations,
international treaties and contractual responsibilities.
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The Group has a set of control procedures and codes
of conduct for the procurement process to monitor the
procurement activities of relevant personnel and strictly
prohibit any practices that are against business ethics.
We closely communicate with our subsidiaries and require
them to carefully manage the relationship with suppliers
and business partners in avoidance of transfer of interests
or exploitation of suppliers.

The Group expects suppliers to meet its standards in
terms of environment, society, corporate governance,
business ethics, etc. The Group will evaluate the
environmental and social risks of suppliers’ operation
and business before entering any long-term business
relationship with potential suppliers, to ensure suppliers’
compliance with trade laws, relevant environmental and
social regulations as well as the other requirements, and
to examine the supplier's awareness in each of these
areas. The Group is concerned about the integrity of
suppliers and partners and will only select those with a
good business track record without any material non-
compliance or unethical behaviours.

Additionally, the Group endeavours to support local
economies and prioritises the procurement from local and
regional suppliers to lower the carbon footprint during
transportation. The Group also gives priority to suppliers
that use environmentally preferable products and
services in the selection process, and strives to minimise
potential environmental and social risks in the supply
chain. The Group will continue to review its supply chain
periodically with regard to the suppliers’ performance and
environmental and social standards. Any material violation
of laws and regulations may lead to the termination of
supplier contracts.
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Product Responsibility

The Group’s products and services include securities
and futures contracts trading service, and sales of motor
vehicles, provision of agency services and accessories
sourcing. As high-quality products and services can help
build a strong corporate reputation, we are dedicated to
maintaining high-level service and product quality through
internal control. We maintain on-going communication
with our customers to ensure that we understand
and meet their demands and expectation, as well as
understand their level of satisfaction to improve our
service quality.

We strictly comply with all relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests”, “Advertisement Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, “Measures for the Administration of Internet
Advertising”, “Product Quality Law of the People’s
Republic of China” of the PRC, as well as the “Trade
Descriptions Ordinance” of Hong Kong on customers
protection. During the reporting period, the Group was
not aware of any material non-compliance with any
laws and regulations in relation to the health and safety,
advertising, labeling, and privacy matters of the products
and services provided, as well as the related remedial
methods, and no material complaints were received in
relation to products and services (2023: Nil). Customer
satisfaction has reached our expected level. Due to the
nature of the Group’s business, no recall of products due
to health and safety reasons is required, and disclosures
about product recall procedures are not applicable.

Customer Communication

The Group strives to provide our customers with
competitive products and services with standardised
service quality, humanised service process and regulated
service management. We stress the importance of clients’
needs and collect their opinions through our customer
manager, and regards them as the foundation for the
continuous improvement of our business. Customers can
submit their complaints via email, phone or in person.
The process is confidential to protect all parties’ interest
and ensure fairness and proper documentation of the
process.
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The Group has formulated Client Complaint Policies and
Procedures in its Operations Manual to allow relevant
departments to carry out a detailed investigation, actively
monitor handling process, coordinate and communicate
with all involved parties, and properly respond to
complaints. We strive to understand the truth and root
causes of complaints made by our customers and identify
responsible parties and areas for improvement in order to
enhance the Group’s service quality, as well as to retain
customers by earning their loyalty towards the Group’s
service and to facilitate the Group’s future development.

Customer Privacy Protection

Due to its business nature, the Group handles a large
amount of customer personal or corporate information.
The Group attaches high importance to safeguarding
clients’ interests and privacy and strives to maintain and
protect personal data. Through adopting a high standard
of security and confidentiality towards customer privacy
protection, we comply with regulatory requirements
regarding data privacy. We have formulated relevant
guidelines and handbook to regulate employees’ handling
of personal data of clients. We also arrange training
from time to time to raise the employees’ awareness
of privacy protection. According to our data protection
policy, we have to comply with the Private Policy
Statement and notify our customers the general policies
and practices of personal information collection, storage
and utilisation. The Group maintains and reviews all
customer communication channels to obtain feedback,
handle complaints in a timely manner so as to conduct
inspections, monitor and improve customer service
system.
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Intellectual Property Rights

Despite intellectual property rights are not considered a
material aspect to the Group due to the Group’s business
nature, the Group has established relevant policies to
govern the information technology management within
the Group. The IT Department is in charge of securing
proper licenses for software, hardware and information
the Group uses in its business operation. Duplication or
downloading of information, software, and images from
the internet must be approved by relevant department.
Furthermore, the Group closely monitors and prevents
any infringement behaviour such as counterfeit
trademarks in the market. The Group will continue to
monitor to ensure that its intellectual property rights are
not being infringed upon.

Aavertising and Labelling

Due to its business nature, the Group conducts limited
advertising campaigns and therefore does not involve any
significant advertising-related risks. Nevertheless, in terms
of the advertisement of products and services, we strictly
regulate and monitor products and services promotion
to ensure that they comply with advertising and
labelling related laws and regulations. Such marketing
and promotion must accurately reflect the quality and
performance of the Group’s products and services in
order to let clients to “get what they see”.

Anti-corruption

The Group believes that a clean corporate culture is the
key to our continued success. Therefore, we stress on
anti-corruption efforts and policy formulation, and strictly
prohibit any corruption activities. The Group strictly
complies with “Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, “Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of China”
of the PRC and the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance”
of Hong Kong. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not identify any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering nor any concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices (2023: Nil).
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The Board adopts “zero-tolerance” attitude towards
corruption and fraud while such standard has been
outlined in our Operations Manual and Employee Manual.
The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and morale
standards of corruption and proactively maintains a good
corporate governance and risk control to protect the
interests of stakeholders and develop corporate culture
with integrity, openness and transparency.

Prevention of Money Laundering

To maintain the Group’s integrity and credibility, we
forbid any activities related to money laundering and
terrorist. The Finance Department is responsible for the
evaluation of the risk of money laundering in our business
operation annually, handle any suspicious cases of money
laundering, review all applicable policies and guidelines
published by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority and
other financial regulators on a regular basis and evaluate
the effectiveness on the enforcement of regulations in the
Group’s business operation.

The Group arranges anti-corruption related training for
its directors and employees at least once a year. During
the Reporting Period, 7 directors and 5 employees have
attended a total of approximately 14 hours (2023: 10.5
hours) and 10 hours (2023: 40 hours) of anti-corruption
training seminars, respectively. Such training aims to
develop their anti-corruption awareness and good
professional conduct and to comply with the regulations
in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Whistleblowing Mechanism

The Group educates all employees on anti-corruption
awareness and encourages them to report any corruption
or fraud activities. We promptly conduct inspections
and take necessary measures while protecting the
identity of the whistle-blower to prevent any conflict of
interest or behaviours that will bring harm to the Group
and the stakeholders. The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of its whistleblowing mechanism.
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Community Investment

The Group is devoted to becoming a responsible
corporate citizen and offering appropriate resources to
the needy in the community. We believe that the Group
and our employees can build positive values through
charitable activities and become socially-responsible
citizens.

We encourage and support our staff to participate in
voluntary activities in their spare time and formulate
relevant internal guidelines to arrange environmental
and social service activities for the Group’s employees.
Through participating in those community activities,
we hope that our employees can contribute to the
communities, thereby enhancing the employees’ sense of
caring while developing a sense of social responsibility.

We donate to different organisations and engage in social
activities to fulfil our social responsibility as a corporate
citizen and develop a better public image. The Group
seeks to cooperate with different charitable organisations,
and at the same time be aware of the difficulties and
needs of society and vulnerable groups, aiming to give
back to society and promote social harmony.
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Section/Declaration

S8 &

Governance Structure
BIRA%RE

Reporting Principles

FEHRREA
Reporting Boundary
bE ¥R &0 &

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

Description

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

ESGEAMRE

ABOUT THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT - Reporting Framework

FARNIRE R ERARSE —HREER

ABOUT THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT - Reporting Scope

FNIRE - HEREARSE —REHE

Section/Declaration

EBE-—REER
A 2 48 IS 1R F it -0 L]
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEA1 : HER
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
(@) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
— MR R EHERRAERESN BRI HBE S -AE HRY

RESERYNEESH
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b) BITHETABERTENERERRRA
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
EBmEm-—fRikER

RASR AR RUISIR $is it =38 1

KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions Emissions — Exhaust Gas

B B AR R 1RAT A

KPI' A1.2

B R R IE1RA.2

KPI A1.3

B S AR FE1RA1.3

KPI A1.4

BB IE1RA 4

KPI A1.5

B A IEIRA1.5

KPI A1.6

BB EMIEIRA1.6

data.

PRI IR R R AR R HE I B o

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

B (#E1) RERERE (@#E2) RERBIERE U
MAET ) & (WMBR) BE GIIUSESEN -§ER
Hist &) o

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FMELABEEEYRE UUME &k (MER) BE
BN SESE N - BIERKHE) o

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FMEEEEEEYRE UUMEE &k (ER) BE
BN SESE N - BIERKHE) o

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.

BRI IR E B Rk A ERELEBRATRE
B ER -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HMEIEEERBEEBEEYN G REMPIEI LN
BEEE R K7 EDE L BRI & B o

Emissions

PR —BE REF IR

Emissions — GHG Emissions

Y —BERETR

Not applicable — explained

NER-BRE

Emissions — Waste Management

B - BEEYEIE

Environmental Targets, Emissions -
Exhaust Gas Emissions, GHG
Emissions

RIEEE B — B R
E R

Environmental Targets, Emissions —
Waste Management

RIEER Y -BEEYEE
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Description Section/Declaration
bi::pan -1 L]

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BHEA2 : EEER

General Disclosure

— AR ER

KPI' A2.1

B SR AR RS 1RA2. 1

KPI A2.2

RISE AR IS IRA2.2

KPI A2.3

RE SR 4B WIS IZEA2.3

KPI A2.4

RE SR 4B WIS IZEA2.4

KPI A2.5

R SR AB RS 1RA2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including Use of Resources

energy, water and other raw materials.
BREAER (BEER KREMEMRE) NKEK BRER
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in’000s) and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

REVNESNER K HEEER (GINE - -RoCh BREHA-FERERE
wEE UTETRESE REE BIIUSESEE

fii~FERMTE) o

Use of Resources — Energy
Management

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit Not applicable — explained
of production volume, per facility).
RIEKERZE GIUINSESB A SIERKH
B o

NER-CEE

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and Environmental Targets, Use of
steps taken to achieve them. Resources — Energy Management
HAMPTEI IR RERAN B RERAEIELEERE REEBR - BREA-FERERE
FERER B9 25 B3

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Environmental Targets, Use of
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) Resources — Water Management
set and steps taken to achieve them.

wHSREGE AR FR B A REE UK IMA REER -BRERA -—KRERE
K an B IR R 25 Bl S e B AR PR ENRY 27 B o

Total packaging material used for finished products (in Not applicable — explained
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit

produced.

K mmTAEEMENESE (UEAE) kK QER S TER—BHE
FEBULSE
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPlIs
[BmE-—ReiRE R

FA B AR RIS 1R

EAHRS

Description

il

Section/Declaration

10 1]

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EBEAS  IRIBERXAER

General Disclosure

— AR ER

KPI A3.1

RE 3 48 SIS 1ZA3.1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts
on the environment and natural resources.
BEZETAHBRERRAEREREATZENEE -

Description of the significant impacts of activities
on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them.
WM EMHIRBERRABERNE
BEEERTENTE

FERER

Aspect A4: Climate Change

BEA4 : RIEE1E

General Disclosure

— RS

KPI A4 .1

B SR AR RS 1RAS.1

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer.
HAREHERCRAEEHETAELETRENEX
RIZEBAETRIBER

Description of the significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
BB E RO EEHETAEEXLENERNRIEN
BEE  REHTE-

The Environment and Natural
Resources
RIBERRABR

The Environment and Natural
Resources — Raising Environmental

Awareness, Indoor Air Quality
RIERRAAER-EARREH
ERERER

Climate Change

R

Climate Change — Physical Risks,

Transition Risks Aspect

RiSC-ERRR SERER
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Description

il

Section/Declaration

10 1]

B1: Employment
EmEB1 : {BR

General Disclosure

— AR ER

KPI B1.1

BB AR 5 1RB1 .1

KPI B1.2

RISRAERIEIRB1.2

Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

ERFMNRERE - BERSEA  TIEFE R\ TE
e L2l - RESUREMFEREH N :

(a) HHE; &

(b) MTHHTABEALEEMERRAMN
#h o

Total workforce by gender, employment type (e.qg.
full-time or part-time), age group and geographical
region.

BRI BEED (U2 MR « FHcAE R it
BEDHNESMEH -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

R FE AR R ER DR EERKREER -
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B —RKER
R B2 AR R IE 1R

Description Section/Declaration
bi::pan -1 L]

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

EmB2: BEARZSE

General Disclosure

— IR EE

KPI B2.1
R S AR 23518 B2.1
KPI B2.2

PR 15 1RB2.2

KPI B2.3

RSB AE N F518B2.3

88

Information on: Health and Safety
(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.
ERRRHZE2TFRERRERESEFRHRELERE REHEZE
5

@ BR; &

(b) BFHEFTABEALENEMERRAHN
Hio

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred  Health and Safety
in each of the past three years including the reporting

year.
BE=ZF (BREERFE) SFRITHHNA#BRLE ®REEZ2

Ko

Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
RIEEATEHS- REHRZD

Description of occupational health and safety Health and Safety — Improving
measures adopted, and how they are implemented Safety Awareness, Physical and
and monitored. Mental Health

MR EREEL 2 URERNITR BREZ2-RALZ2EH SO
BE %o R
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
B —RRiRER
RASR AR RUISIR $is it =38 1

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EmEB3 . &R RIE

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and Development and Training
skills for discharging duties at work. Description of
training activities.

—ARiREE ERARAEEBITLEREMNAM M RRENERER - #EIE
s ENE E o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Development and Training —
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle Training Programmes
management).

A 4B 45 12B3. 1 ZERREESR GINERERE -PREERE) 8 FEERRE)—FIRE

DTHXNEER DL

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee Development and Training —
by gender and employee category. Training Programmes

R S 4E W5 1EB3.2 ZERREEERR D BLEETARIINTEE FEERKEN—FIRE
)

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SociaL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE-HHEREGHRS

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs Description

B —RKER
R B2 AR R IE 1R il

Section/Declaration

10 1]

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : & T#A|
General Disclosure Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

— iR EE BREABLEETHAFIE T !
(@ HBWE; X%
(o) BFHETABERTLENMERERERG
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
R B A N5 1EB4.1 s R B A E A R E T g% T o
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.
RSB NIE1RB4.2 a7 B IRERE R H R B RIS NPT IR E A B o

LLabour Standards

Labour Standards — Prevention of
Child and Forced Labour
TR [ lEE T Koas % T

Labour Standards — Prevention of
Child and Forced Labour
BT —FHIEE T Koah| s T
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SoclAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRI -HHERELSHRS

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
B —RRiRER
RASR AR RUISIR $is it =38 1

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EmEB5 . {HEREIE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks  Supply Chain Management
of the supply chain.

— AR B EEMEBENRE TS RBREBESR - HEREIE

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain Management

B R 4B W15 12B5. 1 EtE 8 DN HEEEESE - HEEEE

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Supply Chain Management —

suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices Procurement Mechanism
are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

BB M I51EB5.2 Hil A R AR BN mMERTERAEG MM HEREIE —REKT
FERIEE ~ UK ITREER G %

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify Supply Chain Management —
environmental and social risks along the supply chain, Procurement Mechanism
and how they are implemented and monitored.

BB M I512B5.3 wHal A R R RS EIREMNIRRE R T AR HEREIE REKT
TBH LUk HITREER G %

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote Supply Chain Management —
environmentally preferable products and services Procurement Mechanism
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

R AN I51RB5.4 HMEREREENREELARFRERERBNIE (HERSE —REKS
B> U REANITRERS A

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SocIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE-HHEREGHRS

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

B —fRiER
R B2 AR R IE 1R

Description

il

Section/Declaration

10 1]

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

BHEB6 : EREIE
General Disclosure

—fRIREE

KPI B6.1

B SR AR 5 1%B6. 1

KPI B6.2
R SR 4B W I512B6.2
KPI B6.3
RA B AR 15 12B6.3
KPI B6.4
RSB N 1518B6.4

KPI B6.5

B $ AR XF51%B6.5

Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling

and privacy matters relating to products and services

provided and methods of redress.
ERMRHERMBRFNEREELE B B8
MEEEURERGEN

@ BR, R

(b) MFHETABEALENIERER RN
#Hhlo

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons.
EENEEFERBYUPR L2 EREIEAMA[L
WHBE DL

Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.
BEMNERERBNEFEEUREE 5%

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

R R R RIER B E A RIS -

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
I E 28T iEE KR EmEINRER -

Description of consumer data protection and

privacy policies, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

8 B & B RHRE R A RER MU BT R 5
Yy a by

Product Responsibility

Not applicable — explained

NER-CEE

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Product Responsibility —
Intellectual Property Rights
EmET—MBER

Not applicable — explained
NER—-—B#EE

Product Responsibility — Customer
Communication, Customer Privacy
Protection

Emaf-FRER FERELR

&
3
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SoclAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRI -HHERELSHRS

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
B —RRiRER
RASR AR RUISIR $is it =38 1

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BmB7: RES

General Disclosure Information on: Anti-corruption
(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

— AR ER BRI IEEREE B3R BREF RO R IR A ¢ k&5
(@ HHR; &

(b) WFHETABEALENEMERRANN

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt  Anti-corruption
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.

A S AE W HE 1R BT 1 RERARHBZETAIEEERELEEENES RES
TR H BB R FFRER

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- Anti-corruption — Whistleblowing
blowing procedures, and how they are implemented Mechanism
and monitored.

RSB MIE1EBT.2 ML SRR RRER  UREBAITRERS RES-B2HRET
V& o

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to Anti-corruption — Prevention of
directors and staff. Money Laundering

R AN I51ZBT.3 HmEERETRENRESHEC R&E7S—BA L5

EESEEMARAR | CE-NEER o3
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SocIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE-HHEREGHRS

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

B —RKER
R B2 AR R IE 1R

Description

il

Section/Declaration

10 1]

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EmEB8 : HERE

General Disclosure

—RIREE

KPI B8.1

B $2 4R 515881

KPI B8.2

RISRAE RN IE18B8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

RNt ER2HERTHREEMTHREZMERA
(B LT RTEMNmIBEE-

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).
EIEREE NS - BEEE - HIEHERE
FEXIE~BEH)

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the
focus area.

AEITHBFABAER GIUNEHHER) o

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2024

Community Investment
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Community Investment

HtERE

Community Investment

HEKRE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

CCTH CPA LIMITED
RIEXEEAERAE

O

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
106 to 239, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy information
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR

I % AT RS

REREEEEARAFTNZERR
(RHESHEZMALTZERAE)

ER
ESEEREI06EE2390EMBNERS
EERERRE (TERF)) REKRBAF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB S

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 3.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, that the Group incurred net losses amounted to
approximately HK$99,019,000 for the year ended 31 December
2024 and that the total current liabilities of the Group at 31
December 2024 exceed the Group’s total current assets at that
date by approximately HK$50,643,000. These conditions indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. In light of
all the measures and arrangements detailed in note 3.1 to the
consolidated financial statements, the directors are of the opinion
that the Group will be able to finance its future working capital and
financial requirements for at least twelve months immediately after
31 December 2024. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to
the matters described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern section, we have determined the matters described below
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

FRFREEZEXRFAMER

ERFBEIGEVMBERENEI A EF
@ﬁ SEESIREBE_SE_NE+_A4
=+ —HIEFEEFEEFEEL99,019,000
BrUKkR BEER-_ZNE+ZA
—t+—HHRBEEMREBRE SE£EERZ
HA R ENE E4EE4950,643,000/87C %25
BERBRNEEEATERRZ AJES B
EEFELEENBRNEAER ENGS
IR S AN R B B R 2 Bk

EXERD BEEREHN T _MOF+Z
A=+— EI%_nJrE"\—I—_ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂE%%?si;
BT RUBBERREHES - EFHERILK
FIEEEMENR
REESFE
REESHEXAE BREFASFERES

BZRAHBNGESMBRETREENS

EH-ZEEBEEEBESERE %?é.‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
RRHABRRRETRE MESTEMZ

SEEBEBERER- BTFEEEF‘},E“‘QZ
EXRFHAREER —SFANERD &
ERETARREHMARSHREE E’J%ﬁi@
BT FR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Revenue recognition

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matter
RAEE st HIE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WIS

REEFE (F
Wiy 2o B 5T
FE2RGREMBRRMEES

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BESNEHNMEERARENSER

Revenue recognition is identified as a key audit matter
because of its financial significance to the consolidated
financial statements and is one of key performance
indicators of the Group. Accordingly, there may be
risks of material misstatements related to revenue
recognition.

NIRRT REENEAYBELE B
» BEENEARRRBEREz — ®EERA—IEHE
BESTEE-EI A F T BN ARENERRE
ek 2t B R B

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
recognised revenue from motor vehicles trading
business amounted to approximately HK$32,148,000,
of which (i) approximately HK$30,803,000 was derived
from trade transactions in situations where the Group
acted as a principal and had the primary responsibility
for fulfilling the promise to provide the specified goods
to customers; and (i) approximately HK$1,345,000
was derived from provision of agency and other
services for accessories sourcing where the Group
acted as an agent in arranging to provide the specified
goods to customers.
BE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILEFE> BHEER
RABEZEBMISUEEA32,148,0008 7> HH >
()#%930,803,0008 2Kk E EEEFERATEALHE
TREAREFEEGNABEBEFEESENESR
% 5 &(i)%91,345,0008 2k E ESEEFAHEZH
m&E RSN TSmO K B B 4 (BB AR TS ©

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR

Our procedures in relation to management’s revenue
recognition included:

EEEMEBEEBEINENEFEHE

= We obtained an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls in relating to revenue
recognition;

—  BETERITLE RSB0 R B IS AR
ST BRI REFBARL

= We inspected agreements, on sample basis, to
identify terms and conditions which may affect
revenue recognition and assessing the Group’s
revenue recognition policies;

— CERMREERTHERELGEMNTREZERE
HESBRIRR MR WksTh SEERZES
BUR ;

- We performed analytical review on revenue and
gross margin by motor vehicle products categories
to identify significant or unusual fluctuation on
revenue;

— EEHRAEERENIDOHNNRmRENRETD
MER UHEBNENAKIEXNAZE RS ;

- We tested, on a sample basis, the supporting
documentation and the contractual terms of trade
transactions;

— ETEEHMBEERDTEZRXINFEAXHRSHNRF

Eo
A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WIS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements. (continued)

Key Audit Matter
RAEE st HIE

REEFE (F
W ai BT ()
F2RGREMBERRNES (&

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBHUMEERREHEE

The Group determined whether itself is acting
as a principal or agent required judgement and
consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances.
EEEETHAGUTITEASHERAEIHITER
BHERERFABEEBRAEERE R

We focused on this area due to the significant
judgement involved in the assessment of
management’s determination of principal or agent for
the purpose of revenue recognition of motor vehicles
trading business.
EEMAZSENHNREEBM BB EB N GRE
REETTEASHERRNESOHMNTEIREKRH
B o

We assessed, on a sample basis, whether specific
revenue transactions occurred on or before and after
the end of the reporting date had been recognised
in the appropriate financial years by comparing
the transactions selected with relevant underlying
documentation, including customers’ receipts and
goods delivery notes;

EEXRMBREERBLEBEERZ REMX G (81
ZERWERE@RME)  sTHERIRE B EARSATE
BELENREREXRZ TS ENBEMHEENES;

We reviewed and discussed with management of the
Group a number of trade contracts with customers
and purchase contracts with suppliers, on a sample
basis, assessing the management’s conclusion
based on the specific facts and circumstances and
the applicable accounting standard; and
EERHMEREEERLE SEEEEESNHRER
FIINHZEEZ &4 UKEHEBIIINSE
BEOL ML EEERBEBEERBENURE
AEstERSHNER ; &

We evaluated whether the Group’s presentation of
revenue on a gross basis (as a principal) versus a
net basis (as an agent) was in conformity with the
applicable accounting standard.

EETE BEEERAEEE2 NG (EBEEA8
7)) HbRFEEEY Wm (FRRE) 2238 R2
DEBRAES R —R o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Impairment assessment of other receivables
Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial statements

Key Audit Matters
RAEE st 518

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WIS

REEFE (F
H {th e U TR IA 2 R (E 5T 1
m2RGRGMBRRMEE6

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

L {th FE U ¥k I8 ik {5 ik

The Group had other receivables with the carrying
amount of approximately HK$83,271,000 at 31
December 2024.
AEBR_ZNFE+ZA=+—HHNEMEUWRIE
IR {E4Y 783,271,000/ 7T °

Management has performed impairment assessment
of the other receivables based on information including
past repayment history and subsequent settlement
status of receivable balance, credit profile of the
debtors and on-going relationship with the debtors.
Management also considered forward looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to
repay the outstanding balances in order to estimate the
expected credit losses for the impairment assessment.
EEECRBETERC R BRIBAGEBNG
BER-BHEANGCERIKEABBEANFERGESE
Bk B HMERRIBETRETS G -BRBETZET
FREXEEREERRERGHRENNRAIEMER UL
st ETLNTRRE BB

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment on other receivables as at 31 December 2024
included:
BEER_E_NF+ZA=+—HEEBEEBHAEMENK
MIERETHNEFEE !

- We obtained an understanding of the key controls
that the Group has implemented to manage and
monitor its credit risk;

— EETHRIY SEECEHARBREGER UE
BREZEHEERRE ;

- We made enquiry of management regarding the
status of each of the significant receivables past due,
the Group’s on-going business relationship with the
relevant debtors and past repayment history of the
debtors;

— EENEBRSNIEBEEARRKRAREBENRL E5£H
BEAERRGEBEANFEEBEAREHE ANBETER
M EREEFLES ;

- We assessed the subsequent settlement of other
receivables balances. Where settlement had not
been received subsequent to the year end date,
we obtained an understanding of the basis of
management’s judgments about the recoverability
of the outstanding receivables and evaluate the
allowance for doubtful debts made by management
for these balances;

— BEIEHBHMEBRRIBEEGR RELBEMDE
WElMIE FME T HREIEBH R CIEKRIEN
FIREIMERHERELE TEFEEEEHZE
18 Bl 45 8% 5t 12 AV R AR B4
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WIS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment of other receivables (continued)

REEFE (F
Eﬂﬂﬂ%ﬂ&#lﬁzlﬁﬂﬁuﬂﬁ( )

Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial statements (continued) B2 BE4TEHMFEREWT26° (&

Key Audit Matters
RAEE st 518

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Hfth U k18

A

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of
the other receivables at 31 December 2024; and the
impairment assessment of other receivables under the
expected credit losses model which involved significant
management judgments and estimates.
EEEINZERE TER - E2OF+2A=+—
BEMEBWMRIENRERA  UREMERRIERTE
HEEBEBEEABETNNRETE I RERNEEAE
e fdi5t e

We corroborated explanations from management
with supporting evidence, such as correspondence
with customers, public search of the customers’
profiles as we evaluated management’s judgments;
and

EENRTHEEEMNHER  FBRERNRERE
K- 2HAERERPNENEIRRBEEEEEEN
fRRE R

We assessed the appropriateness of the expected
credit loss positioning methodology, examining the
key data inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging the
assumptions, including both historical and forward
looking information, used to determine the expected
Credit loss.

LR BHMEEERRRRE ARG L HER
\E)Ez BUEUKERBRARR (BEBERAREES
k) SERAEERBEMR ENEEN  UETETE
HE &R

We circulated direct confirmations to debtors, on
a sample basis, confirming the balances of other
receivables as at 31 December 2024.
EEZPHMEEEERABEH AEREIRE BT
RIEZWNFE+ZB=+—HWNEMEKRRIEBES
R o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WIS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BBt FIHE (&
Impairment assessment of deposits paid for acquisition of MENSHETEHE ZBTREREFE

motor vehicles for resale

Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matter
R BB

B2RGREMBRRME26-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESNENMAEIRMBENSTE

The Group had paid deposits for acquisition of
motor vehicles for resale totalled approximately
HK$74,300,000 as at 31 December 2024 which
were included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables. Impairment loss on these deposits paid
amounted to approximately HK$74,300,000 was fully
recognised in the profit or loss in respect of the current
year.

RIE_WNF+"RA=+—H> EE£EBEHNEBESE
ETEE BN REE51474,300,0008 70 5t ATE
TRIE-ZEREMEWHRIE AEEREBHAANER 2
B ZERE R EREL74,300,00058 7T ©

Management has performed impairment assessment
of the deposits paid for acquisition of motor vehicles
for resale based on the purchase details, including
the subject motor vehicles and dates of completion of
the purchases, suppliers’ credit profiles, and on-going
business with the Group, forward looking information
regarding expected resale of the motor vehicles and
underlying economic conditions.
EREEEREREFE (OEHARERKEBETHH
HA-HEENEER L -EAEENFEXER) AR
ABETERRLCINAIEY BN RAERSERREEE R
BUFEENBMZREETRET Mo

We focused on this area due to the significant amounts
of deposits paid for acquisition of motor vehicles
and the impairment assessment of the deposits paid
involved significant management judgments and
estimates.
EERMAZEEHRRERSEZ BN RENEEE
BEARHENEZEEETRENG B KEEENE
R HI R e {5t o

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
of deposits paid for acquisition of motor vehicles for resale
included:
EENENREETEEZENRSETRENGRER
BIE -

- We obtained an understanding of the key controls
that the Group has implemented in relation to the
acquisition of motor vehicles for resale;

— TBETHR BEEEMERSABEETEEERNEAR
B

- We checked, on a sample basis, the deposits paid
for acquisition of motor vehicles for resale to the
underlying purchase contracts, payment records and
other related information;

— CERMBREERTNERSEETEHEEZ BN
T HEERARE SN TN REMERER ;

- We reviewed the relevant documents for the
purchases of motor vehicles subsequent to 31
December 2024 for which the Group had paid
deposits as at that date and assessed (a) any of
these purchases were completed; and (b) any of
these purchases lapsed are or likely to lapse upon
expiry the purchase completion dates.

— BEEBRARZEONFE+ZA=+—HzZ%E B
EEREZ BB RSN BRENER R
Tl ZERBEEZEEETMN ; ROEEB EMZ
ZHEECENEETN B RE MRS EAE K3

- For the deposits paid as at 31 December 2024 for
the purchase of motor vehicles and purchase of
motor vehicles not completed subsequent to that
date, we reviewed the relevant correspondences and
made enquiry of management, on a sample basis,
regarding the management’s measurement of the
non-recovery of the deposits paid; and

— ARERE_NE+_A=+—HHRELGEEHAR
BRERNZEBBARATHRASERE BEEEEK
BEEFNEEBHARNEEN RSNt BER BB
AP EREELAM; &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WIS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment of deposits paid for acquisition of
motor vehicles for resale (continued)

Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.
(continued)

Key Audit Matter
FAEE st H1E

PSS (7

MEBRSEETHE ZBHREREF G

(&)

F2RGREMBREME260 (B)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BESNBEHNMEEMARENSER

- We assessed the appropriateness of the impairment
assessment made by the Group, examined the
key data inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging the
assumptions, where necessary.

— BEME

EEEMEREMGIVBEEY  MmEKR

EFEPARBLUIEEERERTEYE TR BE
R AR A R RER

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Hfh&E#

EXFHHMENES HUWENSREFR
FREMIFMBEER EEEMBREREEN
ZEEMER S RS o

ESHEGMBRENERTIARERMSE
e BEETAHEMBENSEREATLANE

9% Jt LA
RE A Em o

EESERRAMBREF EENEER
REHMER FlBRED  TEHEMER
ERAREMBERRNESESBRBREDFHN
THRENBRAEEREHE NEUFAEKRE
REM BN EFERATHNIF WRESF
BAHMENAEAHERRL EFHER
SRFEB-ETENEH BEFRAEMARS

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2024



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WIS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the group as a basis
for forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of
the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats and safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

CCTH CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2025

Lee Chi Hang
Practising Certificate Number P01957

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F, Tower 2,

Kowloon Commerce Centre,

No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong
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CoNsoLDATED STATEMENT OF ProFiT OR Loss AND OTHER CoMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEBEmkH

fth 2 mE W ARR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

2024 2023
—E-mE S ——
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHERT FET
Notes (restated)
M 5% (18 &E75)
Continuing operations FEREETR
Revenue & 5 32,148 149,684
Other income and gains/(losses), net Eﬁﬂﬂﬂl?\&ﬂﬁl 5/ (K518) 3458 7 3,096 14,337
Changes in inventories R onfz 52 &)
of finished goods 23 (30,398) (147,239)
Employee benefit expenses BEBHZ 10 (10,613) (10,924)
Depreciation of property, Y B RREITE
plant and equipment (2,147) (2,067)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  {EFAEEETE 18 (565) (5795)
Impairment loss recognised on RIEWE Z R IERERE
trade receivables 24 (429) (415)
Loss on settlement of advance e B B S B TR 2B 18
payments for purchase of trading b
motor vehicles (2,076) -
Impairment loss on advance BEABENAEMRIERERE
payments for purchase of trading
motor vehicles (75,805) -
Impairment loss on advance BEYENTAMNRIERERE
payment for acquisition of property (1,511)
Other expenses HhpEx (9,710) (11,351)
Share of loss of an associate DE—E A TR (77) (1,041)
Finance costs AR A AS 8 (3,446) (2,706)
Loss before income tax PRPR1STRAIES1E 9 (101,533) (12,297)
Income tax credit FriSfiE % 13 227 154
Loss for the year REFEREEFNFERNEIE
from continuing operations (101,306) (12,143)
Discontinued operations BiRIEEEE G 14
Net gain/(loss) from discontinued B IERE R
operations Wz (§518) 358 2,287 (3,653)
Loss for the year FNEE (99,019) (15,796)
Other comprehensive loss Hih2mEEsiE
Item that may be subsequently H fé‘ B R E#N T HEE 8
reclassified to profit or loss: EHE .
Exchange differences arising on ?%5%%%}%%2
translation of foreign operations bl 00 &= &F (4,430) (3,394)
Other comprehensive loss FREMEEER 20K
for the year, net of tax (4,430) (3,394)
Total comprehensive loss FRNEHEEIE
for the year ks (103,449) (19,190)
Loss for the year attributable to: FRE(LEIE :
— Owners of the Company e NNIE ZE DN (98,752) (15,777)
— Non-controlling interests —JEER R (267) (19)
(99,019) (15,796)
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CoNsoLIDATED STATEMENT OF ProFIT OR Loss AND OTHER CoMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e lEashEMZE KR AHRREK

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZ-UFE+-A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—EUE —E =5
HK$’000 HK$iOOO
F#T FET
Note (restated)
B 5E (#R&E75)
(Loss)/profit for the year FREEAEANFAERN
attributable to owners of the (#518) %
Company o
— from continuing operations —REFEBESER (101,039) (12,124)
— from discontinued operations —REBRILEEETS 2,287 (3,653)
(98,752) (15,777)
Loss for the year attributable to  JEIZRR{EE FAME(EESE
non-controlling interests o
— from continuing operations —RERFBEEX (267) (19)
— from discontinued operations —REBRIEREEE - =
(267) (19)
Total comprehensive loss for FREERE
the year attributable to: B5iR4EEE
— Owners of the Company —AREHEBE A (103,182) (19,166)
— Non-controlling interests —JEERER (267) (24)
(103,449) (19,190)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ AR AR
income attributable to owners 2m (5518 WARE
of the Company o
— from continuing operations —REFBEEXR (105,736) (15,537)
— from discontinued operations —REBARIEREEE 2,287 (3,653)
(103,449) (19,190)
2024 2023
o 11 3 “BT=F
HK cent HK cent
Al A
(restated)
(#&E75)
Loss per share skisE 15
From continuing and REFEEE
discontinued operations B S—F5
Basic loss per share BREXGE (1.27) (0.20)
Diluted loss per share SFREEEE N/A B H N/A 78
From continuing operations REFBEESER
Basic loss per share SREAXREBE (1.30) (0.16)
Diluted loss per share SR EEE N/A FiEH N/A R4

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated & Mt B9 Mt sE 48 Al IE £ 45 & B 75 3R R A9 — =6

financial statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PosiTioN
mEMBNRRER

At 31 December 2024 HR_Z_NE+_A=+—H

2024 2023
—E-E E=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B =k FET FAET
Non-current assets ERBHEE
Property, plant and equipment YN EBRRERE 17 19,895 20,810
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 407 993
Statutory deposits and other assets AT R EHME E 20 - 405
Interests in associates REE QB ZER 22 - 78
Financial assets at fair value through A F{ET ABHEZ
profit or loss THEE 25 - 113
Prepayments, deposits BAHRIE TR
and other receivables H g Eia 26 47,128 1,531
67,430 23,930
Current assets MEBEE
Inventories EFa8 23 37 38
Trade receivables FEUE ZFhIE 24 - 340
Financial assets at fair value BATESFAERZ
through profit or loss THEE 25 - 16,708
Prepayments, deposits BNMIE TR
and other receivables Hh W RIE 26 36,751 178,433
Bank balances and cash IRITHEFRRIRE
— trust accounts — (LR P 27 - 5,276
Bank balances and cash IRITHEFRRIRE
— general accounts —— AR P 27 13,532 19,554
50,320 220,349
Current liabilities RBER
Trade payables e & 5 7R IE 28 = 5,457
Other payables and accruals H I mIB K fE st 78 29 1,370 2,593
Contract liabilities X OI=RE 30 60,140 73,393
Provisions g 31 11,019 11,390
Borrowings (EEN 32 28,000 30,000
Lease liabilities HEEaR& 33 434 580
100,963 123,413
Net current (liabilities)/assets HEh (AR AERE (50,643) 96,936
Total assets BEEERTHER
less current liabilities 16,787 120,866
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PosiTioN
mEMBRRER

At 31 December 2024 HR-_Z_WNE+_F=+—H

2024 2023
S 111 = =
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHT FAET
Non-current liabilities ERHEE
Lease liabilities HEaR 33 - 448
Deferred tax liabilities FIEIRIE S B 34 2,017 2,199
(2,017) (2,647)
Net assets BERE 14,770 118,219
Capital and reserves AR E#E
Share capital [N 35 77,489 77,489
Reserves i (62,619) 40,563
Equity attributable to TATEE AELIERS
owners of the Company 14,870 118,052
Non-controlling interests JEFERGHE RS (100) 167
Total equity Rmiag 14,770 118,219

The consolidated financial statements on pages 106 to 239 were SF106EE230BNGE M EREREERTT
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 R _ZE_AF=F _+ N\ B EXREBET

March 2025 and are signed on its behalf by: BOoTAHUTALIRARESE
Wang Jiawei Lai Yuk Mui

-1 REME

Director Director

BE BE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated MR M sEAB PR L 4R & B S iR < BV — 2P
financial statements. Te
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENT oF CHANGES IN EaquiTy

mEkEZ2EHRE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FAAREAER
Non-
Share Share Special Statutory  Translation Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests equity
(Note 36()  (Note 36(i) (Note 36ji)
(M=E360)  (Mfakoeq))  (B¥aEeii)
& B EE RRIGE EERE ERHE 2HEHR it ERER Haas
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TE7 TET TE7 TET TE7 TET
Balance at 1 January 2023 RZBZ=E-A-HZ&H 77,489 1,673,299 4,779 3912 (17,645)  (1,604,616) 137,218 191 137,409
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - (15,777) (15,777) (19) (15,796)
Other comprehensive loss FRHMZESE
for the year = 5 = 5 (3,389) 5 (3,389) () (3,394)
Total comprehensive loss ERHMZEFRER
for the year = S = S (3,389) (15,777) (19,166) (24) (19,190)
Balance at 31 December 2023 RIBZ=E+ZR=+-RA2Z
£ 77,489 1,673,299 4779 3912 (21,034) (1,620,393) 118,062 167 118,219
Balance at 1 January 2024 RIZZME-B-HZz&R 77,489 1,673,299 4,779 3912 (21,034) (1,620,393) 118,052 167 118,219
Loss for the year EREE - - - = - (98,752) (98,752) (267) (99,019)
Other comprehensive loss ERHMZESE
for the year - - - = (4,430) = (4,430) o (4,430)
Total comprehensive loss FRHMZERREE
for the year - o - = (4,430) (98,752) (103,182) (267) (103,449)
Transfer of special reserve to HENBADNBLERIHE
accumulated losses upon ERHER
disposal of subsidiaries - - (4,779) - - 4,179 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2024 RIZZME+ZA=1-H
285 77,489 1,673,200 - 3,912 (25464)  (1,714,366) 14,870 (100) 14,770

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENT oF CAsH FLows

mERE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZ_NFE+"A=+—HIFE

e - — |
7;’?55

2024 2023
—E-mE = ——
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B sk FHT TATT
Operating activities R EE
Loss before income tax PRETIS IR AT 18 (99,246) (15,950)
Adjustments for: TR IEREE
Depreciation of property, M S RREITE
plant and equipment 2,150 2,072
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 565 575
Fair value loss on financial assets at & AF{Est ABHEZ S/
fair value through profit or loss BEZ N FERE 7 111 3,559
Gain on disposal of financial assets HERAFET AL
at fair value through profit or loss 2B EWNE - (16,386)
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE IS KR
plant and equipment E518 = 118
Loss on disposal of listed HE FmRRAE S EIE
equity securities 62 -
Loss on disposal of unlisted fund HEIELHEEKREZEIE
investment 40 -
Write off of property, D3~ 1 28 KRR B
plant and equipment 914 -
Impairment loss recognised RN E 1A
on trade receivables HEEE 429 415
Loss on settlement of advance EEBEESRENTENRIE
payments for purchase of trading E518
motor vehicles 2,076 -
Impairment loss on advance EEARENTANMRIERE
payments for purchase of trading
motor vehicles 75,805 -
Impairment loss on advance BEYENTENRIBERE
payment for acquisition of E518
property 1,511 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR ZWE 37 (4,000) =
Share of loss of an associate ME—EBE A B EE 77 1,041
Interest income ) B U A (159) (201)
Finance costs =N 3,446 2,706
Operating cash flows before SEETEAI
movements in working capital KEHETRE (16,219) (22,051)
(Increase)/decrease in trade FEWE S 3hI8 (1Em) R
receivables (316) 1,673
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TA{ITRIE & K H fhFEUR
deposits and other receivables IR (38 0) 10,250 (24,486)
(Increase)/decrease in bank IR1T4ERR—(E500RP ()
balances - trust accounts DN (2,526) 664
Decrease in trade payables FES B ZIE R (294) (502)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables ELth & {5 =R I8 Kz f& 5t
and accruals I8 GR/) /18 (709) 1,062
(Decrease)/increase in contract aHam‘ R /1
liabilities (10,637) 27,980
Cash used in operating activities REEEBB 2 IRE (20,451) (15,670)
Interest received BUF = 159 201
Income tax refund/(paid) B[O (B Frieih 45 (28)
Net cash used in operating RS EEHAZIREEE
activities (20,247) (15,497)
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENT oF CAsH FLows

mEREME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

2024 2023
—E-mE - ——
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
By sk FET FAETT
Investing activities BREIEE
Acquisition of property, IBEYE SRR E
plant and equipment (2,195) (1,686)
Acquisition of financial assets at WEEEAFEESFAEBRZ
fair value through profit or loss ETHMEE = (15,949)
Proceeds from disposal of HEYZE Hz%%)i’z%ﬁf%
property, plant and equipment Frfg s - 1,344
Disposal of subsidiaries HE W%’&T 37 7,101 =
Proceeds from disposal of HEZAFESARER
investment in financial assets at KRERNTHEE
fair value through profit or loss FTig I8 16,411 16,499
Net cash generated from REIHEEZREFE
investing activities 21,317 208
Financing activities A& R E
Proceeds from secured borrowings KB B IKIFER 2 FAEIE 40 - 5,000
Repayment of lease liabilities HESGBEZEN 40 (608) (615)
Repayment of borrowings BEER 40 (2,000) =
Interest paid BAHE (3,411) (2,643)
Net cash (used in)/generated from Fi & ;&) (B1R) EX 2
financing activities HE&FE (6,019) 1,742
Net decrease in cash and RERBEESEHBERRLDFE
cash equivalents (4,949) (13,547)
Cash and cash equivalents at FMZzREMRIREEEEE
beginning of the year 19,554 32,986
Effect of foreign exchange rate fEREH) 2 &
changes (1,073) 115
Cash and cash equivalents FRzZEERAEEEEE
at end of the year 13,532 19,554
Analysis of cash and FRZAERREEE
cash equivalents at BB 2R
end of the year
Bank balances and cash IRITHERRIRE
— general accounts ——fRERP 13,532 19,554

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  BEMIBIMT sE B A IE S 45 & I AR A —
financial statements. pa )
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. The Company’s registered office is situated at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company’s principal place
of business is situated at 16th Floor, CMA Building, 64-66
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate
controlling party of the Company is Mr. Wang Jiawei, the
Chairman and executive director of the Company.

The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the current year, the Group, comprising the Company
and its subsidiaries, was principally engaged in (i) trading of
motor vehicles, provision of agency services and accessories
sourcing in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), excluding
Hong Kong, (i) trading of listed securities in Hong Kong, and
(iii) provision of securities and futures contracts trading services
in Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group discontinued its operations of
provision of securities and future contracts trading services in
Hong Kong, details of which are set out in note 14. Certain
comparative figures in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income together with related
disclosure notes have been restated to conform with current
year’s presentation.

During the current year, the functional currency of the Company
was changed from Hong Kong dollars to Renminbi (“RMB”)
upon completion of disposal of the business of provision
of securities and futures contracts trading services in Hong
Kong. Subsequent to the disposal, the Company mainly holds
subsidiaries whose underlying operations are primarily in the
PRC, excluding Hong Kong, with RMB being the functional
currency. The directors of the company have determined that
RMB better reflects the economic substance of the Company’s
business activity. Accordingly, the functional currency of the
Company was changed to RMB prospectively from the date of
disposal.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is different from the
Company’s functional currency of RMB. For the convenience
of the financial statements users, the consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, as the Company’s shares are
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. All values stated in these
consolidated financial statements are rounded to the nearest
thousands Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise
stated.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a7 R & M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. FEREAMBHREEN (EEMBE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HREREN) Z2HETRIETSH
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective MRAEFEEEFERZEAMBREE

for the current year Al ZEET 2

In the current year, the Group has applied the following RAFE AEEEERERUTHSE

amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of BEgitemag (58 g5t Eﬂi’\ﬁj) 78

Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which MR —_ENFE—A—HRBZE

are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on 1 EfEaslEMNEBMBHSEL

January 2024 for the preparation of the consolidated financial ZAERT A LIRS FERER

statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale HEFMBREEN  ERHELNHEESR
and Leaseback 51657 (B3]4)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities BERAGHENEIN REE2EAREN
as Current or Non- (CHEY ERBRERRE
current and related 5% ABEEET
amendments to Hong (Z2ZZH)

Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities BERAGHENEIT MHELONERBER
with Covenants (CHEY

Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance ERQHENETRR HEBRETH

HKFRS 7 Arrangements EEUBREE
H7%% (BFTK)

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current RAFERRBRE AT HRSED (BT

year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial ) HAEBRRAFERBEFE M

positions and financial performance for the current and priors BRRARMBERER/RZERETTH

years and/or in the disclosures set out in these consolidated WRATEH BN EERTLE

financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards

Amendments to HKAS 21
HKFRS 18

Amendments to the
Classification and
Measurement of Financial
Instruments®

Sale or Contribution
of Assets between
an Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture'

Annual Improvements
to HKFRS Accounting
Standards — Volume 113

Lack of Exchangeability?

Presentation and
Disclosure in Financial
Statements*

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
other amendments to HKFRSs, which are not yet effective,
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements, which sets out requirements on presentation
and disclosures in financial statements, will replace HKAS
1 Presentation of Financial Statements. This new HKFRS
Accounting Standard, while carrying forward many of the
requirements in HKAS 1, introduces new requirements
to present specified categories and defined subtotals in
the statement of profit or loss; provide disclosures on
management-defined performance measures in the notes
to the financial statements and improve aggregation and
disaggregation of information to be disclosed in the financial
statements. In addition, some HKAS 1 paragraphs have been
moved to HKAS 8 and HKFRS 7. Minor amendments to HKAS
7 Statement of Cash Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings per Share
are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027, with early application permitted. The application of
the new standard is expected to affect the presentation of
the statement of profit or loss and disclosures in the future
financial statements. The Group is in the process of assessing
the detailed impact of HKFRS 18 on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange
(“GEM Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Going concern basis

The Group incurred net losses amounted to
approximately HK$99,019,000 for the year ended 31
December 2024 and that the total current liabilities of
the Group at 31 December 2024 exceed the Group’s
total current assets at that date by approximately
HK$50,643,000. The directors of the Company
considered it appropriate for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis for at least twelve months after the end of the
reporting period after taking into account the following
circumstances and measures:

()  The Group has been actively negotiating with the
lender in renewing its short-term borrowings upon
their maturities and there is no indication that
the financial institution will not renew the existing
borrowings if the Group applies for the renewal,

(i)  The Group is implementing various measures,
such as optimising its overall sales network and
undergoing effective cost control to improve the
profit margin and operating cash flows of its
business; and

(i)  The Group received repayment of other receivables
amounted to RMB20,000,000 (approximately
HK$21,162,000) according to the agreed terms,
subsequent to the end of the reporting period.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)
Going concern basis (continueq)
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that,
taking into account the above-mentioned plans and
measures, the Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due for at least twelve months
immediately after 31 December 2024. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis. Should the Group be unable to
operate as a going concern, adjustments would have to
be made to reduce the carrying amounts of the Group’s
assets to their net realisable amounts, to provide for
further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities, respectively. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in
use in HKAS 36 /Impairment of Assets.

3.

EXEHBEREN (7

3.1

RRNEEMBHRRNEBE (7

FFREEERE (5

ARBEERR KERE LA
BRER AEBRARHEE
EERTHEE INEB_F
“MmE+"A=+—HEAED
+TEREEITHESRYBEE-
FEL - &R &M B R ECRIEFTE
KERABRRU -HMAEEELE
e AW RETHEE BEAE

B RAUEELEZE-—TERIF
BHE URIFABHEERIFAD
BEANENDESRBEER
MPER-GEVHTRRILER

Ry Y N
MZERE T E

HREMBERRDEESE KT R
o MET X P EEY G 5t BUR FT A7
BEATEFENETERIA
BRIN o

FE 2 pl A8 — AR LA ST # & am B AR 75
R T HENAFERER-

ATERNFEARTHE2AEE
REFXSPHESEER KIS
BEREARRZTHNER > Tmx
EBRESIERERNEAEM
mEDEGS -REFEEXNE
BRAFER  AEEGZES
L2RERGEANHEENER
BEBRMEENEENERR
HoRNGEMBRREFER
UWMBERENRAFENDRILESE
BE EBREEMBREER
F2SE LR 17 25 B A9 (7 AR
R RMD A ERAARRZZ
REEBMBREERF165%
HEANRNBERS RERTE
BEOEMUBILIFATFENGE
(BlMmERBSHERE2RZFZEL
WA R FENE A G 2R
EIHEE R ENNEREE)
BRIN o

1 18 Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2024



NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
17107 O = |

Rt #5 ¥ &= MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is
to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods,
the valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique equals
the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The material accounting policies are set out below:

3.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;
° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in
an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time
that decisions need to be made, including voting
patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.
(continued)
3.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

EXEHBEEN (7

3.2 RAERE B

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.
(continued)
3.3 Business combinations or asset acquisitions

EXEHBEEN (7

3.3 EBOHABEWE

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The concentration
test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the
gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If
the concentration test is met, the set of activities and
assets is determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies
and recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price
first to financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective
fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase price
is then allocated to the other identifiable assets and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets
which includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The acquired processes are considered
substantive if they are critical to the ability to continue
producing outputs, including an organised workforce with
the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform
the related processes or they significantly contribute
to the ability to continue producing outputs and are
considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced
without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to
continue producing outputs.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
3.3 Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interest issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the
“Conceptual Framework”) except for transactions and
events within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21, in which the Group applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework to identify
the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination.
Contingent assets are not recognised.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date;
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE
3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. BEAEHHBKREH &
(continued)
3.3 Business combinations or asset acquisitions

3.3 EBAHABEWE (&

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard; and

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset
is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared
with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
3.3 Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS 9
would be accounted for on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had disposed directly of the
previously held equity interest.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.3

3.4

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (see
above), and additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.4

Investments in associates (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for
sale, in which case it is or the portion so classified is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Any
retained portion of an investment in an associate that
has not been classified as held for sale continues to be
accounted for using the equity method. The financia
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.4

Investments in associates (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the
Group retains an interest in the former associate and the
retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of
HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate and the fair value
of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of the relevant interest in the associate is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that associate on the same basis as would
be required if that associate had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.4

3.5

Investments in associates (continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When the Group increases its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, goodwill is recognised at acquisition date if
there is excess of the consideration paid over the share
of carrying amount of net assets attributable to the
additional interests in associates acquired. Any excess
of share of carrying amount of net assets attributable to
the additional interests in associates acquired over the
consideration paid are recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which the additional interest are acquired.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents goods or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.5 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

° The customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

° The Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° The Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or
services.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.5 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or
the Group with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer. In those
circumstances, the contract contains a significant
financing component. A significant financing component
may exist regardless of whether the promise of financing
is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the
payment terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the transaction price for any significant financing
component.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to
provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group
is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified goods
or services before that goods or services is transferred to
a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is
to arrange for the provision of the specified goods or
services by another party. In this case, the Group does
not control the specified goods or services provided
by another party before that goods or services is
transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as an
agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission to which it expects to be entitled in exchange
for arranging for the specified goods or services to be
provided by the other party.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.5 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Principal versus agent (continued)
Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(@)

Service income is recognised at point in time when
the relevant services have been rendered.

Revenue from trading of motor vehicles is
recognised at point in time when the customer
obtains control of the promised goods or services in
the contract. If the products are a partial fulfilment
of a contract covering other goods and/or services,
then the amount of revenue recognised is an
appropriate proportion of the total transaction price
under the contract, allocated between all the goods
and services promised under the contract on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis.

Agency income recognised at point in time from
trading of motor vehicles and accessories sourcing
is recognised on a net basis, when the agency
services have been rendered.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.6

3.7

Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are
recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant or subsidies will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Lease

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception of the contract. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component and are accounted for by applying other
applicable standards.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M EHRER M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.
(continued)
3.7 Lease (continued)

EXEHBERER (@)

3.7 A #@)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.7 Lease (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Refundable rental deposits
Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.7 Lease (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)
The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent review/
expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.7 Lease (continued)

Lease modifications (continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use assets. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date
at amounts equal to net investments in the leases,
measured using the interest rate implicit in the respective
leases. Interest income is allocated to accounting periods
so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M EHRER M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE
3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. EXGHHEREH &
(continued)

3.7 Lease (continued) 3.7 8 (&

The Group as a lessor (continueqd)

Classification and measurement of leases (continued)
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term except for investment properties
measured under fair value model. When a lease contract
contains a specific clause that provides for rent reduction
or suspension of rent in the event that the underlying
assets (or any part thereof) are affected by adverse events
beyond the control of the Group and the lessee so as to
render the underlying assets unfit or not available for use,
the relevant rent reduction or suspension of rent resulting
from the specific clause is accounted for as part of the
original lease and not as a lease modification. Such rent
reduction or suspension of rent is recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers those payments to occur. Interest and rental
income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as other income.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts
for the head lease and the sublease as two separate
contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.7 Lease (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continueqd)
Lease modification
The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease
payments for the new lease.

(i) Operating leases
The Group accounts for a modification to an
operating lease as a new lease from the effective
date of the modification, considering any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the original lease
as part of the lease payments for the new lease.

(i) Finance leases
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE
3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. EXGHHEREH &
(continued)

3.7 Lease (continued) 3.7 8 (&

The Group as a lessor (continueqd)

Lease modification (continued)

For a modification to a finance lease that is not accounted
for as a separate lease, if the lease would have been
classified as an operating lease had the modification been
in effect at the inception date, the Group accounts for
the lease modification as a new lease from the effective
date of the modification; and measures the carrying
amount of the underlying asset as the net investment
in the lease immediately before the effective date of the
lease modification. Otherwise, the Group accounts for
the modification in accordance with the requirements
of HKFRS 9. If the change represents a substantial
modification, the finance lease receivables of the original
lease are derecognised and a derecognition gain or loss
calculated using the revised lease payments discounted
at the revised discount rate is recognised in profit or loss
on the date of the modification. If the change does not
represent a substantial modification, the Group continues
to recognise the finance lease receivables in which such
carrying amount will be calculated at the present value
of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the
related receivables’ original discount rate. Any adjustment
to the carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss at
the effective date of modification.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.8 Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.
(continued)
3.8 Foreign currencies (continued)

EXEHBEEN (7

3.8 Y (&

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. EXGHEEH &

(continued)

3.9 Borrowing costs 3.9 B
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the FTERRMAREES BB TR
period in which they are incurred. AR o

3.10 Employee benefits 3.10 EE@&H
(a) Pension obligation (a) BUHETEEF

Retirement benefits to employees in the Hong
Kong are provided a defined contribution plan. The
scheme is generally funded through payments to
insurance companies or trustee-administered funds.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods. The Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Retirement benefits to employees in the PRC are
provided through a defined contribution plan.
The Group is required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute
certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
after payment of the fixed contribution.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.10 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS
37 and involves the payment of termination benefits.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR

3. EATHBEREN &

3.10 EE®/HM (&
(b) REBEF

(c)

HMEENNEESEEER RN
AR EREREER
NERERZ BREMLIR
B FERAE T AEE
BETE B R T B T S0 B
BEr () BXEREFE

W EE LR Rb)EEE
FrEstNEERAERERE
G e ERIEI7REBE N S
RZATRERBAER o WE 1
H—IRE2L LB BEER
Mgtz BEBEHR > mA& Lk
BANRERBAERZOZ
BEHBFHE -EHRRAMB
EEARBAT_EAXfM
ZRABIREIRERE

ESEERA
BEEERZENNEER
FEERER -AEEAEE
REPHREECRMTZRE
MEEZFRZMEFAEF
HEE - BEZHRBRER
ERESY > EERBEK
RALEe

145



NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A

R

=

Rt #5 ¥ &= MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.11 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before
income tax because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit and at the time of the
transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE
3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. EXGHHEREH &
(continued)

3.11 Taxation (continued) 3.11 RI1E (&

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.12 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

25 years
3 to 5 years, or over
the term of leases

if shorter
Office equipment and furniture 3 to 5 years
Computer equipment 3 years

Motor vehicles 3 to 10 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

3.13 Intangible assets

(a) Trading rights
The Group’s trading rights classified under the
intangible assets represent eligibility rights to trade
on or through the Stock Exchange and on the Hong
Kong Future Exchange Limited. The trading rights are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.13 Intangible assets (continued)
(b) Software

The software has a finite useful life and is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of software over its
estimated useful life from three to ten years.

3.14 Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, and intangible assets other than
goodwill
At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are
estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.14 Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-

of-use assets, and intangible assets other than
goodwill (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.15

3.16

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first in
first out method for the finished goods and the weighted
average method for accessories of motor vehicles. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make the
sale include incremental costs directly attributable to the
sale and non-incremental costs which the Group must
incur to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Onerous contract

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract is considered to exist where the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract. The
unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net
cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the
net cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties
arising from failure to fulfil it.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.16

3.17

Provisions (continued)

Onerous contract (continued)

When assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-
making, the Group includes costs that relate directly to
the contract, consisting of both the incremental costs and
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are included in other income
and gains/(losses), net.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.
(continued)
3.17 Financial instruments (continued)

EXEHBEEN (7

3.17 #RIT A &)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.17 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)
A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

() Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.17 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(ii

(ii)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the fair value through other comprehensive
income reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery
of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “other income and gains/(losses),
net” line item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other income
and gains/(losses), net” line item in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.17 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets
The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, rental and other deposits
paid, other receivables, bank balances and cash -
trust accounts and bank balances and cash - general
accounts) which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-months ECL (“12m
ECL”") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.17 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’'s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.17 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

(i)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.17 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(a)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties;
or

the purchase or origination of a financial asset
at a deep discount that reflects the incurred
credit losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.17 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(iv)  Write-off policy
The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient
in estimating ECL on trade receivables using a
provision matrix taking into consideration historical
credit loss experience and forward looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.17 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on
a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.17 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses
The carrying amount of financial assets that are
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end
of each reporting period. Specifically:

° For financial assets measured at amortised cost that
are not part of a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss
in the ‘Other income and gains/(losses), net’ line
item as part of the foreign exchange gains/(losses),
net;

° For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI that
are not part of a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences on the amortised cost of
the debt instrument are recognised in profit or
loss in the ‘Other income and gains/(losses), net’
line item as part of the foreign exchange gains/
(losses), net. As the foreign currency element
recognised in profit or loss is the same as if it was
measured at amortised cost, the residual foreign
currency element based on the translation of the
carrying amount (at fair value) is recognised in other
comprehensive income in the fair value through
other comprehensive income;

° For financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not
part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
‘Other income and gains/(losses), net’ line item as
part of the gain/(loss) from changes in fair value of
financial assets;

° For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI,
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income in the fair value through
other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.
(continued)
3.17 Financial instruments (continued)

EXEHBEEN (7

3.17 #RIT A &)

Financial assets (continued) EHEE (B)
Derecognition of financial assets AR ESR T A B E

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition
to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is
not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.17 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, provisions, borrowings and lease
liabilities) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the critical judgments and estimation
uncertainties that the directors have made in the process of
applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

(@) Impairment of trade and other receivables and
deposits paid
Provision for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) of
trade receivables
The Group measures loss allowance of trade receivables
on the basis of lifetime ECLs. The Group uses a
provision of matrix approach to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The determination of default rates takes into
account historical data and forward looking information
that is receivable and supportable available without undue
cost or effort, which involves a significant degree of
management judgement.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and forecast of general economic
conditions. If the financial condition of the customers or
the forecast economic conditions were to deteriorate,
actual loss allowance would be higher than estimated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

(a)

Impairment of trade and other receivables and
deposits paid (continueq)

Impairment for other receivables and deposits paid
The Group measures the loss allowance of other
receivables and deposits paid on the basis of 12
months ECLs. Management of the Group assessed
the recoverability of other receivables and deposits
paid based on the financial background of the debtors,
collateral and the historical settlement records, including
past due dates, default rates, forward looking information
that is reasonable, supportable and available without
undue cost or effort.

Impairment for deposits paid for acquisition of
motor vehicles for resale

The Group evaluates the loss allowances of deposits
paid for acquisition of motor vehicles for resale based
on purchase records and information, including advance
payments history, delivery of motor vehicles, suppliers’
credit profile, on-going business relationship with
suppliers and underlying economic conditions, which
involves a significant level of management judgment. If
the financial conditions of the suppliers or the forecast
economic conditions were to deteriorate, actual loss
allowance could be higher than estimated.

As at 31 December 2024, the gross amount of deposits
paid for acquisition of motor vehicles for resale is
HK$74,300,000 (2023: HK$173,945,000) and impairment
loss on the deposits paid in full for acquisition of motor
vehicles for resale amounted to HK$74,300,000 was
recognised in profit or loss in respect of the current year
(2023: HK$NIl), details of which are set out in note 26.

4. BXREFERMEHFEEEZE
ERE (#)

(a)

P& U & 5 7R 1A B H fth FE U s T L
REft@EZHE (&
RfttER#*ERE(ME 2R E
AEBERI2EARREERRE
Rt BHMEBURMERENRE
MEREFH sEEEEERE
BEHEANMHEER ERRRE
FEMGCHE GRAHBEQ
R -HE -AEBRBAZENS
WEHA B ZRREER  LIGT
HEMBWRER BN ERENA
e =l o

BERSEETEEZEMEE
HE
AEEBRBERBIC R KRIATR
REcH# R REHEBEER
MoEEEENFEEBRER
HEEERREEN S ERAE
ETHEZENRTSETHERE
B HIREEBNEKRY
B o fis {3 FE P B9 A BS AR S TR R
ERRBIE BREEEEA
FER &St o

RIE-_ME+"B=+—H">
ABEEBEABEUHEBEMSZINIZE
S H4EFEAT4,300,0008 7T (Z2
T =4F 1 173,945,000 7T) 0 A
BEAENHEEMIHIZGH
B£8R ERE 474,300,000
T(CEZ=F T8 BERA
FEETRNENER BEAZES
P EE26 0

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2024



NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M EHRER M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZ_NFE+"A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 4.
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

EXEHAIERESFREEZE
ERE (#)

(continued)

(b)

Impairment of interests in associates

Determining whether interests in associates are impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amounts
of the interests in associates. The Group recognised
the impairment of interests in associate based on an
assessment of future economic benefits of the investment
that will flow to the Group. One of the associate ceased
its business due to the policy review by the PRC
government, and such review has not yet completed up
to present. Where the review of the policy is completed
and the expectation is different from the originate
estimate, such difference will impact the interests in
associate in the period in which such estimates has been
changed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

(c)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and deposits paid for
acquisition of motor vehicles for resale

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in estimating the recoverable amounts
including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-
of-use assets), the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets
belongs, including allocation of corporate assets when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, otherwise recoverable amount is determined
at the smallest group of cash generating units, for which
the relevant corporate assets have been allocated.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the recoverable
amounts.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
subject to impairment assessment were HK$19,895,000
and HK$407,000 (2023: HK$20,810,000 and HK$993,000)
respectively and no impairment losses in respect of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets that
have been recognised respectively.

Details of the impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are disclosed in notes
17 and 18 respectively.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 4.
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

EXGHAEREFFREEZE
ERE (#)

(continued)

(d)

Determining the basis for impairment of refundable
earnest money paid for proposed business
acquisition in previous year

The Group has paid the refundable earnest money of
RMB20,000,000 (approximately HK$21,873,000) for the
proposed acquisition of the entire registered capital of
HEFHFIERAR AT (transliterated as Mingin Quantum
New Energy Co. Ltd.)(“Mingin Quantum”) in January
2015. The Group has received the collateral which are
the entire shares of Mingin Quantum from the vendor.
The proposed acquisition terminated in May 2015 and
the Group filed an arbitration application to South China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission
for the repayment of the overdue receivables.

Although the final judgment ordered the vendor to repay
the refundable earnest money to the Group, the vendor
did not return the said deposits to the Group. On 6 June
2017, the PRC legal advisor of the Company received the
execution judgment (the “Execution Judgment”) issued
by Intermediate People’s Court (the “Court”) of Suining
District, Sichuan Province dated 25 April 2017. According
to the Execution Judgment, the Court terminated the
compulsory execution of repayment of the said deposits
from the vendor and the Court concluded that the vendor
owns no executable assets after he pledged his shares of
the Mingin Quantum to the Group. The Group continued
to communicate with its PRC lawyer to follow up the
judgment from the Court but the status was not changed.
The management had made an impairment of refundable
earnest money paid for the proposed acquisition of
Mingin Quantum in the year ended 31 December 2017.
Based on the facts and circumstances described
above, the management considers the recoverability
of refundable earnest money paid for the aforesaid
acquisition is remote.

During the prior year ended 31 December 2023,
the earnest money previously paid amounted to
RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,100,000) was
refunded to the Group which was included in other
income and gains/(losses), net for that year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

(e) Revenue recognition in respect of motor vehicles
trading business
The Group assesses its business relationship with
suppliers and customers in respect of the trading of
motor vehicles business to determine whether the Group
acts as a principal or agent. The factors taken into
account by management in assessing whether the Group
acts as the principal or agent include:

(i) Whether the Group has the primary responsibility for
fulfilling the promise to provide the specified goods
or services.

(i)  Whether the Group has inventory risk before the
specified goods or services has been transferred
to a customer and whether the Group is exposed
to significant inventory risk. The Group considered
that it has minimal inventory risk in respect of
situations where the Group concluded that it itself
is just an agent in arranging goods to be delivered
to the customers. In those situations, the Group
only places purchase orders to suppliers after it has
received trade orders from customers. On the other
hand, where the Group concludes that it itself is a
principal, the Group has significant inventory risk
regarding trading of the motor vehicles as the Group
may not receive any trade orders from customers
before purchasing the motor vehicles from the
suppliers.

(i) Whether the Group has discretion in establishing
the price for the specified goods or services
and whether the Group is exposed to significant
price risk. The Group basically agreed the price
of the motor vehicles with the customers before
purchasing the motor vehicles from the suppliers
in situations where the Group concludes that it
itself is an agent. When the Group has discretion in
establishing the price for the motor vehicles with the
customers, the Group has exposure to significant
price risk for the trade transactions where the Group
concludes that it is a principal.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 4. EXRGHIERMEAFEEEZE
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY EXRRE &)
(continued)
(e) Revenue recognition in respect of motor vehicles (e) REEBEBZWEESD (&

(f)

trading business (continued)

(iv)  Whether the pre-agreed trade contracts with
customers are legally binding especially in
circumstances where only insignificant deposits
are received from the customers before the Group
settling the entire purchase amounts with the
suppliers and whether the Group is exposed to
significant credit risk.

Based on the management assessment, the Group
acted as principal in the trading of motor vehicles
transacted during the current year and the proceeds from
trading of motor vehicles amounted to approximately
HK$30,803,000 (2023: approximately HK$148,322,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 have been
recognised as revenue of the Group.

Provision for loss on onerous contracts

Management estimates the provision for loss on onerous
contracts, which are related to situations where motor
vehicles have not been delivered to the Group but
purchase agreements were entered into before 31
December 2024, being the present obligation of the
unavoidable costs less the economic benefits expected
to be received under the non-cancellable purchase
contract of motor vehicles. The expected economic
benefits are estimated based on forecast of future trade
with estimated selling price and estimated number of
motor vehicles to be traded under the existing market
condition while unavoidable costs are estimated based on
the motor vehicles purchase contracts that the Group is
obliged to settle.

Management conducted an assessment of the market
conditions and subsequent sales price and the estimates
and assumptions contained therein are reviewed
regularly. As at 31 December 2024, provision for loss
on onerous contracts remained outstanding amounted
to approximately HK$11,019,000 (2023: approximately
HK$11,390,000), details of which are set out in note 31.
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5. REVENUE 5. W=
Disaggregation of revenue 15 &5 41 53
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by BRIEESABRBEIPNEREL
major products or service lines is as follows: WA -
2024 2023
Sl 111 - E=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAE7T
(restated)
(18 E7)
Revenue from contracts with ERMBHREENE155
customers within the scope of HEANER SRS
HKFRS 15
Disaggregated by major products BRIEELTRBEES
or service lines
Trading of motor vehicles where KEBETFEAERZ
the Group acts as principal REES 30,803 148,322
Agency and service fees income from ZRBEERHREZRER
accessories sourcing RS & WA 1,345 1,362
32,148 149,684
Disaggregated by timing of revenue BEMBIRSERFE 155
recognition within the scope 0 [B] P9 % Ui 2 e S0 B R A
of HKFRS 15
Over time B - =
At point in time ¥4 055 ) B 32,148 149,684
32,148 149,684
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by BeamBe o zE R &AW EMAY
geographical markets is disclosed in note 6. BB 5RO B2 o
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

e MR RMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZ_NFE+"A=+—HIFE

6.

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) are regarded as the chief operating decision-maker.
The Executive Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources. Operating
segments were determined based on these reports.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments were as follows:

1. Trading of motor vehicles, provision of agency services
and accessories sourcing — trading of motor vehicles, and

provision of agency and related services

2. Trading of listed securities — securities trading

L) Brokerage and securities margin financing services —
provision of brokerage and securities margin financing

services (discontinued operations)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group disposed
of its subsidiaries which were principally engaged in brokerage
and securities margin financing business and discontinued
these operations undertaken by the disposed subsidiaries

following the disposal.

Information regarding the above segment is reported below.

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR

SBEHR

ARBZHTEE (ATEF)) KR
REBEBRREB -PTEFERALTE
BrRERE UFZRBERDEE
R RBZERETEEEEDL -

AREmMs AEERRE DM :

1. ARES RECERS REMH
REBESEEZRIEHAERME
BIARTS

2. BELTRF-HFEE

3. KBEKREFRETBRERB—
RHELCKBESFFRIELRERS
(BRILEEXER)

BE_Z_HNFE+-RBA=+—HLHE
B AERHERTENELELKRE
RETHREXBNNBLR  TREE
BRIELEMNBRABMEENZSE
e N

B LD MIERREW T

173



NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. SREEH &
Segment revenue and results P EBUN R FE 4R

UTHRAEBZPIHREDEE 2B
mRFEED

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_E_NME+-_A=+—HLHE

E

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations
[SE:J1
FEREER BEER
Trading of
motor
vehicles, Brokerage
provision of and
agency securities
services and Trading margin
accessories of listed financing
sourcing securities Sub-total services Total
REES ECERY S
RIERIERE BE EHRES
REFCHE LhES it B RH @it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue vak- 06
External sales SMEREH & 32,148 - 32,148 172 32,320
Inter-segment sales DEEHE - - - - -
32,148 - 32,148 172 32,320
Segment (loss)/profit N (B8 /&5 (82,372) (258) (82,630) 2,287 (80,343)
Interest income FIEWA 159
Other income and gains, net Hit A R W 3 58 2,999
Unallocated expenses FAERZ (18,538)
Share of loss of an associate AME—BHELBBE (77)
Finance costs FERA (3,446)
Loss before income tax FREERATSE (99,246)
Income tax credit FrERER 227
Loss for the year ERER (99,019)

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2024



6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Segment revenue and results (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE

6.

SBWEH (&

SE R ES (B
BE_T_=—F+"RA=+—HLE
B

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations

B&IE

SEREER REER

Trading of
motor

vehicles, Brokerage

provision of and

agency securities

services and Trading margin

accessories of listed financing
sourcing securities Sub-total services Total

REES Rk

RIEAERS BE BHREE
REHRE thES INEt RER 1ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT AT TAT FTAT

Segment revenue AUk

External sales SNEREHE 149,684 - 149,684 355 150,039
Inter-segment sales DEEHE . = - - -
149,684 - 149,684 355 150,039
Segment loss DB (5,847) (455) (6,302) (3,653) (9,955)
Interest income FIBA 116
Other income and gains, net =Rl NG 13,983
Unallocated expenses APERE (16,347)
Share of loss of an associate NME—EHE AR (1,041)
Finance costs G (2,706)
Loss before income tax MRS AT (15,950)
Income tax credit PSRt 154
Loss for the year FREE (15,796)

The measure used for reporting segment profits or losses is
adjusted loss before interest and income tax. To arrive at the
adjusted loss, the Group’s loss is further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such as fair value
loss on unlisted equity investment, gain on disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, certain interest
income and head office or corporate administration costs.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. SHEN &
Other segment information is as follows: HittpEENUWT -
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE-_Z_ME+-A=+—HLE
4
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
2RI
FRIEEER TERy
Trading of
motor
vehicles, Brokerage
provision of and
agency securities
services and Trading margin
accessories of listed financing
sourcing securities Unallocated Sub-total services Total
AEER Zak
RIKERE BE HEREE
REHKE LH#ES AR it MRS hy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TFHET TET TET
Additions to property, plant and equipment NE- BRREERE 1,124 1,071 - 2,195 - 2,195
Depreciation charges NREHTE 328 148 2,236 2,712 3 2,715
Fair value gain on listed equity securities THRAES 2 ATERR - - - - - -
Fair value loss on unlisted equity investment FEmREREZ ATESE - - 111 111 - 111
Gain on disposal of financial assets HERATEHABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss tHEENG - - - - - -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBATZ KE - - - - (4,000) (4,000)
Share of loss of an associate ME—BHEARHE i - - 77 - 77
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables  HEsREW E 5B R ERHE 429 - - 429 - 429
Impairment loss on advance payments for BEAENEATENESE
purchase of trading motor vehicles 75,805 - - 75,805 - 75,805
Impairment loss on advance payment for BEMENROTERNESE
acquisition of property - - 1,511 1,511 - 1,511
Loss on settlement of advance payments for GEEERENBOHESE
purchase of trading motor vehicles 2,076 - - 2,076 - 2,076
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE BBRREZ BB - - 914 914 - 914
Loss on disposal of listed equity securities HE FmRAES 2 ER - 62 - 62 - 62
Interest income FISWA (58) - (101) (159) k] (162)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZ-UFE+-A=+—HILFE

6. SAWEH (E
BE_T_—F+-H=+t—HILHF

=
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
B&IE
BELEEE REEE
Trading of
motor
vehicles, Brokerage
provision of and
agency securities
services and Trading margin
accessories of listed financing
sourcing securities Unallocated Sub-total services Total
REBS ECEY
RERERE 8 EERES
REHRE LHES FOE 1N RERH @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THET TER TER TET
Additions to property, plant and equipment ME - BBERRERE 1,650 - 36 1,686 - 1,686
Depreciation charges MiME 423 - 2,219 2,642 5 2,647
Fair value gain on listed equity securities ThRAESFZ ATERE - (60) - (60) - (60)
Fair value loss on unlisted equity investment FEmREREZ ATESE - - 3,650 3,650 S 3,650
Gain on disposal of financial assets HERATEHABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss SHEENS - - (16,386) (16,386) - (16,386)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR Wi S > > S S =
Share of loss of an associate ME—BHELTER 1,041 - - 1,041 - 1,041
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables  FEsAEWE BB ERE 415 - - 415 - 415
Impairment loss on advance payments for BERENRITENESE
purchase of trading motor vehicles - N - = B B
Impairment loss on advance payment for BEMENRITENESE
acquisition of property - N - - 1 B
Loss on settlement of advance payments for CHEERENBIIESE
purchase of trading motor vehicles 1 N - i r -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEHE KRR FEZEE 118 - - 118 - 118
Loss on disposal of listed equity securities HELmkAES 2 BE = = = = = =
Interest income FISWA (78) - (116) (194) [l (201)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.
The segment assets and segment liabilities of the Group as at
31 December 2024 and 2023 are analysed as follows:

DEEHE (&)

AEBR _E_NER_E_=
+ZBE=1+—HWNOHREERDHBE
BT

Segment assets 2024 2023
SEHEE “T-NE —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FET
(restated)
(18 E7)
Continuing operations FHEIREET
Trading of motor vehicles, provision AEB S EERIER
of agency services and KB
accessories sourcing 73,830 180,730
Trading of listed securities BE FHE 127 847
73,957 181,577
Discontinued operations [EEJIF -+ 1
Brokerage and securities margin B kEHREETMERE
financing services - 17,390
Total reportable segment assets AISRED I EERE 73,957 198,967
Unallocated assets ANOECEE 43,793 45,312
Consolidated assets REEE 117,750 244,279
Segment liabilities 2024 2023
SEE MR —E-NE —EC=HF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#T FET
(restated)
(#&E75)
Continuing operations FHEIREET
Trading of motor vehicles, provision HEB S IRERER
of agency services and FECHHE
accessories sourcing 71,308 85,156
Trading of listed securities BE FhEs = =
71,308 85,156
Discontinued operations SRk -+
Brokerage and securities margin B RS (ReE TR E RS
financing services - 5,753
Total reportable segment liabilities ARESHEEEE 71,308 90,909
Unallocated liabilities roEcEE 31,672 35,151
Consolidated liabilities a8l 102,980 126,060
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets consist primarily of certain property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets, inventories,
trade receivables, certain prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, certain financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and certain bank balances and cash.

Segment liabilities consists primarily of trade payables, certain
other payables and accruals, contract liabilities, provisions and
certain lease liabilities.

Geographical information

The Group mainly operated in the PRC, including Hong Kong.
Revenue from external customers are allocated based on the
geographical areas in which the customers are located.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and non-current assets
from continuing operations (excluding financial assets) by
geographical location are as follows:

6.

SBWEH (&
DHEETBZAEBOVE HERR
B BLEE - CRAREE -FE -BW
B MIEBoBANRIE BRI R HAM
BWHRIENETRATESABaZE
RMEEUARBORITERMEE -

NHERTFEAERMESZRE B
HthENREREFRE GHNEE
BEURETHEAR-

HEHEE
AREIERDE (BEEH) S8
BANRES 2 WS RES i NES

e

FERRMEBUBEE DHNREFEL
BEEZORaRIFRBEE TRES
MEE) DFOTF -

Continuing operations 2024 2023
FBREER —E_NEF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET
(restated)
(R EF)
Revenue from external customers RHEIMPEE UL

The PRC, excluding Hong Kong FE (REIEEE) 32,148 149,684

Non-current assets (excluding ERHEE (FEIE

financial assets) ETREE)

Hong Kong 5% 18,797 19,494
The PRC, excluding Hong Kong FE (FEEER) 1,505 3,914
20,302 23,408
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Geographical information (continued)

The geographical location of non-current assets (excluding
financial assets) is based on the physical location of assets
(in the case of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets), the location of the operations to which they are
allocated (in the case of intangible assets), and location of
operations (in the case of interests in associates).

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the Group’s
revenue from continuing operations is as follows:

SBWEH (&

EER (8

HRME - RERRFEREREEE
FERPBEE FEEEMEE) 2HE
UENDEREENBRUEME B
BREE HMIBEUEENHEMEE
BUHME > RN ELQR 2w Bl
BEREEMME -

FERRZEN
HEEBRXRBEFELEEBTN R
10% U L2 B2 R IR &5IMT -

Continuing operations 2024 2023
FEBREES i< 11 - 2=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET AT
Trading of motor vehicles, provision ;SEHE 5 - iR IERFE &
of agency services and [TAER A
accessories sourcing
Customer A ERA 8,452 39,193
Customer B =FB 5,265 34,756
Customer C ERC N/A FiE B 18,908
E The customer C did not contribute over 10% of the Group’s revenue for # ERCREBE_E_MNF+-R=+—H

the year ended 31 December 2024,

IEFEIREAEBKFHAII0% L
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZ_NFE+"A=+—HIFE

of RMB20,000,000 for the proposed acquisition of a PRC entity and such
earnest money was recognised as an expense for the prior year ended
31 December 2017. During the prior year ended 31 December 2023, the
earnest money previously paid to the extent of RMB1,000,000, equivalent
to HK$1,100,000 was refunded to the Group which was included in
sundry income for that year.

(b) For the prior year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised gain
on disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — unlisted
equity investment of HK$16,386,000, details of which are set out in note
25(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR

7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 7. HthWARYE ~ (§518) B8
2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH#T FHET
(restated)
(1&E75)
Continuing operations FHEIREET
Other income Hthlg A
Interest income from bank deposits RITEHRFEWA 159 194
Dividends from financial assets BAFESAB®RZ
at fair value through profit or loss THEEZRE - 100
Rental income HEWA 120 -
Sundry income (Note (a)) HIEW A (15E(@)) 469 1,116
748 1,410
Other gains and losses Hthlh i R 518
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets & A {ET AB@
at fair value through profit or loss THMEEZAFE
(Note 25) (B548) Wz (HFsE25)
— Listed equity securities — LR AE S - 60
— Unlisted equity investment —JE MR ERE (111) (3,650)
— Unlisted fund investment —JFLEMEERE - 31
(111) (3,559)
Exchange gains, net P& 2 UL 21 75 KB 2,561 100
(Loss)/gain on disposal of financial assets HEZAFETAEREZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREE (BB W=
— Listed equity securities — EWRAES (62) -
— Unlisted equity investment (Note (b)) —JEEMRERE (H5ED)) = 16,386
— Unlisted fund investment —FLmEERE (40) -
Other gains, net H g mF 28 2,348 12,927
Other income and gains, net H U A & U m i3 &8 3,096 14,337
Notes: Ff5E :
(@) In previous years, the Group had paid earnest money amounted to a total () RBEFE AEEAEZZWE K+

BEREL 4% A AR %20,000,0007T 89 #H
E2 EHARESRIAEE_S—tHF
+ZA=+—HLBEEENREZ -RE
E_E_=F+"A=+—HIEBEFE
B> TRl Z AR E AR 1,000,000 7T
(FBE 11,100,000/ 7T) REFAER > I
STAZEERBUA S

REBEEZZE-_=F+"HB=+—HL1B
FEE AEERIHERLAFES AR
HrEMEE-FLTREREZNGES
16,386,00078 70 > s¥ BEH N ir & B iR &
FfsE25(b) ©
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8. FINANCE COSTS =127
2024 2023
—EmE B
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FAET
Continuing operations FHEIREET
Interest on lease liabilities HEaszZHME 35 63
Interest on borrowings El A= 3,411 2,643
3,446 2,706
9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX FROM CONTINUING REFEREEBHNIRFRSRATS
OPERATIONS 18
2024 2023
—E-mE 2=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT FAETT
Loss before income tax from continuing R BIFEKEEHEN
operations has been arrived at after FRPETISMAIE 18
charging: B TIEIE
Auditor’s remuneration Z & BBl &
- Audit services — BB 590 630
— Non-audit services — I BARTS 40 100
Loss on disposal of property, plant and ~ HE¥ 4 RREZFBE
equipment 914 118
Legal and professional fees FERREXER 1,570 465
Consultancy fees BHE R 467 370
Exhibition and marketing fee REERTSEEER 470 502

R ZstAGEET REMEEI
ABKRZIIPWHMFAZ

The above expenses are included in other expenses presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

10. ES@\ARAX

2024 2023
—ENE “BT=HF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#T FET
(restated)
(f&&E75)
Continuing operations FBREERS
Wages and salaries TERE 10,351 10,668
Pension costs — defined contribution BAREMRE—TEER
schemes 262 256
Employee benefit expenses including EEGHRS BiEEEME
directors’ emoluments (Note 11) (FFE11) 10,613 10,924

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited
contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the
defined contribution schemes, and are available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years (2023: Nil).

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance,
Chapter 57, the Group has the obligation to pay long service
payment (“LSP”) to qualifying employees in Hong Kong under
certain circumstances (e.g. dismissal by employers or upon
retirement), subject to a minimum of 5 years employment
period, based on certain formula.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance passed in 1995 permits the Group to utilise the
Group’s mandatory MPF contributions, plus/minus any positive/
negative returns thereof, for the purpose of offsetting LSP
payable to an employee (the “Offsetting Arrangement’).

The Amendment Ordinance was gazetted on 17 June 2022,
which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived from
employers’ mandatory MPF contributions to offset the LSP. The
Abolition will officially take effect on the Transition Date (i.e., 1
May 2025). Separately, the Government of the HKSAR is also
expected to introduce a subsidy scheme to assist employers
for a period of 25 years after the Transition Date on the LSP
payable by employers up to a certain amount per employee
per year. The impact from the Amendment Ordinance on the
Group’s LSP liability is considered insignificant.

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR

RESHR ~EETERNESRET
BAMARE 8 MAOR W I AT AR R
REBEZEBAEMCEZ=F:18) -

RIB(EBREHEG)F7E2 > AEEE
BEBRT (B0 8 E M &R IKE)
EEEIRNGEREAREXTRER
B (REKRBE)) HEERETAR
BEMRLDBEE-

SN R =N B FEBBRIEEEATE
BRI AFEEEREER
bR EEs N ML IREERIE
S EEER DURHERE B S 2 RAR
& (MREHZ ) ©

BERAR 2 _FB+tHA2
b > BERR T FR 1B £ 8 B IEMPFEIAR RY
F& ST B F BRI 3 R A AR 5 = RO UE - BS
BRREEERR B "2 _nFHA—
H) EXNER LI EBFHITHE
TR E8E BB N26FE R h
—IEMRE SR UEBREEXN—ER
BENESUEESENRAREE EF]
FOBRAERRMRFEEETNFE
WRB/RER
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EEM=E
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BHE_Z MO+ "HA=+—HILHF
E
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances, contributions
and benefits to pension
Fees in kind scheme Total
&
Name of directors Bk BHhEiEz
BEEi4 ik BWHE EEHR o
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FERT FET FERT
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wang Jiawei (Chairman and IEREE
Chief Executive Officer) (FEHRTHER) - 1,800 18 1,818
Ms. Lai Yuk Mui REBELT - 600 18 618
Non-executive Director FRITES
Mr. Liu Runtong Epeliahes - - - =
Independent Non-executive BUEHTES
Directors
Professor Zhang Benzheng RAEHR 130 - - 130
Mr. Li Jianxing FRTEE 125 - - 125
Professor Chen Shu Wen Wi SR 120 - - 120
Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan (note) FRELE () 120 - - 120

495 2,400 36 2,931
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 11. EFEMzE &
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BHE_Z-_-_F+Z“H=+—HIL#HF
B
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances, contributions
and benefits to pension
Fees in kind scheme Total
e
Name of directors EMR  BHASHEZ
EEae ik i (FESEEA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wang Jiawei (Chairman and IEREE
Chief Executive Officer) (FEHRTHER) - 1,800 18 1,818
Ms. Lai Yuk Mui REBELT - 600 18 618
Non-executive Director EHTEE
Mr. Liu Runtong el iahe = S S =
Independent Non-executive BULEHTES
Directors
Professor Zhang Benzheng RAEHR 130 = = 130
Mr. Li Jianxing FRITEE 125 - - 125
Professor Chen Shu Wen Wi SR 120 - - 120
Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan (note) FRELE () 78 - - 78
453 2,400 36 2,889
Note: Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan appointed as independent Non-executive Director of ek THBLEEEZAEARRABDBILIERITE
the Company with effect from 8 May 2023. B EBEIE=FRA/N\BEEK-
During the current year, no emoluments were paid by the RAFE AEEWEBEEZ IR
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon B <& (E 2 R 51 0N B8 3 72 0 B8 A 5 B
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2023: ZRENEABRREE (T2 2=
Nil). None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any M) EN IREEWNERRENE
remuneration during the year (2023: Nil). FAfE (CE =% 8) o
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12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 12. AARBHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the FAXREBRRAEEEHTALTEERS
Group for the year include two (2023: two) directors, whose (ZEZ=F  MA) EF5 HEZM
remuneration are set out in note 11. e NN
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining BT=%CE2I=F . =Z%) =M
three (2023: three) highest individuals are as follows: ATHBNEARZEW0 T ¢
2024 2023
—E-NE ==
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FAET
Salaries and other emoluments e R EMME 3,418 3,600
Retirement schemes contributions SRR ST B H R 54 18
3,472 3,618
The emoluments of the three (2023: three) individuals with the =R (CEI=F 2R REHFALZ
highest emoluments are within the following bands: B pt T 5 EE
2024 2023
“EME ==
Number of Number of
individual individual
A¥ A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,00078 7T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 BTE
2,500,000 7T 1 1
During the current year, no emoluments were paid by the AEE - AEBTIERODAGRSHAL
Group to the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to T EAMEEARSIMBLR MR
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of FEBERZBNEAEREE CE
office (2023: Nil). =)o
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13. INCOME TAX CREDIT 13. FhiSHIESR
2024 2023
—E-E B =
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT TFAET
Continuing operations FBIREET
Current tax BNHEATR I8
— (Over)/under provision of PRC —BFFEPRHEE
enterprise income tax in FriSin (FBEasH)
prior years SEBEBERR (45) 28
Deferred tax credit (Note 34) PRIEFR IR S (I 5E34) (182) (182)
Income tax credit TSRk R (227) (154)
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax and PRC enterprise HREBATSRBEE T _WNE+=
income tax has been made in the consolidated financial B=+T—BULEFEELEREEE K
statements as the group companies incurred tax losses for the TERGEMBERRPUMEBNER
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil). KRAPBEGEFAERRER (T22=
&) o
The income tax credit can be reconciled to the loss before FTEMIEEEEaEas hEMEE
income tax from continuing operations per the consolidated WARRKRZIFERS EERMERA
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as ZEEEERNT
follows:
2024 2023
“ENEF —B=fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FET
(restated)
C<==270)
(Loss)/profit before income tax: bRPFISIR AT (B548) @ F
Continuing operations FBREET (101,533) (12,297)
Discontinued operations BRI E TS 2,287 (3,653)
(99,246) (15,950)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates in BEBRBEEEERE
respective tax jurisdiction AEZIRIE (23,786) (2,311)
Income not subject to tax BEZRRUA (5,748) (3,503)
Expenses not deductible for MNIBEE NN 2B
tax purposes 23,187 2,926
Unused tax losses not recognised FERZ KRB ARIERBE 6,118 2,608
Prior year’s tax losses utilised FRAZABTEEEREEIE (23) (20)
Temporary differences not provided REHE 2 ERERE 70 118
(Over)/under provision in prior year BEEE (BrEER)
BETE (45) 28
Income tax credit TSt ® (227) (154)
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14.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 9 July 2024, the Company entered into an agreement
with certain independent third parties to dispose of 100%
equity interest in a subsidiary, Sinofortune Financial Holdings
(BVI) Limited (the “Sinofortune BVI”). Sinofortune BVI and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
brokerage and securities margin financing services. The
disposal was completed on 9 July 2024, the date on which
control of Sinofortune BVI passed to the acquirers and the
Group discontinued its operations undertaken by the disposed
subsidiaries on that date.

The results from the discontinued operations of provision
of brokerage and securities margin financing services for
the period from 1 January 2024 to 9 July 2024, which are
included in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year, are set out below. The
comparative figures in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income have been restated to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

14, BEIEEEEE

N _E_MNEFETANH ARBHEE
FRIE=AF:]LpZE LENBER
F]Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI)
Limited (T Sinofortune BVI]) 22100%A%
S 7E © Sinofortune BVIR EL It @A T
FTENERHEESLRBSREBTHE
R -HESEBER _ZE_NELtHA
H5erk > A& H » Sinofortune BVIRJ#E
FIEEREWE S MAEETRE
HRIFBEHENBRABMKEER -

B ME-—RA—HE-ZT-_MHF
TANHERE REBRIERRHEEL
hEBFRETMERTEFT 2B G
AFEGREEDREME2EKRARR)
I T o raBm R EMEERAR
KB FELEY UNEEFE
HEH G-

Period from

1 January
2024 to Year ended
9 July 31 December
2024 2023
—EMEF
—HB—HZE BHE
Sl 111 - B =
+tBhB +-B=+—H
HAR IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHATT FAETT
Loss for the period/year from REBRIEREERKZ
discontinued operations (as below) A FREE (T (1,713) (3,653)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERERLKE SRS
undertaking brokerage and TRERBZNEATZ
securities margin financing services Uz 4,000 -
Net gain/(loss) from discontinued REDRIEKSER
operations P (B518) 2,287 (3,6583)
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14. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 14.

Loss for the period/year from discontinued operations

BRRILEEERY (&)
REEBERLEEEEH AR FAEG

#

Period from
1 January
2024 to Year ended
9 July 31 December
2024 2023
“E-ME
—B—HZE #H=E
—ZE-mE —E-=
+tBhB +-RA=+—H
HAR EFE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET TAET
Revenue & 172 355
Other income and losses, net HMW A R85 243 41
Other direct costs HBEZA A (28) (72)
Employee benefit expenses BITEMZH (1,431) (2,740)
Depreciation of property, plant and MES BB EITE
equipment (3) (5)
Other expenses Hhp (666) (1,232)
Loss before tax BrIRAIE I8 (1,713) (3,653)
Income tax credit FT8MmiER - =
Loss for the period/year B FREIE (1,713) (3,653)
Period from
1 January
2024 to Year ended
9 July 31 December
2024 2023
o 11 3
—B—HZE #H=E
+tBhB +-B=+—H
HAR IEEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT TABTT
Cash flows from discontinued BRIEEEERE 2
operations RERE
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from KEEHZIBERAS
operating activities () FE 1,732 (3,450)
Net cash outflow from KREFEZREMEEE
investing activities (2) =
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from MEEFZEERAS
financing activities () FME 2,720 (580)

Sinofortune BVINE EXBENRHEH
HA RV BR E (B 3R BB AR B 5E37 o

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Sinofortune
BVI at the date of disposal are disclosed in note 37.
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15. LOSS PER SHARE 15.
From continuing operations
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company is

REFH

FRR5IR

ERBHEBEANBEREFEEEES
NEREFARBEGERDRE T

based on the following data: BEE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Loss for the purpose of basic ARstEEREXEIE
loss per share B E51E
Loss for the year attributable to owners of ZA B #EH AL B FEL
the Company from continuing operations &% #pEE R (101,039) (12,124)
2024 2023
“E-NF —B-fF
’000 000
A& T A&
Number of shares for the purpose of FARHEESREREEN
basic loss per share &8
Weighted average number of ordinary FARBEITEERMNE
shares in issue during the year FH# 7,748,958 7,748,958

From continuing and discontinued operations KB
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing and discontinued operations attributable to owners

of the Company is based on the following data:

BEEEGREBILEEER

AREEAABEREFBEEXER
RERIEEKEXF 2 SRELREE
ERTSIRE T EEE

2024 2023
—E-mE - S—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT TET
Loss for the purpose of basic loss ARt EEREREIBNEE
per share
Loss for the year attributable to owners ~ ARAB A AENENS
of the Company E518 (98,752) (15,777)
The number of ordinary shares used for the calculation of ARt B REFESEEERBEAILL
the basic loss per share from continuing and discontinued KREEBNEREABEENZEBRE
operations is the same as that detailed above for the basic loss B FEHMNRBRFESE XN
per share from continuing operations. SREAREIEER -
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LOSS PER SHARE (continued)

From discontinued operations

The calculation of basic and diluted earning/(loss) per share
from discontinued operations attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

15.

SRR (@)

REBRILESER
ERBHEBEANBEERLEEEXRT
BREARBERN (BB HIRE
TR E

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Profit/(loss) for the purpose of basic BARHESRERERN, (&
earning/(loss) per share 18) Wi, (B538)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable AABHEBEAFREGREES
to owners of the Company from BIEREER R, (B18)
discontinued operations 2,287 (3,653)

The number of ordinary shares used for the calculation of the
basic earning/(loss) per share from discontinued operations is
the same as that detailed above for the basic loss per share
from continuing operations.

Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share for both of the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 is presented as there were no
potential ordinary shares in issue for both of the years.

DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not recommend payment of
a dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2024
(2023: Nil).
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16.

BRI EEREEEXHERELR
F/ (B8 WERREE R EXEIT
NRBEEXTSRESEGEER-

SRIBEEHEE
ARBEE_E_MNERrR_E_=
+ZA=+—HLImMEEFEHERD
TEBEEER QU EE27ZMEEE
BRI EEIE -

B2

KA EEFEEMNBE_S-UEF
+2A=+—HLEFEERTRE C=
T o
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ME-HRRBE
Leasehold Office
land and Leasehold equipment Computer Motor
buildings improvements  and furniture equipment vehicles Total
HE MAZR
TiREFT HAEVERE Rfxfih BiERE HE h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET TER TET TET
At 1 January 2023 RZ§-=%-A-H
Cost A& 40,327 1,336 1,106 730 5,418 48,917
Accumulated depreciation [EE (19,222) (1,078) (969) (721) (4,116) (26,106)
Carrying amount REE 21,105 258 137 9 1,302 22,811
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-Z-=E
+ZA=t+-ALEE
Carrying amount at 1 January 2023 RIZZ=F5-F-HZKER 21,105 258 137 9 1,302 22,811
Additions, at cost RE BAE - = 36 = 1,650 1,686
Currency translation difference BERAEEDR - @) 92) - (53) (153)
Disposals and write off HERMH - - - - (1,462) (1,462)
Depreciation charge TERY (1,619) (17) ) 9 (368) 2,072)
Carrying amount at RZEZ=F+ZA=+—-HAZKEME
31 December 2023 19,492 233 10 6 1,069 20,810
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=%+ZR=+-AH
Cost %S 40,327 1,321 1,121 730 5,341 48,840
Accumulated depreciation KiHNE (20,835) (1,088) (1,111) (724) (4,272) (28,030)
Carrying amount REME 19,492 233 10 6 1,069 20,810
Year ended 31 December 2024 HE_E-ME
+ZB=+-ALEE
Carrying amount at 1 January 2024 RIE_RE-BE—-HBZKAE 19,492 233 10 6 1,069 20,810
Additions, at cost RE BAK - - 40 5 2,150 2,195
Currency translation difference BRAEER - (77) 73 - 87 (41)
Disposals and write off HE Rithss - - - - (914) (914)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT - - - (8) = (8)
Depreciation charge ERS (1,613) (107) (63) 4 (363) (2,150)
Carrying amount at RIZZME+ZA=1+—HZKAE
31 December 2024 17,879 49 60 2 1,905 19,895
At 31 December 2024 RZE_ME+ZA=+-H
Cost A 40,327 1,298 1,121 530 5,875 49,151
Accumulated depreciation KitE (22,448) (1,249) (1,061) (528) (3,970) (29,256)
Carrying amount REE 17,879 49 60 2 1,905 19,895
Note: P EE -
As at 31 December 2024, leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong with RIBINEF+_A=+—H REBFERE
the carrying amount of approximately HK$17,879,000 (2023: approximately {E4917,879,000% 75 (ZZ == : £919,492,000
HK$19,492,000) was pledged to secure the borrowings of the Group (Note 32). BT 2 HE T RIEFERIEANERNER 2 &

AR (P95E32) ©
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

18. EAERE

Office

premises

MAEME

HK$’000

FAETT

Carrying amount at 1 January 2023 RIEZ=F—F—HZIRHEE 1,611

Depreciation charged for the year FRITEMRS (575)

Exchange realignment bE 0 S EE (43)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2023 and RZE_=F+"F=+—HBK

1 January 2024 2N —FE—HZEREE 993

Depreciation charged for the year FRITERS (565)

Exchange realignment fE R oA (21)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2024 RIZEZOF+ZA=+—H
ZIREE 407
2024 2023
—E-mE =B =

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHTT BT

Total cash outflow for leases HEZIREMHAREE 608 615

For both of the years presented, the Group leases office
premises for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for fixed term of one to three years, but may have extension
and termination options. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR

KA MEFE  AEBHORHEE
HEMAEYE - HEGHHEEHR
wm—E=ZF BREAEERKILEE
-HERMRENEREER AT
B R B2 5% 1 o BB RE AR HA I ST A BT
HEHERRER  ZEBRBASONTE
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19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. MCEE
Software Trading rights Total
B RAtE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FHET FET
At 1 January 2023 and NZE-=Z§—RF—HR
31 December 2023 —E-=%+=-H=+—H
Cost Bl 104 3,224 3,328
Accumulated amortisation Rt (104) (3,224) (3,328)
Carrying amount REE - - -
At 1 January 2024 R-E-MNE—HA—H
Cost Bl A 104 3,224 3,328
Accumulated amortisation 5 (104) (3,224) (3,328)
Carrying amount REME = = =
Year ended 31 December 2024 BEFE_E_ME+_-_B=+—HILEE
Carrying amount at 1 January 2024 RZE-_NFE—-F—HZIREE - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKRBAT - (3,224) (3,224)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries 1A 5 BT 88 /8 B B 8 = 3,224 3,224
At 31 December 2024 RZE2ZNFE+-B=+—H - = =
At 31 December 2024 R-E-_mE+”-A=+—H
Costs 7% 104 - 104
Accumulated amortisation ESE (104) = (104)
Carrying amount IREE - - -

Note:

The trading rights as at 31 December 2023 represents two trading rights on
the Stock Exchange and one trading right on the Hong Kong Futures Exchange

Limited.

M 5E

RIFZ_=F+-A=+—HzZXZRIEWERH
RFARFER—IBEBBHER

Rtk

BERERABZ
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20. STATUTORY DEPOSITS AND OTHER ASSETS

20. ZEBRERHMEE

2024 2023
—EME —ET=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FAET
Hong Kong Securities Clearing BEEFPREEBRAE
Company Limited (“HKSCC”) (TEB&HEHED
Contribution fund deposit REETEE - 100
Admission fee deposit WANE L& - 100
The Stock Exchange of ERBMERZBRAR
Hong Kong Limited
Compensation fund deposit EEESRE - 100
Fidelity fund deposit BERETEE - 100
Stamp duty deposit ENTEM T & - 5
- 405

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

21.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2024 and 2023:

Name of subsidiary

WEAR AR

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity
S Rtk

ARERER

21.

Particulars of issued

share capital/
registered capital
ERiTRE,/
AMEREE

RHERARZIRE
UTFTAR_E_WMEER_ZE=-=
+ZA=Z+—HZEATDETEWRBA
BI%E

Sinofortune Financial
Holdings (BVI) Limited (note 2)

Sinofortune Financial
Holdings (BVI) Limited (ffz£2)

Stockmartnet Limited

EHHBRAT

Sinofortune Securities Limited
(note 2)

EREFARRAA (H52)

Sinofortune Asset Management
Limited (note 2)

EREEEEARAR (W:2)

Sinofortune Financial Capital Limited

(note 2)

ERTBAUEARAT (W52)

British Virgin Islands,

Issued capital

limited liability company 611,700 ordinary shares

RERYES BRAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B8 BRAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

A
R
iy
vl
D]
ol

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

A
R
it
vl
B>
ol

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

of US$1 each
B&17611,700%

ERkEEIZTZERBR

Issued capital

3 ordinary shares
with no par value
EETIR
BREBEzEER

Issued capital
77,000,000

ordinary shares

with no par value

B %1777,000,0008%
BRHEzEER

Issued capital
500,000

ordinary share
with no par value
B%17500,0008%
REBEzEBR

Issued capital
2,400,000

ordinary share

with no par value
E/%172,400,0008%
REEZERR

Attributable equity
interest
and voting power
held by the Company
BARGHER
REELD R FE
As at
31 December
®+-R=+-H Principal activities and
2024 2023 place of operations
—EIRE “T--F IEEBREEMA
% %
- 100 Investment holding
- 100 RERk
100 100 Investment holding
100 100 REZK
- 100 Securities and futures
brokerage and securities
margin financing services
in Hong Kong
- 100 REBREESRBE
KM RBESsREER
Bk
- 100 Asset management
- 100 BEEHE
- 100 Corporate finance
services
- 100 TERBRS

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2024
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARBHE

Place of incorporation/

establishment and

kind of legal entity
AL AR

AERIRER

Particulars of issued

share capital/
registered capital
BETRE
HMERFEE

21. RMBARZIRE (&

Principal activities and
place of operations

TEEBREEHA

IFN-GT Financial Holdings Limited

IFN-GT Financial Holdings Limited

Sinofortune Property Limited

ERMEBRAR

Aceview International Limited

RRERERAD

GoHi Holdings Limited

GoHi Holdings Limited

MEEHBERELABRAR
(transliterated as Shenzhen
Sinofortune Education
Investment Consultancy
Company Limited)

MIEEYERELAERAR

FEREEEEBLEFRAR
(transliterated as Shenzhen
Guoyin Brilliant Precious Metals
Limited)

RIERELELRCEERAT

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

RBREUHE BERAF

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&8 BRAR

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

RERUHE BERAF

British Virgin Islands,

Issued capital

1 ordinary share
of US$1 each
BEMR

EREEIZTZERR

Issued capital

1 ordinary share
with no par value
BETIR
REEZERK

Issued capital

1 ordinary share
of US$1 each
BEMR

EREEIZTZERR

Issued capital

limited liability company 35,000 ordinary shares

REEYES BRAR

PRC, foreign wholly-

owned enterprise

hESERELE

PRC, limited
liability company

hE BRAF

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR

of US$1 each
B 81735,000%

EhkEEIZTZERER

Registered capital
of RMB40,000,000

AMEXA
AR #40,000,0007¢

Registered capital
of RMB20,000,000

HMELS
AR #20,000,0007¢

Attributable equity
interest
and voting power
held by the Company
BREFHES
REEZRIEERE
As at
31 December
®+=B=+-H
2024 2023
ZEImE “T-=F
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
95 95
95 95

Investment holding

Property holding in
Hong Kong

REBRENE

Investment holding

Investment holding

REER

Provision of education
information and
consultancy services
in the PRC

RAEREZFEN
Rt

Precious metals
brokerage and
spot trading in the PRC

RoERES 2 BEL
REER
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21. RMBARZIRE (&
Attributable equity
interest
and voting power
held by the Company
FRRFAERS
BEEERIERE
. . . . As at
Place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued 31 December
establishment and share capital/ — o
kind of legal entity registered capital ®+ZA=+-H Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary HMML BRItk BRTRE 2024 2023 place of operations
WEARAHE EERRER AMESHE —F-ME —T_=F TELBREE MY
% %
ERENLEEREZERAT  PRC, limited Registered capital 99.67 99.67 Trading of motor vehicles
(transliterated as Chongging liability company of RMB150,000,000 provision of agency
Sheng Yu Hong Jia services and accessories
International Trading sourcing in the PRC
Company Limited)
EERAARERERERAD  HE BRAH HMERS 99.67 99.67 RAESEER
AR #150,000,0007T REARRS
REH#ARE
BOREBREREZERAE  PRC, limited Registered capital 98.67 98.67 Trading of motor vehicles
(transliterated as Hai Kou Shenhua  liability company of RMB50,000,000 in the PRC
Tongda International Trading
Company Limited)
BORERAERERZERAD  HE BRAH HMERS 98.67 98.67 REESEES
AE#50,000,0007T
FNEEREMABEBERAZ  PRC, foreign wholly- Registered capital 100 100 Investment holding
(transliterated as Shenzhen owned enterprise of HK$50,000,000 in the PRC
Huayi Biotechnology
Group Company Limited)
MIEREMUBREEBRRE  FE IEBELE HAMELRR 100 100 RAEEEZER
50,000,000 ¢
FNEGRBEYREBRAT  PRC, limited Registered capital 20 ) Inactive
(transliterated as Shenzhen liability company of RMB5,000,000
Huayi Health Biotechnology
Company Limited)
MIERREZEMREBRRE  FE BRAT AMELRR 20 90 BEH
AR #5,000,00075
Notes: P EE
1. The place of operation of subsidiaries are located on their place of 1. it B A B B9 4R & Hh Bh A X H 5 i B AL ih
incorporation. 2ho
2. On 9 July 2024, the Company entered into an agreement with certain 2. RIE_NE+LtBAAH ARARAEET

independent third parties to dispose of the 100% equity interest in
a subsidiary, Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited (note 37).
The disposal was completed on 9 July 2024. Upon completion of the
disposal, Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited and its subsidiaries,
Sinofortune Securities Limited, Sinofortune Asset Management Limited
and Sinofortune Financial Capital Limited, ceased to be the subsidiaries of
the Group.

BUE=F:lUpE HEWBAR
Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited
HI100% M AR (MizF37) - HEFEER
“E_NELtANBTR e HETRE
Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited
REMBARERESBRAT ERE
EEBEERAGIREEEHMMERRAR
TEARERNMBAR
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21.
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,

RBARZRE (&)

ERFIEERARHEARTNERAE
EENIBEZEZNBAT -EF
o EMNB AR ZENRENR

in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive BER K.
length.
2024 2023
—EUE —E=5
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT FAETT
Company’s commitment to provide KABREREBHE AT
funding to subsidiaries if called RHESZ KGR 65,566 82,775

RZE_ONERZZEZ=F+"A
=t+—H UEAREAEERKEBAT

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, there are no contingent
liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the subsidiaries.

ZRmZHAREE
Material non-controlling interests BAIEZERIELS
The non-controlling interests in respect of each of the BRAAR N BIERA M B A B B FE AR #E
Company’s relevant subsidiaries are not material. mIAAREK
22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22, MEB ATz
2024 2023
—EE ==
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHT FHET
Cost of unlisted investments in REE AR ZIELTEERAE
associates 21,171 21,893
Share of post-acquisition losses DEW BB EE R
and other comprehensive income H2muA 152 229
Impairment loss recognised BERREERE (23,180) (23,180)
Exchange realignment BE 2 oR 1,857 1,136
- 78
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars regarding the associates are as follows:

22,

REEQRZz2#Ex (&
ERBEARZEFBRHEIINT

Attributable equity
interest
and voting power
held by the Group
SEMSERER
REEGRREE
Place of As at
incorporation/ 31 December
establishment and R+-B=+-H
kind of legal entity Particulars of Principal activities and
Name of associate M Rt registered capital 2024 2023 place of operations
BERRRE BRiEEERER dAMESHE —F-ME —T°-F FTEEBRELME
% %
FNFERBEREERAE PRC, limited Registered capital 38 38 Provision of computer
EBFEEEEERE R liability company of RMB100,000,000 system service and
REFLERRAR) (AIEEE)) TE BRAS HAMELA information technology
(transliterated as Shenzhen Xixun AE1100,000,0007t consultancy service in
Network Technology Company the PRC
Limited (formerly known as TEREREABRZS
Shenzhen Qianhai First China BR¥ R (5 B BT 50 AR %
International Commodities
Exchange Centre Limited))
(“Qianhai First China”)
FNFERBEREERLE
FRANA S EEREE R
RBALERAR) (TRIEEE))
FNBHREREERAR PRC, limited Registered capital - 40 Inactive
(transliterated as Shenzhen liability company of RMB50,000,000 mEK
Si Te Ecotechnology Company B AR AT HMELA
Limited)* (note) A 50,000,000t

R BRERFREBRAE (WD)

The Group’s commitment to contribute registered capital of this
associate, if called, at 31 December 2024 amounted to RMBNil (2023:
RMB18,982,000).

Note: Shenzhen Si Te Ecotechnology Company Limited was deregistered on 28

August 2024.

AERRZ_ZENEF+ZA=+—HBXK
EHZHEEATNEMELR (WWEKR)
HEARBET (ZE_=ZF: AR
18,982,0007T) °
e RYIBFBRAEARADNR IS I MNE
NBZ+N\HBsEHe
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Qianhai First China

Summarised financial information of Qianhai First China

22,

REEQRZz2#Ex (&
ABEE
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FIBEEZHMBEHEE

2024 2023
—ZE-mE 2=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TAET

Current assets MEE 22,086 23,454

Non-current assets EREEE - 3

Current liabilities mEas (32,086) (33,761)

Net liabilities & 555 E (10,000) (10,304)

2024 2023

—E-OE =B =

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHTT FAET

Revenue W = 529 =

Loss for the year FREE (32) (6,044)

Aggregate amounts of translation RgBHE QB 2

reserve arising from translating of the BAFIRERMELEZ

associate’s financial statements PEREBESRE 336 160

Total comprehensive income/(losses) 2 EUW A (E518) 4228 304 (5,884)
Unrecognised share of comprehensive 2S£ KSR E (L 2

income/(losses) for the year WA (B518) 115 (2,235)

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22,

Qianhai First China (continued)

Summarised financial information of Qianhai First China

(continued)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in

the consolidated financial statements:

AIBEE (&

REEQRZz2#Ex (&

MHENBERERSYHBRRTES

ZIRBERAR Z o 2 BREENHR:

FIBEEZHBEENBE (7

2024 2023
—EE - ——
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FETT
Net liabilities of Qianhai First China AIBEEZAERE (10,000) (10,304)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership in ZNEBRAEEEZ
Qianhai First China FREDT 38% 38%
The Group’s share of net liabilities AEBEGLAIBEES
of Qianhai First China BEFE (3,800) (3,915)
Goodwill on acquisition included in FAREBEHMEAT ZHAEAZ
cost of investment in associate Ui m e 14,150 14,150
The Group’s unrecognised share of REBRERELZEE
comprehensive losses 518 12,830 12,945
Impairment loss recognised on interest FREAE AT 2 2
in associate (Note) EREARERE (M) (23,180) (23,180)

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ZE BRI BEEZEH

in Qianhai First China

SREIE -

Note:

In the prior year ended 31 December 2017, Qianhai First China suspended its
business operations as a result of the implementation of review by the PRC local
government of the laws and regulations governing the operations of Qianhai

GEX

BHE_B—tHF+__A=+—HLBEFE H
I R B 3 75 B Y B A
ERETEE RSB EL

BEELETHHER
HAREEE - pLlbmm

First China. In this regard, impairment loss on interest in this associate was fully EOREZMERB R REBEERZFE

recognised in the consolidated financial statements for that year, and the Group
ceased to account for the associate using the equity method of accounting.

Up to the end of the reporting period, the PRC local government’s review of
the laws and regulations is still in progress, accordingly, no adjustment on the
impairment loss previously recognised on the interest in associate is considered

to be made in the consolidated financial statements of the current year.

Certain comprehensive losses of this associate were not recognised as
impairment loss on interest in this associate was made in the consolidated

financial statements.

518

R BRETHED MAERFBRAE
mESHAHBME QAT ETESHEE

EERSHFR PEMABFNEREEZRER
At REBRAFEZGEMBRRANBE
MRME AR 2 Bl AR

BiEZBHERTDZET2EBRILRESR > HEA
ERNGEFBRRFLZMEATD 2 REZRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZZMFE+"_/F=+—HILFE

22,

Summarised financial information of Qianhai First China

(continued)

Litigation against Qianhai First China

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, Qianhai First China has no
unresolved legal cases relating to the contracts dispute with

investors.

REEQRZz#E=s (@)
RIBHE (&
FIBEEZHMBEHEE ()

RS E EZRER
R_EB_NER_ZE_=+_A8
—t+—H ASEEAREEZBILE
MARBRZBEHNUMEBRERSRE
o

Commitments in respect of Qianhai First China BB EEZRE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHTT FAETT
Group’s commitment to provide funding Zs%E B 72 B K B (6 71 8 B FEE it
to Qianhai First China if called B KEE 20,103 20,780

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR
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23. INVENTORIES 23. 8
2024 2023
ot o111 S
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAETT
Finished goods D 37 38

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an

BRABAZLFARGEaZFES

expense and included in consolidated statement of profit or BOWMT
loss is as follows:
2024 2023
—E-mE TET =&
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT FAETT
Cost of inventories sold BEFERA 30,398 147,239
24. TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. BWEZHRE
2024 2023
—E-mE TET =&
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT BT
Trade receivables arising from BERULEBMES
securities brokerage business: FEWE I8 -
Margin clients REBEESERL - 40
Cash clients REER - 60
Hong Kong Securities Clearing EBFPREEERAE
Company Limited (“HKSCC”) (net) (T&EBEE)) BB - 20
- 120
Trade receivables arising from AEBSMESE
trading of motor vehicles: FEUS B 5 RIE -
Gross receivable JE UL R IB 48 %8 2,038 1,892
Less: impairment loss recognised B BRERRIRER R (2,038) (1,672)
- 220
- 340

204
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables arising from margin clients

Trade receivables from margin clients at 31 December 2023
are repayable on demand, bearing interest at prevailing market
rates and are secured by clients’ pledged securities which
are listed on the Stock Exchange with a total market value
of approximately HK$8,279,000 as at that date. The Group
considered that the credit risk arising from the receivables
from margin clients was significantly mitigated by the client’s
pledged securities.

Receivables arising from cash clients and HKSCC

The settlement terms of the receivables arising from cash
clients and HKSCC are one or two trade days after the trade
execution date.

Aged analysis of receivables arising from securities brokerage
business is not presented as management of the Company
considers that the aged analysis does not give additional value
in view of the nature of this business.

Receivables from trading of motor vehicles
The receivables from customers in respect of the trading of
motor vehicles are due in 120 days from date of billing.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s gross trade receivables
from trading of motor vehicles amounted to approximately
HK$2,038,000 (2023: approximately HK$1,892,000), of which
impairment loss amounted to approximately HK$2,038,000
(2023: approximately HK$1,672,000) were recognised.

Movements of impairment losses on trade receivables are as
follows:

24,

BB S/IE (&

FBlREEERMRIE

RIE_=F+"B=+—HMWEWK
RESEPRPZEKREZHNIEBIZEK
BE RRTMBHNEASE  TURE
R EmzEFESs (WZENE
M {E4Y8,279,000/8 7T) fFHEIF o AN EH
RARBRESELAMEMELENE
BERMEZENERESMAERLD

BWRREERRERGHZME
BERREERFREBEEZREANE
TREAHE—AMERZ BT

BN ESCELE S HE AADEE
BB IR ) I It AT M EESMEE 3
KBRS REBHEE S ERRES
AR HS 47 o

B SEE B mMIE
MAEBZRRERRBEEHHRE
HHEAEEST120B M EIHT

A ZEMNMNFE+ZA=+—HXK
EBEMNAEE S E WK AIEwuéﬁi’]
%2,088,0008 T (ZE = : &
1,892,000 7T) ’Eqﬂﬁﬁéﬁ;‘rﬁ@@ﬂ%
#72,038,000B T (ZE-_=F 1 {9
1,672,000 7T) ©

BWE Z B REBEESHHIWMT :

2024 2023

—EME =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHATT TAETT
At 1 January R—H=—H 1,672 1,296
Impairment loss recognised for the year & A K& 53 /Y 36 {8 5 18 429 415
Exchange realignment fE R oA (63) (39)
At 31 December R+-B=+—H 2,038 1,672
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24.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables from trading of motor vehicles (continued)
The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses under lifetime expected credit
loss basis. To measure the expected credit losses, these
receivables are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk
arising from trade receivables are set out in note 41.

The following is an aged analysis of the trade receivables
arising from trading of motor vehicles based on invoice dates
and net off loss allowance:

24,

FEWE % RIE (&
BWSEEBMRIE (&
rERRABED ZREHEREE
BREERBHEEERIIRER -
STERIGEERE ZERKRIERR
ERNAEEBEEEBRERNEE
EEETHE TRREBESAHEBA
NERRIEREERMBAERELE
ABIEHE R -

BEHAEBREERRKRERE ZHIE
FMEXEERRBZE—FTHFBEHNNW
5E41 0

REAEBRZRKEZRIFRER
A RGREERE S ZREDFWT

2024 2023
111 = - ——
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Over 365 days 3658 U k& - 220

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amount of trade receivables.
Other than the amounts receivable from margin clients, the
Group does not hold any collateral as security in respect of its
trade receivables.

RBERR RRAEERARSBKES
MIRZREE RERFRIETEPRIA
Sy AEBTEMEBWE S RIERFE
EERR R IEER -
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
The carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables are

24. BWBHMIE (&
FEERKEZREZREBERUT

denominated in the following currencies: BisFIE .
2024 2023
—E_WE “EI=HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THEIT
Hong Kong dollars BT = 120
RMB AR - 220
- 340

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

25, BRATEFAREZEWNEE

2024 2023
—E-mE —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FET
Fair value: N -

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong MR &B LT ZRAE - 819
Unlisted equity investment (Note (a)) JEEHRERE (@) - 113
Unlisted fund investment ELHEERE - 15,889
- 16,821

Analysed for reporting as: BERDTOT
Non-current assets EREMEE - 113
Current assets MENEE - 16,708
- 16,821

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 25. MATFEHFAEBRZEMEE (&

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FAET
Movements during the year: FRNEH
At 1 January w—B—H 16,821 4,726
Acquisition during the year, at cost FERULEE LI A sHE (M 5E(a))
(Note (a)) - 15,949
Eliminated on disposal of unlisted RHEELTRERER
equity investment (Note (b)) HiH Bk (o)) - (113)
Eliminated on disposal of equity RHERAKEFREHH
securities (757) -
Eliminated on redemption of RIEBEREREE (@)
investment (Note (a)) (15,653) S
(Loss)/gain on change in fair value of AT {EEE) (FB18) W
- Equity securities listed in Hong —REBLWZERAES
Kong - 60
— Unlisted equity investment —IELmREKRE (kD))
(Note (b)) (111) (3,650)
— Unlisted fund investment —JFLEHEERE - 31
Exchange realignment PE A E (300) (182)
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H - 16,821
Notes: P5E -
(a) During the prior year ended 31 December 2023, the Group subscribed (a) R&E_Z_=F+"B=+—Hi1k t—

approximately 14,528,000 units of an unlisted PRC investment fund for
a total consideration of RMB14,528,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$15,949,000) at a price of RMB1 per unit. The investment fund,
which was principally engaged in investment in bank deposits, bond
repurchases, central bank bills, interbank certificates of deposits and
bonds, is managed by the PRC fund manager, being an entity related to
a bank in the PRC. The Group’s investment in unlisted investments fund
was recognised as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the
consolidated financial statements. The fair value of the investment fund
held by the Group at 31 December 2023 amounted to RMB14,528,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$15,889,000), which was estimated based
on the underlying value of net assets of the investment funds as at that
date. The fair value gain on the unlisted investment funds for the year
ended 31 December 2023 amounted to HK$31,000 was recognised in
profit or loss in respect of that year and was included in other income and
gains/(losses), net (note 7).

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group redeemed its
interest in investment fund for the consideration which approximates
the Group’s carrying amount of the investment fund as at the date of
redemption.

FE FAEERSHESBUARKITH
B LAEREARK14,528,0007T (FHE
R #915,949,0005% 7T) 3R —TEFEIE L
BREE$4914,528,0000 BB o %K%
EESFTEREROTER - EHLE R
BTZER ROREEFEERESNEE A
TEESLE (B REFE—RIETHE
ANER BB AEERELTREES
HEERGEMHFRRPEDRLRLAFE
FABGNEREE-AEEAR T =
F+ZA=+—HFANREESBMNN
NFEAARKE14,528,0007T (FAERL
15,889,000/ 7T) * NiIRBRERE S FEE
RZBMBEREEGS BE_S_=F
+ZA=+—HIEEE FLHTREES
BAFERZA31,00087T RZEEN
B st AR A RIS (§518)
JREE (MI5ET7) ©

RBEETENFE+B=+—HIF
B AERBLENKRERESFNER > K
BAATEEREBERHANEEESRE
EEgo
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(o)

During the prior year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered
into a limited partnership agreement with EUEBEEfE IR E IR
(transliterated as Chengdu Lan Bao Kun Business Management Centre)
(the “General Partner”) for 50% ownership investment in a limited
partnership, FERE: R EMXE BN (transliterated as Chengdu Lan
Bao Zhen Business Management Centre) (the “Limited Partnership”). The
Group acted as a limited partner in the Limited Partnership with injected
capital of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$33,324,000).
In accordance with the limited partnership agreement, all decisions
related to the relevant activities of the Limited Partnership are made by
the General Partner, which is independent from the Group, and the term
of the Limited Partnership is five years from the issuance date of the
business licence. The General Partner has the right to extend the term of
the Limited Partnership. Pursuant to the terms of the limited partnership
agreement, upon termination of the Limited Partnership, any surplus
assets of the Limited Partnership, after payment of termination expenses,
wages, social insurance expenses, statutory compensation, tax liabilities
and outstanding debts, shall be divided among the partners in proportion
to their respective paid capital contributions.

The principal asset of the Limited Partnership is a 90% equity owned PRC
subsidiary, Bi#l 7B ERLBR/AE (transliterated as Chengdu
Jia Bao Yao Yin Medicine Technology Company Limited) (“Chengdu Jia
Bao Yao Yin"), which is principally engaged in investing and participation
in new medicine development projects in the PRC. In September 2019,
Chengdu Jia Bao Yao Yin entered into a joint development agreement with
a business partner to co-operate in the joint development of three new
medicines. In October 2019, Chengdu Jia Bao Yao Yin entered into an

agreement to acquire the patent of a medicine from the business partner.

On 17 November 2023, the Group entered into an agreement with the
Limited Partner, pursuant to which the Group disposed of its 25% equity
interest in the Limited Partnership to the Limited Partner during the
current year for a cash consideration of RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$16,499,000), which was received by the Group during
the year. The disposal gave rise to a gain of HK$16,386,000, being the
excess of the consideration for disposal of approximately HK$16,499,000
over the carrying amount of the equity interest disposed amounted to
approximately HK$113,000, was recognised in the profit or loss in respect
of the current year and was included in the other income and gains/
(losses), net (note 7).

The fair value of the Group’s 25% (2023: 25%) interest in the Limited
Partnership as at 31 December 2024 was estimated to be HK$Nil (2023:
HK$113,000), which was measured based on discounted cash flows from
the patent of a medicine held by and certain new medicine development
projects undertaken by the subsidiary of the Limited Partnership using the
discount rate of 21.61% (2023: 22.67%) per annum. Loss on fair value
change of the Group’s interest in the Limited Partnership amounted to
HK$111,000 (2023: HK$3,650,000) was recognised in profit or loss in
respect of the current year and was included in other income and gains/
(losses), net (note 7).

Details regarding the fair value measurement are set out in note 41.

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR

e MR RMNE

“HE+ZA=+—HILEFE

BRATFEAABHRZEMEE (@)

P -

(o)

(#)

BHEZ_Z—hAFE+ZA=+—HIBE
FE AEBEARBERBOCESEHRN
(TE@&aBAD Jlﬁﬁﬁé%ﬁ%ui DU
EEREBPEERBERESLESESRDL
(rﬁﬁﬁﬁ%¢%ﬁz§0%%ﬁ%°$$
AEREBLENAREBA FAES
AER#30,000,0007t (18 E 7 4933,324,000
BT REBEAREBWHE BARGBEDR
EEEH AN AREHHEBIRA
EENEZESBAEL EBREaBRE
HERASEENRBRELUCAEAF S8
EBRANEREREREBLEZEH R
BEReBHEZGKIOREReBLE
BIEB REARIERS - ITE HERE
M AEHEE REBERERERES
B EREBLEZINRHEEREBS
BARKMEESEHEHEZ LA E-

EREBLENTIEEERHEAIO%E
ZHENBARRS R RERBENTE

/‘ﬂ (TRMERER) ' HITBRER
ERBUETENEFAEEE - RS —A
Ehﬂ MEERERR-—REBSEY
HETI B EMERSE USFERaME=
BHMEN N _B—NFE+A RBERE
REEBAEBHITLBEARBEY S
F) o

RIEZ=F+—RB++tH - A£@EHEF
REB AT HE BRI AEBREE
EREREBALEEAREREBLEN
25%p% 1% > MEMEAH AR HE15,000,00078
(FBE 1 #916,499,000# ) » AEEBER
FE P URER o & E 4 WX %16,386,00078 7T 0
BD & R {E4916,499,00058 T B HFr B &
BRIEBREE49113,0008 T E%E > ENZE
FENBHESR Wt ARMBA KRG,
(E518) 348 (H=E7) ©

RIEZEE+ZBA=+—8 > x&£@8R
BREBLERN255% (ZE_=4F :25%)
Bm2 A TPEGHFATSET (CEI=F:
113,000 7T) * HEREBREBLEZW

NEFENEY EF RABENE THE
HEBEENEWRBESAEF 2 BHIRE
AEE21.61% (CB =4 :22.67%)) °
REE AEEREREBLENER Y
N ESBEEA111,0008 7T (CE-_=
£F © 3,650,000/ 7T) » RAFEIBm PR

K st AR A K W, (B518) 48 (i s
7)°

ERRATESAEZFBEHRINMIEET -
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. FAMRIB RS REMEWIRIE
RECEIVABLES
2024 2023
—EE ==
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
F 5% FAET FAETT

Deposits paid for acquisition of EBEE#ERE BfFiRe

motor vehicles for resale (a) 74,300 173,945

Advance payment for acquisition B8 B ¥ > 2 (J IS
of property (b) 1,481 1,531
Other deposits and prepayments H % K& 7B (T 718 222 290
Total deposits and prepayments 2% K T8 TR IEAREE 76,003 175,766
Less: impairment loss recognised & : #& 586 {E E5 18 (75,781) =
222 175,766
Deposits paid BffiEE 386 313
Other receivables HAth e W =iIs (©) 83,271 3,885
83,879 179,964

Analysed for reporting as: RBERDTWT :

Non-current assets ERBEE 47,128 1,531
Current assets mENE E 36,751 178,433
83,879 179,964
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

26. FA(ITRIAHE R EMEWKRIE

RECEIVABLES (continued) (4
Notes: 5T
(a) Deposits paid for acquisition of motor vehicles (a) WHESEMNBMHERSE
2024 2023
ZE-ME B =H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFHET
Deposits paid, before impairment losses BEBBAIZENZE 74,300 173,945
Impairment loss recognised to profit or loss K18 MR~ B EE51E (75,805) =
Exchange realignment PE R R 1,505

- 173,945

Movements of the deposits paid are (before impairment loss) set out

BEE CRIRBERR 2FHIWT :

below:
2024 2023
kel 111 - 3 —E=
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#ET FHET
Balance at 1 January W—B—BZ#&&R 173,945 150,171
Deposits paid during the year FRE[NEE 53,310 212,521
Deposits refunded during the year FRBRERSE (16,900) (33,948)
Transferred out and formed cost U WAERMEEREZMA
of motor vehicles purchased (60,801) (1562,843)
Reclassified to other receivables BMOEEEMEERIE (E)
(Note (i) (70,071) -
Exchange realignment PE R A 2L (5,183) (1,956)
Balance at 31 December R+ZB=+—HzZ#&& 74,300 173,945

(i) Included in deposits paid at 31 December 2023 are deposits paid
by a subsidiary of the Company, Chongging Sheng Yu Hong Jia
International Trading Company Limited (“Sheng Yu Hong Jia”) to a
vehicle supplier (“Vehicle Supplier A”) amounted to RMB66,228,000
(equivalent to HK$70,071,000). During the current year, Chongqing
Sheng Yu and Vehicle Supplier A entered into a settlement
agreement in December 2024, under which the deposits paid of
RMB66,228,000 will be fully refunded to Sheng Yu Hong Jia by
three instalments subsequent to 31 December 2024, the last of
which falls due in December 2026.

The fair value of the deposits paid refundable of RMB66,228,000,
which is interest free and unsecured, was estimated to be
approximately RMB64,305,000 at the date of the settlement
agreement, using the effective interest rate of 2.9% per annum.
The loss on settlement of the deposits paid amounted to
RMB1,923,000 (equivalent to HK$2,076,000), being the excess
of the principal amount of the deposits paid, refundable of
RMB66,228,000 over its fair value of RMB64,305,000, which has
been charged to profit or loss in respect of the current year (2023:
Nil).

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR

RIE_=ZF+_B=+—HHWE
RSB REAATD—HHBATE
BRANEEBREZARAT (TR
AR XA FREMER (D58
HEBAL NBEGR  EBEAAR
166,228,0007T (18 #270,071,000
BIT) RAFER BEERAES
ELWEWAEG:% mE+ZA5]

NEERE FIL BARSEARK
66,228, oooﬂ%ﬁ\:;ﬁ:EEJr:
B=+—H#% EHERET
m/H'J/%hE E§1§_Hﬂﬁ/\777/\£ﬁ
+Z AR

FER B B2 A R #66,228,000
TARBRERI BRERENE
2.9% B REEHE AN ER
EEt A AR %64,305,0007T ° [E
HEMEBAGEEMREEEA
FE#1,928,0007t (18 & #42,076,000
B o BERBEMIREEASEA
R 66,228,000t HE A FEA
FE #64,305, OOOmE’J#ﬁﬁ [SAEN
FEENERPNR(CEZ =4

) o
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Deposits paid for acquisition of motor vehicles (continued)

(i)

Included in deposits paid at 31 December 2023 are advance
payments made by Sheng Yu Hong Jia to other unrelated
vehicle suppliers amounted to RMB70,217,000 (equivalent to
HK$74,300,000). During the year under review, the due dates for
purchases of the related motor vehicles passed and purchase
of the motor vehicles were not made by Sheng Yu Hong Jia.
Having conducted a critical review of the terms of agreements
for purchase of these motor vehicles, management of the Group
is of the view that the recoverability of these deposits paid of
RMB70,217,000 cannot be assured with reasonable uncertainty,
accordingly impairment on the deposits paid were fully made,
resulted in the loss of RMB70,217,000 (2023: Nil) charged to profit

26. i‘ﬁﬁf'ﬂlﬁ &R HEENRIE

/Aﬁ
MisE : (#8)

(a) WESENBMHESE @)

(i

RZZ2EZ=F+"A=+—HHKE
s ERALEREMIEERA
AHEEEEIANETRBEARE
70,217,0007T (18 & 274,300,000
7o) cREBEER BN ENE
BEHB B > mAa% A k5 I &R
BB - LEBEEHABERSAE
NipZERE AEEEEERA
Bff#EE ARH70,217,000TES
BHWAEE Y T EERFET KRE
M HILH B RS BHELRE
BB ARY70,217,0007T (ZF

or loss in respect of the current year. T=F I E RAFEEEERARRC

Advance payment for acquisition of property (b) HBEEVENTEMCRE
2024 2023
ZEME —ET=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Advance payment for acquisition BEBEAZEEYEZ

of property, before impairment losses B TIE 1,481 1,531
Impairment loss recognised to profit or loss 718 & FE SRR E 518 (1,511) -
Exchange realignment P A2 30 -
- 1,531

In

August 2019, a subsidiary of the Company entered into an agreement

for acquisition of the property in the PRC which is intended to be for
own use purpose. The consideration for the acquisition amounted to
RMB1,400,000 which was fully paid by the Group in the prior year. Due

to

the suspension of the property’s construction, management of the

Group considers it appropriate to recognise impairment loss on the
advance payments, which resulted in an impairment loss amounted to
RMB1,400,000 was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2024

RZB—hENB xR —BAREBER
BEETE - RREERNYETIL
% o B E R ARE1,400,0007T B
HAEER L —FETEIN -HRZY

FUFERE
I5FE R

FEREERIA/MBLMR
REGENBAE ERHE_Z

THHE+ZB=+t—HIEEEERRAR
EEE ARK1,400,0007T (ZE - =4 :

(2023: nil).

Other receivables

) °

(c) HfttFEWRIE

2024 2023
—E-mE —EHwms

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Value added tax receivables EER WIS 748 442
Other receivables arising from BN REEAEEENEAMENRIE

settlement of deposits paid (note a (i) (f3=Ea()) 68,092
Other receivables HAthpE ks 14,431 3,443
83,271 3,885

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2024



NoTes To THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bf % ¥R &} MY 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZ_NFE+"A=+—HIFE

27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

4= AH
17107 O = |

27. SRITEGRRIRE

2024 2023

—ElE ZE=F

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

FET FET

Cash at bank and on hand RITKRFERES 13,532 24,830
Analysed for reporting as: BERAWUWT -

Bank balances and cash RITHEFRRIRE

— trust accounts — (SRR P - 5,276

— general accounts ——fRERP 13,532 19,554

13,532 24,830

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had bank balances
(general accounts) and cash totalled approximately
HK$7,454,000 (2023: bank balances (general accounts)
and cash totalled approximately HK$4,957,000) which are
denominated in RMB. The remittance of these funds out of the
PRC is subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by
the PRC Government.

The cash at bank and short term bank deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. These
bank balances and short-term bank deposits carried interest
at interest rates from 0% to 4.60% (2023: 0% to 3.72%) per
annum.

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR

RZE_WE+-_B=+—H"> K%
BEUARBIEZRITERR (—K

P) RIBEEHEL7,454,000%8 7T (—f
T=F IRTER (—REER) RIRES
FH 494,957,000/ 7T) o B ZEHIEE
th B 1R AN 2 R B U B B 2 N EE A
FT PR ©

RTREREPRTERENREER
4 BETHBME R R iR 2 R1T o ZFIRTT
SRR R ERSR T IE RN A B 0% £ 4.60%
(CE_=ZF 1 0%E3.72%) EFI=5t
=
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28. TRADE PAYABLES

28. EHEBMRIEA

2024 2023
—ENE “BT=HF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FAET

Payables arising from BH R EBTELENRIE !

securities brokerage business:

Margin clients FREBEER - 87
Cash clients REER - 5,364
Other trade payables HMMENE S HIE - 6
- 5,457

Payables to margin clients are repayable on demand. The
settlement terms of amounts payable arising from cash clients
are one or two trade days after the trade execution date.

Aged analysis of payables arising from securities brokerage
business is not presented as management of the Company
considers that the aged analysis does not give additional value
in view of the nature of this business.

The following is an aged analysis of payables arising from
trading of motor vehicles and other trade payables based on
invoice dates:

BANRETEFRBAAREREE -]
ETEPAEERUMEARETRS
B - MERZBRZT-

BRBFELCEBZHEE  xRFEE
B R ARG D AT 1L EAT (R BRIMBE >
RERIREBREEZRUREZ
BREY AT o

REAEE S ZEAREREAMEN
BESMEAEREBEZEZARZIRE DML
T

2024 2023
—E-mE B =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Over 365 days 365H U k£ - 6
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 20. HthFEIBEREtFIE
2024 2023
—TWEF =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAET
Sundry payables and accruals MBI RIERESTTIE 1,370 2,593
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. a49&afFE
2024 2023
“E-E ==
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FAET
Advance payments from customers HRFEMNRIE 60,140 73,393

Contract liabilities of the Group, which are expected to be
settled within the Group’s normal operating cycle, are classified
as current.

The Group recognises revenue when related performance
obligation is satisfied. Contract liabilities at 31 December 2024
represents advance from customers in relation to trading of
motor vehicles.

The Group receives payment from customers based on the
billing schedules as stated in contracts. Payments are usually

FEEERETAEEEEEEERN
BENGNEREIERRE -

AREBRTREEEBENSERERW
Mmoo M ZE_MFE+_"_A=+—HWAE
HEaEREXRMAEEZ AT WED
BN o

FEBRBEGOHBHRERBRD
ERBEBRIR - RRBREEERITAE

received in advance of the performance under the contracts for B84 2 BIWE o
trading of motor vehicles.
2024 2023
—EWE TedT = GaE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Revenue recognised for the year RS AENERE
that was included in the contract EHRNFABRERENE
liabilities balances at the beginning of
the reporting periods - 30,592

The advance payments are attributable to the contracts with
original expected duration of one year or less, as permitted
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to unsatisfied
performance is not disclosed.

ERSEEHARRARA | —E_HEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

31.

PROVISIONS 31. #fE
2024 2023
—E-mE ZEC=F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FAEIT
Provision for loss on onerous BESHNEEES ()
contracts (Note) 11,019 11,390
Movements of the provisions during the year are as follows: FRBEZEHUWT .
2024 2023
—E-mE B =
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAEIT
Balance at 1 January —RB—HZ &5 11,390 11,725
Exchange realignment E R (371) (335)
Balance at 31 December R+"B=+—H2Z&% 11,019 11,390
Note: MI5E -
During the prior year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered into purchase REE_ZE—NEF+_A=+—HLBEFFE"
agreements with a third party (the “Supplier”), under which the Group has agreed NEE éii“ =5 (MEER)) sT I HEHE &
to purchase motor vehicles for resale purpose from the Supplier and in this b AEBERERREESEESENEEER

connection trade deposits amounted to RMB7,064,000 were paid by the Group
to the Supplier. Completion of the purchase of motor vehicles from the Supplier
has not taken place up to 31 December 2019 and management of the Company,
having considered the terms of the relevant agreements and the underlying
business circumstances of the Group, considers it appropriate to make provisions
for onerous contracts amounted to RMB10,414,000 relating to the agreements
with the Supplier, which were recognised in the profit or loss in respect of the
prior year ended 31 December 2019.

The directors considers that the obligations and liabilities of the Group under
the agreement with the Supplier remained outstanding up to 31 December 2024
and the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements. Having
consulted with the legal advisor, the directors are of the opinion that the costs
and compensation, if any, to be payable by the Group to discharge all of its
obligations and liabilities under the agreement, are estimated to be not more
than the provisions amounted to RMB10,414,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$11,019,000) at 31 December 2024, accordingly, no additional provisions
for the onerous contracts are required to be made in the consolidated financial
statements.

wo BAEEMILEAREEREZNESREARKE
7,064,000  BEE_E—NEF+__A=+—HH#E
RERREEEEEAE MALRNEEELE
EREBENGERRAEBNBAERRKR F
AIAMERET NG EEBNAESHD A
?ﬁ?ﬂ%)\ﬁmm 414,000 5@ E > UL EE

—NWE+ZA=+—HLBEFEREBEF
_7;\0
EERR AERAHEENBENEBREE

BE_Z_MNE+-A=+—BRZEEEHT
HERMEZ BNRTMR CHBMARERE B
WA RIBE_NE+—_B=1+—H ' ~&EEME
THZBTITNAMAEZRBAEEMABAITHRE X
FE (A) Lt A2 BB EE AR 10,414,0007T
(FBE R #911,019,0008 7T) * MBEN RS M
RERPIMEEESNTREINEE -
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32. BORROWINGS

2. (B

2024 2023
—EE BT =F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FAEIT
Secured borrowings (Note) BIREER (5D 28,000 30,000
Analysed for reporting purpose: ABEFENDMUWT -
Current liabilities mEaE 28,000 30,000
Note: M5E -
The maturity of the borrowings are as follows: BRIHEWOT :
2024 2023
—E-WE - 5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
On demand or within one year BERY—FNRN 28,000 30,000

The borrowings at 31 December 2024 and 2023 are secured by the charge
over the Group’s leasehold land and buildings with the carrying amount of
HK$17,879,000 (2023: HK$19,492,000) as at that date (Note 17) and corporate
guarantees executed by the Company. These borrowings are denominated
in HK$, carried interest ranged from 10.875% to 11.375% per annum (2023:
ranged from 11.00% to 12.00%), and are wholly repayable in October 2025.
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RIBE_NMER_EBE_=F+_A=+—BKN1E
BUAEEAE L M RIEFRD (RZENK
EE%417,879,0008 7T (T - =4 : 19,492,000
Bw) (MsE17) (EAEFE THAAFRHEA
AR ZEBRUBTHE EMNXHES
10.875%F11.375% (ZZE_ =4 : #E%11.00%
F12.00%) AR _E_AFE+AEBHEE-
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33. LEASE LIABILITIES 33. fHEAR
2024 2023
—E-E —E=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAETT
Present value of lease ENEEaEZIRE
liabilities payables:
Within one year —FRN 434 580
After one year and within two years —FEREMEN - 448
434 1,028
Less: Amount due for settlement B AR REaEE TR 12ER
within 12 months shown N EIHBEERIE
under current liabilities (434) (580)
Amount due for settlement after FIRIERBIBEE TM2ES%Z
12 months shown under ZHREERIE
non-current liabilities - 448

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities is 4.75% (2023: 4.75%) per annum and lease

liabilities are denominated in RMB.

34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Movements of the deferred tax liabilities, which are attributable

HEEABEERMNNEELOEEER
FEAEGEFELT75% (ZE_=4F :

4.75%) BEHEEBEUARKE-

34. BEMERE

MERBENEBGEZBELEREBEERZ

to accelerated tax depreciation, are as follows: BEINT

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=

HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT AT
Balance at 1 January R—B—HZ%&&R 2,199 2,381
Credited to profit or loss (Note 13) s AET (M5E13) (182) (182)
Balance at 31 December R+"B=+—H2Z&& 2,017 2,199
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34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued) 34. BREREER (&
Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in the consolidated EERRAETEE BB a A AR » BE L
financial statements in respect of unused tax losses available e BHRERMOBLUIEHEB R R
for offset against future profits due to the uncertainty of future ZERBAMBEEERDEEREEE-
profit streams. As at 31 December 2024, the unrecognised N_E_NME+"BA=+—H &&EH
tax losses of the Group amounted to approximately Z AR IEREL278,842,0008 7T
HK$278,842,000 (2023: approximately HK$447,131,000). (ZEBEZ=4% . 4447,131,00087T) °
These tax losses have no expiry date except that approximately F%#9210,334,000 8 TR A %F
HK$210,334,000 will expire from 2025 to 2029 (2023: E_Z_hFHERER CEZ=F:
approximately HK$176,811,000 will expire from 2024 to 2028). #176,811,000B TN S _WNF=E
“ED)\EFHREEM) N ZERIEE
1B fEm B HA o
No deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in respect HRAEBEEREFHZENBELAB 2
of the unremitted earnings of PRC subsidiaries because the KREBK BEHEBHIBERZRA
Group is in a position to control the dividend policies of these RERELD - RuBELPEKEB QD
subsidiaries and it is probable that such differences will not ZHREHBABDIEEREBEGE - KT
be reversed in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December EINFERZEI=FF+2A=+—
2024 and 2023, the unrecognised temporary differences in H> ERAAEEERGTEIBATZER
respect of the unremitted earnings of the PRC subsidiaries EHERAZ AEIEFEEDIOA
attributable to the Group are approximately of RMB9,253,000 FE#9,253,0007T & A K #55,583,000
and RMB55,583,000 respectively. Joe
35. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM 35. lRAERiEE
Number of Share Share
shares capital premium Total
RiHBE KBE 171 it
'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TR TET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREE.0IBTZLER
Issued and fully paid BETREE
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, R_E_=F—-F—Q
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 = S S
“ZCME-A-Ak
“ETmE+-A=1+—H 7,748,958 77,489 1,673,299 1,750,788

The authorised ordinary shares of the Company comprise
10,000,000,000 shares (2023: 10,000,000,000 shares) with a
par value of HK$0.01 per share (2023: HK$0.01 per share).
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KRB WA TE & 38 A 8 3510,000,000,000
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KEEA0OIET (CE=F . 8K
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36. RESERVE

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the nominal amount of the
issued share capital and share premium of Sinofortune
Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited acquired pursuant to the
corporate reorganisation undertaken in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on GEM on 11 January
2002.

Statutory reserve

PRC companies are required to appropriate 10% of
statutory net profits to statutory reserve, upon distribution
of their post-tax profits in accordance with the PRC
laws and regulations. A company may discontinue the
contribution when aggregate sum of the statutory surplus
reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital. The
statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to make
up losses of the companies, to expand the companies’
operation, or to increase the capital of the companies.

Translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve comprises foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note
3.8.

36. f#f#
i)

(i)

(iii)

RIGEE
FEBZENEELIEE QTR
EREGREARARMNH_-ES
—E—B+—HEGEMLMEA
ETCESHAMETRMOZE
B B P W BESinofortune Financial
Holdings (BVI) Limited B 217 j8 2
HENRMD EBAEREE 58

ERE

RIFEREEZRRER AEAF
RO IR E BRI & R B A REDE
ERFEEBEEMANI0% -2
AEVEERBRBNEMNBER
SEMEARNS0%E » AF A =L
B rERBRREERIAER
BARNBE - BEAATNEE
WIBMABNEZA

EREA
ERREECERABINEFYHR
RMBEENRAINEER &
BT IR 5E3.8F 71 & 5T BUR
FRIE o
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 9 July 2024, the Company entered into an agreement
with certain independent third parties to dispose of 100%
equity interest in a subsidiary, Sinofortune Financial Holdings
(BVI) Limited (the “Sinofortune BVI”) for a consideration of
HK$4,000,000 plus the net asset value of Sinofortune BVI
at the completion date of disposal, being the aggregate
consideration to the Company. The disposal was completed on
9 July 2024. Upon completion of the disposal, Sinofortune BVI
and its subsidiaries, Sinofortune Securities Limited, Sinofortune
Asset Management Limited and Sinofortune Financial Capital
Limited ceased to be the subsidiaries of the Group. Sinofortune
BVI and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in dealing in
securities and futures contracts, advising on securities and
corporate finance and asset management under the licences
issued by the SFC to carry on types 1, 2, 4, 6 and 9 regulated
activities under the SFO.

The assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries disposed and the
gain on disposal of subsidiaries are as follows:

Analysis of assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries over which
control was lost,

37. HEMBAE

N _E_MNEFETANH ARBHEE
FRIE=AF:]LpZE LENBER
F]Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI)
Limited (I Sinofortune BVIJ) Z100%
AR REA4,000,000%8 7T 0
Sinofortune BVIRHE R B EE
FEOMENFARBAZENRE-HE
FEER _Z_WELtBAHRMH
ERIFEM % > Sinofortune BVIK E K
BARERBIESBRAR -EREEE
BERABKREEESMMEBRAT
THARNERE 2 KB AF - Sinofortune
BVIREMEBAGS X EREBZEZTEH
NEBREZSMPEANRS T
ShREEREREERMREHEESE
B DETESRBERANETE
2 4 BB HREEE

BEHEMNBATDNEERBRUKRE
EMBADIWIT ¢

REERIEZMNBRAAZEERAER
AR i

HK$'000
FAET

Assets and liabilities disposed of BEHEBERER
Property, plant and equipment LY ER T Y 5
Statutory deposits and other assets FEEGEARAMEE 405
Accounts receivable & U BR X 213
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables A TIB ~ 12 K E A FE U R I8 65
Bank balances and cash — trust accounts IRITAE R RIRE —(EFEERP 7,802
Bank balances and cash — general accounts RITAERRIRE—— RIS 4,998
Accounts payable FET BR R (4,968)
Other payables and accruals HENHRIERESTE R (421)
Amount due to the Company (Note) FE AR B FIE (fY5E) -
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEZFE 8,099
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. HEMBATE (&)
HK$’'000
FET
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZINE
Consideration of the disposal HEMREB 12,099
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE (8,099)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMWB AR ZWE 4,000
HK$’'000
FHET
Cash received on disposal HERIERZIRE 12,099
Less: bank balances and cash-general B BHERITERKIES
accounts disposed of ——RERF (4,998)
Net cash inflow arising on the disposal of HEWB AR ELENRERAFEE
subsidiaries 7,101
Note: G
The gross amount due by the former subsidiaries to the Company at the RHESBERAFN AIMBASERNREERA
completion of the disposal was approximately HK$67,888,000. The Company B 2 RIB4AEEX %67,888,0008 75 o A A T B 2
has waived the amount due by the former subsidiaries as a condition precedent RAMBASEMNRIE EFARREEFIEN
for the completion of the disposal. FOIRAE A o
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the

38. EXAREALRS

FRILFREMBRRAMSNREZ
R RAGFHI > ZEBREARFTILUT

Group had the following related party transactions during the BREEALRS
year:
2024 2023
—EUE - ——
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHAT TAET
Rental payment to a director of BARNEB]—RESE
the Company (Note) A (fFsE) 363 378
2024 2023
—EUE - ——
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT BT
Key management compensation FEBEASZFHMN
Salaries and other short-term FreREMBIHAREERH
employee benefits 2,400 2,853
Post-employment benefits BEB 2 F 36 36
2,436 2,889
Note: Pt -

Pursuant to the rental agreement entered into between a subsidiary of the
Company and a director of the Company, Mr. Wang Jiawei (“Mr. Wang”), on 1
November 2022, Mr. Wang leased an office premise to the subsidiary at monthly
rental of RMB28,000 for 3 years from the date of rental agreement.
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RIBEEAAT—BNBARREAATNEETREL
£ ((ERE) KRB - —_F+—A—HTIzH
B Tk B AR 28,0005t M Z M &8
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39. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 39. MEFEHFIEEAGRZHIR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from TREMRBPAEERMEITHMES
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. aBrze88 aRRERIEFRESEF-
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which MEFHMESERERTIEERLES
cash flow were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the RERERNDEAMEBEETHMESE
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows HEMEZREMRERRKBERE
from financing activities. Zz8fE-
Lease
liabilities Borrowings Total
HEafF &= EEkE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FTAERT
At 1 January 2024 RZZEZHWHFE—HA—H 1,028 30,000 31,028
Change in financing cash flows: MEREREEE .
Repayment of borrowings BEEAR - (2,000) (2,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities HEaBEZEXN (608) - (608)
Interest paid B E - (3,411) (3,411)
Total changes in financing cash flows BIEIR& R EEH1ELE (608) (5,411) (6,019)
Other changes: H&s
Currency translation difference EBHhEER (21) = (21)
Interest expenses FEMX 35 3,411 3,446
Total other changes Hi 81058 14 3,411 3,425
At 31 December 2024 RIZZHEF
+-B=+—H 434 28,000 28,434
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39. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 39. RIBEEBFREEEGBEZHIR &)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

Lease
liabilities Borrowings Total
HEER EEN ke
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET FETT FHETT
At 1 January 2023 RN_E_=F—H—H 1,623 25,000 26,623
Change in financing cash flows: MEREREEE .
Proceeds from borrowings REBERZEMRIEA - 5,000 5,000
Repayment of lease liabilities HEAGBZER 615) = 615)
Interest paid BAHE - (2,643) (2,643)
Total changes in financing cash flows BIEIREREEHELE (615) 2,357 1,742
Other changes: Hm&s
Currency translation difference EHRE =R (43) - (43)
Interest expenses FERX 63 2,643 2,706
Total other changes Hi 81058 20 2,643 2,663
At 31 December 2023 RIZZ=F
+-B=+—H 1,028 30,000 31,028
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TMITASHE
RBESHR SEcREERTHERE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40.
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

assets and financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

REREENT :

2024 2023
Sl 111 - —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Financial assets EREE
At amortised cost 7g: 3= 72N
Statutory deposits and other assets EERERAEMEE - 405
Trade receivables FEUN & 5 718 - 340
Financial assets included in FFATENMIE e REAM
prepayments, deposits and EWHRIBY &RIE E
other receivables 74,270 3,890
Bank balances and cash IRITHBFRRIRE
— trust accounts —(S5EER P - 5,276
- general accounts ——fRER P 13,532 19,554
87,802 29,465
At fair value LA FE
Financial assets at fair value BATFEFAERZSHEE
through profit or loss - 16,821
2024 2023
—EE 2=
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FHET
Financial liabilities EMaR
At amortised cost 11 5 k2K
Trade payables FE(S B I8 - 5,457
Other payables and accruals HARES I8 &k FEst T IE 1,370 2,593
Provisions B 11,019 11,390
Borrowings EEA 28,000 30,000
Lease liabilities HEaE 434 1,028
40,823 50,468
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, price risk, fair value interest
rate risk, and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk

()

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

Transactional currency exposures arise from the
sales or purchase by operating units in currency
other than the unit’s functional currency. The
Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal
as almost all of the Group’s revenue and costs
of the operating units are denominated in HK$ or
RMB, the respective functional currency of the
Group entities, with most of the Group’s monetary
assets, liabilities are principally denominated in the
respective functional currencies of RMB. The Group
manages the foreign exchange exposure arising
from its normal course of business activities and
investments in foreign operations by funding its local
operations and investments through cash flows
generated from business transactions locally. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising
from trading of listed equity securities which are
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and the
market price change of unlisted equity investment
classified as financial assets at FVTPL. To manage
its price risk arising from these investments, the
Group diversifies its portfolio. The sensitivity analysis
has been determined based in the exposure to
related price risk of these investments.
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(1)

(i)

Price risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if the quoted
market prices of the trading securities had been
5% higher or lower while all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s net loss for the year
would decrease or increase by HK$Nil (2023:
approximately HK$41,000) as a result of changes in
fair value of listed equity securities held for trading.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023, the Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank deposits and
borrowings which carry prevailing market interest
rates. The directors consider that the Group’s
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to its
variable bank deposits and borrowings. The Group
currently does not use any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However,
management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, if interest
rates on the borrowings had been decreased/
increased by 50 basis points with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s post-tax losses for the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 would
decrease or increase by approximately HK$117,000
and approximately HK$125,000 respectively.

41, HERAKREEBEREE &

MBERBKRRERR (&)
(a) WHEEE ()

(i)

(i)

1B E G (42)

REEHA WEEESZ
MHRBE LF L FE5%M
HFrEES#IFAE &~
E@TERFEEBREE
BELTRAZTHEZAF
EEBMRL HIEMEETT
(ZEBZ =4 : 941,000

7o) °

B2 TE R A FEFEE R
HE_Z_UER_ZFT_=
F+"A=+—HILEFE"
HRZRITHBHESEDN
IRITEAREBERZIRITHES
MEFE AEEBDHRS
TMENEXRB EEIRAELK
ERZIRAKRKERERE
ABBIUNR T HEHNEEE -

A TEBE_MFERZEB=

+ZRA=+—H '&EEZ
RERENXEABRTIEEH
IRITERRERZZBF X
B -r&EEBR L E-ER
ERATEGNHTERY
ZHEEE A MAH
2 - BEEERERHPERKN
R E R

RIEZWNERZZTEZ=
FE+_-_B=+—H 'EFE
HtESHERFIE 21BN
T [ ERAETE, LA
S50BEH AEEBHEZE
THERZIEZ=F+Z
B=+—HIEFEZER
BEBESATER ALY
117,00078 7t K2 £9125,0007
=
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, if interest
rates on the bank deposits had been decreased or
increased by 50 basis points with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s post-tax losses for the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 would
decrease or increase by approximately HK$117,000
and approximately HK$98,000 respectively.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss
to the Group.

The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial assets
periodically to ensure that potential credit risk of the
counterparty is managed at an early stage and sufficient
provision is made for possible defaults. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets relate
mainly to bank balances, trade and other receivables. It
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Debtors with balances that are more than 1
month past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has certain
concentrations of credit risk as approximately 62% (2023:
approximately 65%) and approximately 100% (2023:
approximately 94%) of the Group’s trade receivables
were due from the Group’s largest trade debtor and the
five largest trade debtors respectively within the trading
of motor vehicles and provision of agency services and
accessories sourcing segment. For the trading of motor
vehicles, provision of agency services and accessories
sourcing segment, the customer’s past history of making
payments are good. Further quantitative data in respect
of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
receivables are disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix approach. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status
is not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

41, HERAKREEBEREE &

MBRBRER (&

(b)

FEERE ()
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AlERAGE ZFFEEPRE
PBEIRAMMECE KB AN
MO TEBINARBER
FREREEXEFMEZLEER
BERER -BHBB1ER 2B
ERERZBEFARBEMRMAR
TRERRDIERAEMESR-
EF—RERT  AEEFEEE
FEREHRM-

RBREBHR AEEEETET
EERAR FRRAEERKE
GEBARAREZEEADR
EARERA62% (CE_=F 1 &9
65%) R#J100% (CE - =ZF | &
94%) Z FEWE S IE  Z S5 W
REFBREABEESRIEMHRR
ERE REFEREDBoIRE
B5 MR ERSE MEHERE
PE > BREBENHELRF A
MAEBERESREELEEES
Az E—PELEE RiEs
B 7598 R SE244 BE o
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fEH At E AR AEBNBRE
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er 2024 BEZZNMF+"A=1+—HILFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 41. M¥RMBEIEHERKE (&

POLICIES (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued) REAKREE (&)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EFEREE (&)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
arising from trading of motor vehicles as at 31 December
2024 and 2023:

JEWE S5 7E (18)
TREIINRZZE_NFEFRZE
=+ RB=1+—HAEER@
BEREAEE S 2 EWE S8
EERBZER :

31 December

2024
Expected loss Gross carrying Loss
rate (%) amount allowance

—E-mE

FEHEEE  +-B=+—-H
(F9E) RE4AE BHRE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current (not past due) B (kA - - =
1 to 30 days past due AE1E30H - - -
31 to 60 days past due FH31E60H - - -
More than 365 days past due HEAB1B365H 100% 2.038 2.038
2.038 2.038

31 December

2023
Expected loss Gross carrying Loss
rate (%) amount allowance

“ECCE

BHEEX +-A=+—H
(B4tL) REAE BEREE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TAET TAT
Current (not past due) EIEERC S e ) - = =
1 to 30 days past due A1 E30H = = =
31 to 60 days past due HEA31E60H - - -
More than 180 days past due AHEAEE180H 88.3% 1,892 1,672
1,892 1,672
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZZ_UFE+_F=+—HIEFE

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past one to two years. These rates are adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the management
makes periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward looking information.
The management believes that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment based
on 12m ECL. For the years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023, the Group assessed the ECL for deposits and
other receivables are insignificant, thus no allowance was
recognised.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests
with the board of directors. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles
of financial assets and liabilities.

At 31 December 2024, the Group had borrowings
with carrying amount of HK$28,000,000 (2023:
HK$30,000,000) (Note 32).

41, HERAKREEBEREE &

MBRBRER (&

(b)

(c)

FEERE ()

BN E ZHE (&)
BHBEEXDBERBE—EMF
NERBRERFAESH &F
EER 75 R BRIE 1 BB W SR AR BY
ERR S BRI R R B
FE R I8 7 TR R 77 48 HA BY A 75 1%
fr2&E > MMM FHEE -

BMEKFIBREE

MEMERFEBELRZEMS &
BEEREBEFTAEERR BEK
BoUREERSZFARENTE
ERTEMHER EHMEMEU
TIB K 3% B9 B IR B0 1% E B @ B
- EEEBMEE BV BRER MU
Ko ZECEENEE RS HEEE
ERN mAEEIREI12EAE
HEEBBEHREREBE BE
“EINFERIZEI=F+ZH
=+—HLEEE > AEBFHIZ
SREMERHREBEBNEREES
B AT A FUIL R o

BB £ m g
EFEAANDETRAREES
FRREF-FERERTTER
BWRERERRE  TEERTE
ARBEFEERE UREHE
MEERBEBZIHA EUE
EReETREE-

AZBZME+ZA=+—8>
REE B 2 Bk 828,000,000
Bt (T = £ : 30,000,000
70) (FsE32) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZ_NFE+"A=+—HIFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 41. M¥RMBEIEHERKE (&
POLICIES (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued) REABEE (&
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) FEEZRE (&)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities AEBEHEENRSHABRR
as at the reporting period, based on the contractual BEEHNRMLBRAMZEABEN
undiscounted payments, was as follows: T
On
demand Between 1 Total
or within and 2 undiscounted Carrying
1 year years cash flows amount
RERS RERRE
DIME 1526 MELE IREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T THET TET
2024 ZECZME
Trade payables EREZRE - - = =
Other payables and accruals R RB R EH A 1,370 - 1,370 1,370
Provisions BB 11,019 - 11,019 11,019
Borrowings N 31,500 - 31,500 28,000
Lease liabilities HEaR 442 - 442 434
44,331 - 44,331 40,823
2023 ZEC=
Trade payables ENESFE 5,457 = 5,457 5,457
Other payables and accruals R RIE R A 2,593 - 2,593 2,593
Provisions BE 11,390 - 11,390 11,390
Borrowings B 32,853 - 32,853 30,000
Lease liabilities HESE 616 457 1,073 1,028
52,909 457 53,366 50,468
Capital management BELRER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that group entities AEBEBEEEEAMBRAEESE
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising BESF RS AR BB ECEFEHEE
the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the mHFEAERETREALD K AEE
debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains R EE AR KK B K FEAE R o

unchanged from prior year.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group AERNABRERGEE ~EENEH
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, EORERGKREZEE NREEE
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. B HEITHRMD
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 41. MEEKREEEEREE (&
POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued) BEXEER (&
The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of the AEERBEHEHCHABRA L ERER
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net HEARIHEXZEF FERKHE
debt divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated as BASTE B FHERBER (BFER
total debt (including current and non-current liabilities but FRIEFAHEEETEEARSMBER
excluding current or deferred income tax liabilities as shown MEFRFTRZ BRI SR 8 E)
in the consolidated statement of financial position) less bank BIRTTHBEAIRE (BERITERRE
balances and cash (including bank trust accounts). Adjusted Pt E KRB ACIEME#ERS
capital comprises all components of equity (including share o (BREFETHBRRBRAN Z KA
capital and premium, reserves, accumulated losses and non- HIE - RTBEERIFERER)
controlling interests as shown in the consolidated statement of R HEMET -
financial position) and other debt.
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s AEEBRBEE_Z_-_MNOE+ A
strategy was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio =t HIFEEgESFT S _=F
within 50%, which was unchanged from 2023. The debt-to- MR BERAREHELEHEERALL
adjusted capital ratios as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 were EHEFASORN - R _E_NMEKR_F
as follows: =+ ZA=+—BZEBHLHE
BERALEEDT
2024 2023
—ZE-mE 2=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET
Total debt (EEEEEE 100,963 123,861
Less: Bank balances and cash B RITRERRIRE
(including bank trust accounts) (BIEIRITIEEEER )
(Note 27) (fFsx27) (13,532) (24,830)
Net debt B 25 87,431 99,031
Total equity 1 75 AR RE 14,770 118,219
Adjusted capital KBEER 102,201 217,250
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio FEBHKREEARLLE 85.5% 45.6%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from

prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)

41.

MBRAKBREEBRRER (&)

ATE2 I
TREGEREDNUATEI B2
SMIR - EERZEBMT :

e HEEEHERKNEERMTHZE
B CRERB) B -

s EBEWBBIEE (BN B
CREEBR) BEZ2HABE (£
BEFE—RZBRE (BEZR) -

s EBENERUIFREBEUHRERZD
LEBEZEARE (BEHRZ

(level 3). A (F=H) -
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Bzt F—4 -t B4
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AT TAT TAT TAT
At 31 December 2024 R-E_NE
+-B=+—-H
Financial assets at fair value BATESABR
through profit or loss ZEMEE
(Note 25) (FHizk25)
- Securities held for trading ~-FEEERS - - - =
- Unlisted equity investment —FLHRERE - - - =
- Unlisted fund investment —FLrmELEE - - - -
At 31 December 2023 R_Z_=F
==
Financial assets at fair value BATESABR
through profit or loss JERMEE
(Note 25) (H=E25)
— Securities held for trading —FEEERS 819 819 - -
- Unlisted equity investment —JEETRERE 113 - - 113
~ Unlisted fund investment —FLHEEEE 15,889 - 15,889 -

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and

Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

g _IEIEEEZ_V Sy
B=+—H ' 5—8®REE_HRZ
B EEANATESEER B
EZMITEETBATEL -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 41. M¥REMBEEHERKE &)

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value estimation (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Fair values at 31 December

R+=B=+-BNATHE

[AFEZMHEE F
BFHE=BLTFEFAEZEH

Significant Relationship of
Valuation unobservable unobservable inputs
2024 2023 techniques inputs Range to fair value
EXTAHRR FUHBRAYE
ZECmE —ECZE fhER* BAYE HE AATENMR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
BRATESI A BRZEREE
Unlisted equity investment - 113 Discounted Discount rate 21.61% The higher the discount rate,
cash flows (2023: 22.67%)  the lower the fair value
FLHmRERE - 113 BRBERE LpIER 21.61% HEEED ATEHEE
(ZBZ=%:
22.67%)
The fair value measurement of the Group’s interest in the REBREREGBEE R (MM
Limited Partnership (classified as financial assets at FVTPL as 25PNl N AR A TFESFABRZ
detailed in note 25) was determined based on discounted cash SHEE) 2RAFEFENHENREBRS
flows from the patent of a medicine held by and new medicine BLEMPBFENERENKAAEDN
development projects undertaken by the Limited Partnership MERZEEENEHRREREET
with a discount rate of 21.61% per annum (2023: with a HEWREAFE2161% (T =

discount rate of 22.67% per annum).

BRIRKRAEE22.67%) ©

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2024



NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M EHRER M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HEZZ_NFE+"A=+—HIFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  41.

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value estimation (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(continued)

Movements during the years of the financial assets with Level 3

fair value measurements are as follows:

MBRKBREEBRRER (&

[AFEZMHE E
BFHE=BLTFEFEZEH (&

ZEFENESHNT

Financial
assets

at fair value
through profit

RAFS=ZMAFTEFENEREEN

or loss

BATERA

ERZEMEE

HK$’000

BT

At 1 January 2023 W_ZE_=F—H—H 3,967

Eliminated on disposal R E R (113)

Fair value loss N EREIE (3,650)

Currency translation difference B EERR (91)
At 31 December 2023 and RIZ2Z=F+ZA=+—HkK

1 January 2024 —E_WWE—F—H 113

Fair value loss N EREIE (111)

Currency translation difference EHnEERR (2)

At 31 December 2024

A TENE+"A=+—H -
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. FATIRBERRAER
COMPANY
2024 2023
—E_ME ==
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT THT
Non-current assets EREIEE
Property, plant and equipment MR RRE 2
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT ZKRE - 94,221
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE WY /B A B e - 33,207
1 127,430
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and FENRE Rk
other receivables EH W EIE 357 264
Bank balances and cash RTEFRKIRS 3,841 1,009
4,198 1,273
Current liabilities wEAaE
Other payables and accruals HAEI =8 &k EstTIE 800 1,737
Amounts due to subsidiaries FESH B AT RIE 13,607 17,393
14,407 19,130
Net current liabilities mBAERE (10,209) (17,857)
Net (liabilities)/assets (8B EERE (10,208) 109,573
Capital and reserves BeZs R E
Share capital A& A 77,489 77,489
Reserves (Note) R (M5 (87,697) 32,084
Total (deficits)/equity (B54t) tE=4R%R (10,208) 109,573

KRB ZHBERRERR_E_AF=
BT+ N \BREREFGHERBZET S

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March

2025 and are signed on its behalf by: WHMTESAREE
Wang Jiawei Lai Yuk Mui

ITEE RES

Director Director

BE EE
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Note:  Reserves of the Company are analysed as follows:

4 A
17107 O = |

42. TRBMBRAR (&)

W&t ERBDREBIRWOT :

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total

B 15 Ea 18 -4 o] g

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHEx FHET FET

Balance at 1 January 2023 ATB - =—HF—-B—AZ#ER 1,673,299 (1,631,110) 42,189

Loss for the year FANEE - (10,105) (10,105)
Balance at 31 December 2023 and RIZEZ=F+Z"A=+—HBK

1 January 2024 TR INE—B—RHZ&ERR 1,673,299 (1,641,215) 32,084

Loss for the year FANEE - (119,781) (119,781)

Balance at 31 December 2024 RIZEZWNE+ZA=+—H
& 1,673,299 (1,760,996) (87,697)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Rt #5 B 2

BEREETECERGAMBRERZEAER
BELAMBEEXREUKREERGEHNE
HU0F ¢

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years as extracted from the published
audited consolidated financial statements is set out below:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HILEE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—ECmE ZEICRE S BT -F ZEIZRE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ER TET TET TET TET
Results E 5
Revenue Wi 32,148 150,039 180,815 24,182 69,069
Loss before tax BRIAIES B (101,533) (15,950) (30,854) (32,284) (41,742)
Income tax credit PRSI % 227 154 182 182 182
Net gain from discontinued ~ B#& = £ 7% iz
operations b 2,287 - - - -
Loss for the year ERER (99,019) (15,796) (30,672) (32,102) (41,560)
Attributable to: FE{E
Owners of the Company EABEEA (98,752) (15,777) (30,660) (32,090) (41,399)
Non-controlling interests R ER (267) (19) (12) (12) (161)
(99,019) (15,796) (30,672) (32,102) (41,560)
At 31 December
B+ZB=+—8H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-ME —"E-=fF "E--F —B--F C—BTEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ERT FHET TET FETT FET
Assets, Liabilities, and BE BERFERESD
Non-Controlling Interests
Total assets BELE 117,750 244,279 232,804 295,567 242,665
Total liabilities el (102,980) (126,060) (95,395) (116,943) (36,048)
Non-controlling interests FERER 100 (167) (191) (220) (226)
14,870 118,052 137,218 178,404 206,391
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